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PART I
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act, as amended, which reflect our current views with respect to certain events that are not historical facts but could have an effect on our future
performance, including but without limitation, statements regarding our plans, objectives, financial performance, business strategies, projected results of
operations, and expectations for the Company.

These statements may include and be identified by words or phrase such as, without limitation, “would,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “believes,”
“anticipates,” “continues,” “could,” “may,” “might,” “plans,” “possible,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “intends,” “assumes,” “estimates,”
“approximately,” “shall,” “our planning assumptions,” “future outlook,” “currently,” “target,” “guidance,” and similar expressions (including the negative
and plural forms of such words and phrases). These forward-looking statements are based largely on information currently available to our management
and on our current expectations, assumptions, plans, estimates, judgments, projections about our business and our industry, and macroeconomic conditions,
and are subject to various risks, uncertainties, estimates, contingencies and other factors, many of which are outside our control, that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements and could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and liquidity. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the following:
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+ changes in applicable laws or regulations;
+  factors relating to our business, operations and financial performance, including:
o  our ability to successfully execute, manage, integrate and obtain the anticipated financial benefits of key acquisitions and mergers, including
the completed acquisition of Envios de Valores La Nacional Corp. (“La Nacional”) and the pending acquisition of LAN Holdings, Corp.
(“LAN Holdings”);
o economic factors such as inflation, the level of economic activity, recession risks and labor market conditions, as well as rising interest rates;
o public health conditions, responses thereto and the economic and market effects thereof;
o competition in the markets in which we operate;
o volatility in foreign exchange rates that could affect the volume of consumer remittance activity and/or affect our foreign exchange related
gains and losses;
o our ability to maintain favorable agent relationships;
o credit risks from our agents and the financial institutions with which we do business;
o bank failures, sustained financial illiquidity, or financial institution illiquidity;
o new technology or competitors, such as digital platforms;
o cyber-attacks or disruptions to our information technology, computer network systems, data centers and mobile devices apps;
o our ability to satisfy our debt obligations and remain in compliance with our credit facility requirements;
o our success in developing and introducing new products, services and infrastructure;
o consumer confidence in our brands and in consumer money transfers generally;
o our ability to maintain compliance with applicable regulatory requirements;
o international political factors, political stability, tariffs, border taxes or restrictions on remittances or transfers;
o  currency restrictions and volatility in countries in which we operate or plan to operate;
o consumer fraud and other risks relating to the authenticity of customers’ orders;
o changes in immigration laws and their enforcement;
o our ability to protect intellectual property rights;
o our ability to recruit and retain key personnel; and
*  other economic, business and/or competitive factors, risks and uncertainties, including those described in the “Risk Factors” and “Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as any
additional risk factors that may be described herein in our other filings with the SEC from time to time.

Accordingly, there is no assurance that our expectations will, in fact, occur or that our estimates or assumptions will be correct, and we caution
investors and all others not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included herein are only made as
of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. |
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

International Money Express, Inc. (the “Company” or “Intermex”) is a leading omnichannel money remittance services company focused primarily on
the United States of America (“United States” or “U.S.”) to Latin America and the Caribbean (“LAC”) corridor, which includes Mexico, Central and South
America and the Caribbean. In recent years, we expanded our services to allow remittances to Africa and Asia from the United States and also began
offering sending services from Canada to Latin America and Africa. We utilize our proprietary technology to deliver convenient, reliable and value-added
services to consumers through a broad network of sending and paying agents. Our remittance services, which include a comprehensive suite of ancillary
financial processing solutions and payment services, are available in all 50 states in the U.S., Washington D.C., Puerto Rico and 13 provinces in Canada,
where consumers can send money to beneficiaries in 16 LAC countries, eight countries in Africa and two countries in Asia. Our services are accessible in
person through over 100,000 independent sending and paying agents and 117 Company-operated stores, as well as online and via Internet-enabled mobile
devices. Additionally, our product and service portfolio include online payment options, pre-paid debit cards and direct deposit payroll cards, which may
present different cost, demand, regulatory and risk profiles relative to our core money remittance business. In March 2022, we entered into an agreement to
acquire La Nacional and LAN Holdings, money remittance companies serving more than 70 countries. In November 2022, we completed the acquisition of
La Nacional and we expect to complete the acquisition of LAN Holdings in the second quarter of 2023 subject to the satisfaction of customary closing
conditions, including pending regulatory approvals. The acquisition of La Nacional strengthens the Company’s presence in the Dominican Republic and
other key markets in Latin America.

Money remittance services to LAC countries, mainly Mexico and Guatemala, are the primary source of our revenue. These services involve the
movement of funds on behalf of an originating consumer for receipt by a designated beneficiary at a designated receiving location. Our remittances to LAC
countries are primarily generated in the United States by consumers with roots in Latin American and Caribbean countries, many of whom do not have an
existing relationship with a traditional full-service financial institution capable of providing the services we offer. We provide these consumers with
flexibility and convenience to help them meet their financial needs. We believe many consumers who use our services may have access to traditional
banking services, but prefer to use our services based on reliability, convenience and value. We generate money remittance revenue from fees paid by
consumers (i.e., the senders of funds), which we share with our sending agents in the originating country and our paying agents in the destination country.
Remittances paid in local currencies that are not pegged to the U.S. dollar can also generate revenue if we are successful in our daily management of
currency exchange spreads.

Our money remittance services enable consumers to send funds through our broad network of locations in the United States and Canada that are
primarily operated by third-party businesses, as well as through our Company-operated stores located in the United States. Transactions are processed and
payment is collected by our agent (“sending agent(s)”) and those funds become available for pickup by the beneficiary at the designated destination,
usually within minutes, at any Intermex payer location (“paying agent(s)”). We refer to our sending agents and our paying agents collectively as agents. In
addition, our services are offered digitally through Intermexonline.com and via Internet-enabled mobile devices. Since January 1, 2022 through December
31, 2022, we have grown our agent network by approximately 27.3% and increased our principal amount sent by more than 21.2% to $21.0 billion. In
2022, we processed approximately 47.8 million remittances, representing over 19.2% growth in transactions as compared to 2021.

Our Competitive Strengths

e Primary focus on the LAC corridor. Unlike many of our competitors, who we believe prioritize global reach over growth and profitability, we are
focused on a few geographical regions in which there is a concentration of a significant portion of the world’s money remittance volume. We believe
the LAC corridor provides an attractive operating environment with significant opportunity for future growth. According to the latest available data
published by the World Bank, the LAC corridor continues to be the most rapidly growing remittance corridor in the world.

e Highly scalable, proprietary software platform. We provide our money remittance services utilizing our internally developed proprietary software
systems, which we believe enhance the productivity of our network of sending agents, enabling them to quickly, reliably and cost-effectively process
remittance transactions. Our proprietary software systems were designed to incorporate real-time compliance functionality, which improves our
regulatory compliance and helps to minimize fraud. We have developed a platform that has the capacity to handle traffic well in excess of the number
of transactions we currently process. Our money remittance platform has proven reliable, with our 2022 downtime being less than 0.05%.

*  Highly selective sending agent recruitment process designed to identify productive long-term partners. We strategically target sending agents for our
network only after a metric-based analysis of potential productivity and a thorough vetting process. In our sending agent selection process, we focus on
geographic locations that we believe are likely to have high customer volume and demand for our services. By closely monitoring individual sending
agent performance and money remittance trends, we can offer our sending agents real-time technical support and marketing assistance to help increase
their productivity and remittance volume.
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»  Strong relationships with major banks and financial institutions. Our relationships with clearing, check processing, trading and exchange rate and cash
management banks are critical to an efficient and reliable remittance network. We benefit from our strong and long-term relationships with a number
of large banks and financial institutions. We maintain strong relationships with a number of other national and regional banking and financial
institutions in the United States, Canada and Latin America. For example, we have maintained a long-term relationship with Wells Fargo, Bank of
America and US Bank, among others. Due to increasing regulatory scrutiny of banks and financial institutions, we believe that new banking
relationships may be difficult to develop for new, start-up competitors in the industry, hence creating a barrier to entry to new competition and making
our existing relationships a competitive advantage.

*  Powerful brand with strong consumer awareness and loyalty in the LAC corridor. We believe we are a leading money remittance provider from the
United States to the LAC corridor, processing 21.0% of the aggregate volume of remittances to Mexico according to the latest available data published
by the Central Bank of Mexico in 2022 and 29.3% of the aggregate volume of remittances to Guatemala according to the latest available data
published by the Central Bank of Guatemala in 2022. We believe that consumers associate the Intermex brand with reliability, strong customer service
and the ability to safely and efficiently remit their funds. The information contained in this paragraph is based on “Revenues by Workers’ Remittances”
published in the Central Bank of Mexico’s website and “Income from family remittance” published in the Central Bank of Guatemala’s website.

e Strong compliance processes and procedures. We operate in a highly-regulated environment and are reviewed by regulators and external auditors
periodically. We maintain a comprehensive and rigorous compliance process with policies, procedures and internal controls designed to exceed current
regulatory requirements. Our software also includes embedded compliance systems that provide real-time transaction alerts and Office of Foreign
Assets Control (“OFAC”) screening. Our risk and compliance management tools include programs by Equifax, Experian, LexisNexis and TransUnion,
among others.

»  Experienced and proven management team. Our management team consists of financial services industry veterans with a track record of achieving
profitable growth. Our team is led by our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and President, Robert Lisy, with a successful 30-plus year track record in
the retail financial services and electronic payment processing industry.

Our Growth Strategy

We believe we are well positioned to drive continued growth by executing on the following core strategies either organically or through acquisitions of
other entities:

*  Expand our market share in our largest corridors. The two largest remittance corridors we serve are the United States to Mexico and United States to
Guatemala. According to the latest available data in the World Bank Remittance Matrix, the United States to Mexico remittance continues to be one of
the largest in the world. We aim to continue to expand our market share in those states where we are currently well-established and poised for
continued profitable growth within those markets via targeted regional penetration. We believe that we can leverage our current customer data to
increase repeat customer usage, track and effectively recapture one-time users of our service and improve sending agent productivity to drive growth in
these states. We also execute a targeted marketing effort to realize significantly increased market share growth in large states where we are
underrepresented.

*  Expand our services into new corridors and emerging markets. We believe that there is significant room to grow our business in underserved
geographic regions in the LAC corridor where there is demand from customers and agents for our value-added approach to money remittances.
Specifically, we are targeting future growth opportunities via new corridors from the United States to other non-Spanish speaking regions, including
the Caribbean and other continents. In recent years, we expanded our services to allow remittances to Africa and Asia from the United States and also
began offering sending services from Canada to Latin America and Africa. Our acquisition of La Nacional further strengthens our presence in Latin
America.

*  Continue to grow online and mobile remittance channels. Our money remittance platform currently enables consumers to send funds from the United
States to the LAC corridor and Africa through the Internet via Intermexonline.com and on their Internet-enabled mobile devices. We have and continue
to make significant investments in enhancing our digital mobile money remittance applications to provide consumers with safe, easy-to-use features
for remitting funds. We believe these channels not only expand our potential customer base as digital transaction capabilities become more relevant to
LAC corridor consumers but also benefit from secular and demographic trends as consumers continue to migrate to conducting financial transactions
online.

*  Leverage our technology in the business-to-business market. We believe that our money remittance platform has significant excess capacity. We
believe we can leverage this capacity to sell business-to-business solutions to third parties, such as banks and major retailers.
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Segments

Our business is organized around one reportable segment that provides money remittance services primarily between the U.S. and Canada to Mexico,
Guatemala and other countries in Latin America, Africa and Asia through a network of authorized agents located in various unaffiliated retail
establishments and 117 Company-operated stores throughout the U.S. and Canada. This is based on the objectives of the business and how our chief
operating decision maker, the CEO and President, monitors operating performance and allocates resources.

Operations and Services

Money remittance services to LAC countries, primarily Mexico and Guatemala, are the primary source of our revenue. These services involve the
movement of funds on behalf of an originating consumer for receipt by a designated beneficiary at a designated receiving location. Our remittances to LAC
countries are primarily generated in the United States by consumers with roots in Latin American and Caribbean countries, many of whom do not have an
existing relationship with a traditional full-service financial institution capable of providing the services we offer. We provide these consumers with
flexibility and convenience to help them meet their financial needs. We believe many consumers who use our services may have access to traditional
banking services, but prefer to use our services based on reliability, convenience and value. We generate money remittance revenue from fees paid by
consumers (i.e., the senders of funds), which we share with our sending agents in the originating country and our paying agents in the destination country.
Remittances paid in local currencies that are not pegged to the U.S. dollar also earn revenue through our daily management of currency exchange spreads.

The majority of our money remittance transactions are generated through our agent network of retail locations and Company-operated stores where the
transaction is processed and payment is collected by our sending agent. Those funds become available for pickup by the beneficiary at the designated
receiving destination, usually within minutes, at any Intermex payer location. In select countries, the designated recipient may also receive the remitted
funds via a deposit directly to the recipient’s bank account, mobile device account or prepaid card. Our locations in the United States and Canada, also
referred to as our sending agents, tend to be individual establishments, such as multi-service stores, grocery stores, convenience stores, bodegas and other
retail locations. Our payers in LAC countries are referred to as paying agents, and generally consist of large banks and financial institutions or large retail
chains. Grupo Elektra, S.A.B. de C.V. (“Elektra”) is our largest paying agent and processes a significant portion of remittances in the LAC corridor. Each of
our sending agents and our paying agents are primarily operated by third-party businesses where our money remittance services are offered. Additionally,
we operate a number of retail locations in the United States, which we refer to as Company-operated stores and where our money remittance services are
available. We also operate subsidiary payer networks in Mexico under the Pago Express brand and in Guatemala under the Intermex brand. These networks
contribute payer locations that reach some of the most remote areas in those countries, providing increased convenience to consumers in the United States,
Canada, Mexico and Guatemala.

At sending agent locations, consumers may initiate a transaction directly with an agent, or through a direct-dialed telephone conversation from the
agent location to our call centers. Many of our sending agents operate in locations that are open outside of traditional banking hours, including nights and
weekends. Our sending agents understand the markets that they serve and coordinate with our sales and marketing teams to develop business plans for
those markets. We hold promotional events for our sending agents to help familiarize them with the Intermex brand and to incent the agents to promote our
services to consumers.

Our money remittance services are also available on the Internet via Intermexonline.com, enabling consumers to send money twenty-four hours a day
conveniently from their computer or Internet-enabled mobile device. Those funds can be sent to any of our paying agent locations or to a recipient’s bank
account, funding the transaction using debit card, credit card, or through electronic funds transfer processed through the automated clearing house (“ACH”)
payment system. Although our internet-based money transmission services have grown significantly in 2022, they still do not constitute a material
percentage of the Company’s overall business.

Also, our enhanced digital mobile money remittance application provides consumers with safe, easy-to-use features for remitting funds with a debit or
credit card, or ACH transfer. Consumers are able to select a variety of sending methods, including cash pickup at thousands of locations, direct deposit into
bank accounts, debit cards, mobile wallets, and home delivery in selected markets.

We maintain call centers in Mexico and Guatemala, providing call center services 365 days per year and customer service in English, French and
Spanish, as well as the possibility of service in many of the regional dialects that our customers speak. Our call centers are able to provide customer service
for inbound customer calls and have technology available for direct calls from customers at our agent locations in processing remittance transactions.

Cash Management Bank Relationships

We buy and sell a number of global currencies and maintain a network of settlement accounts to facilitate the timely funding of money remittances and
foreign exchange trades. Our relationships with clearing, check processing, trading and exchange rate and cash management banks are critical to an
efficient and reliable remittance network. We benefit from our strong and long-term relationships with a number of large banks and financial institutions.
We maintain strong relationships with a number of other national and regional banking
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and financial institutions in the United States, Canada and Latin America. In addition, we have benefited from our long relationship with US Bank, which
manages our main operating account, and from strong relationships with PNC Global Transfer, Wells Fargo, Bank of America and KeyBank as our primary
banks for exchange rate management with respect to the foreign currencies.

Information Technology

Currently, all of our money processing software is proprietary and has been developed primarily by our internal software development team. Our
money processing software acts as a point of sale for our money remittance transactions and incorporates real-time compliance functionality, which
improves our regulatory compliance and helps to minimize fraud. Our money processing software is critical to our operations while our back-office
software is critical for settling our transactions.

Also, our money remittance platform enables consumers to send funds through the Internet via Intermexonline.com and on their Internet-enabled
mobile devices and our enhanced digital mobile money remittance application provides consumers with safe, easy-to-use features for remitting funds.

In addition to our money remittance software, digital platform and mobile application, we continue to develop programs and defenses against cyber-
attacks. We are fully aligned with the National Institute of Standards and Technology cybersecurity framework, which is a voluntary framework that most
companies in the financial services industry follow. We utilize a number of third-party vendors that monitor our systems and inform us of any attempted
attacks. Our Chief Information Officer and Chief Information Security Officer report periodically to our board of directors regarding our cybersecurity
policies and practices.

In addition to our proprietary and internally developed software systems, we have analytical data that enable us to analyze market trends, performance
of market territories, agent performance and consumer habits in real time.

We continually invest in our technology platform that has the capacity to handle traffic well in excess of the number of transactions we currently
process. A load balancing configuration between tier-1 datacenters, in addition to failover redundancy, provides uptime performance. Our technology
platform has experienced limited downtime, with our 2022 downtime being less than 0.05%.

Our Transaction Processing Engine (“TPE”) allows us to process money remittances reliably and quickly by leveraging a proprietary rules engine to
apply granular-level product feature customization. The TPE also leverages real-time risk management algorithms to improve our regulatory compliance
and helps to minimize fraud.

Our internally developed and proprietary payer Application Programming Interface platform securely and efficiently integrates our TPE directly with
the platforms of our paying agents, so that we can deliver money remittances quickly to our paying agents while optimizing the efficiency/speed of adding
new payers to our network and integrating payers’ software and systems with our software and systems.

Intellectual Property

The Intermex brand is critical to our business. In the markets in which we compete, we derive benefit from our brand, as we believe the Intermex brand
is recognized for its speed, cost effectiveness and reliability for money remittances throughout the United States, the LAC corridor, Canada and Africa. We
use various trademarks and service marks in our business, including, but not limited, to Intermex, International Money Express, IntermexDirect,
CheckDirect, La Nacional and Pago Express, some of which are registered in the United States and other countries. In addition, we rely on trade secret
protection to protect certain proprietary rights in our information technology. See the section entitled “Information Technology” for more information.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark and copyright laws and trade secret protection and invention assignment, confidentiality or license
agreements to protect our intellectual property rights in products, services, expertise, and information. We believe the intellectual property rights in
processing equipment, computer systems, software and business processes held by us and our subsidiaries provide us with a competitive advantage. We
take appropriate measures to protect our intellectual property to the extent such intellectual property can be protected.

Sales and Marketing

The majority of our money remittance transactions are generated through our agent network of retail locations and Company-operated stores where the
transaction is processed and payment is collected by our sending agent or store. Sending agent locations include multi-service stores, grocery stores,
convenience stores, bodegas and other retail locations. The vast majority of our sending agents are provided access to our proprietary money remittance
software systems, while others have access to our combination telephone and fax/tablet set up, which we call telewire, enabling direct access to our call
centers for money remittance services. In all of our independent sending agent locations the agent provides the physical infrastructure and staff required to
complete the remittances, while we provide the central operating functions, such as transaction processing, settlement, marketing support, compliance
training and support, and customer
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relationship management. We also maintain 117 Company-operated stores in the United States. We retain customer data, which enables us to increase
repeat customer usage, track and effectively recapture one-time users of our service and improve sending agent productivity.

We market our services to consumers in a number of ways, directly and indirectly through our sending agents and paying agents, promotional
activities, traditional media and digital advertising, and our loyalty program, which we call “Interpuntos”. This loyalty program offers consumers faster
service at our sending agent locations and the ability to earn points with each transaction that are redeemable for rewards, such as reduced transaction fees
or more favorable foreign exchange rates.

Our Industry

We are a rapidly growing and leading money remittance service company primarily focused on the United States to the LAC corridor. We utilize our
proprietary technology to deliver convenient, reliable and value-added services to consumers through a broad network of sending and paying agents. The
two largest remittance corridors we serve are United States to Mexico and United States to Guatemala. According to the latest information available from
the World Bank Remittance Matrix, the United States to Mexico remittance corridor was the largest in the world in 2021.

Trends in the cross-border money remittance business tend to correlate to immigration trends, global economic opportunity and related employment
levels in certain industries such as construction, information technology, manufacturing, agriculture and hospitality, as well as other service industries.

Worldwide political and economic conditions continue to exhibit instability, as evidenced by high unemployment rates in key Latin American markets,
restricted lending activity, higher inflation, volatility in foreign currencies and low consumer confidence, some of which reflect residual effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic and supply chain disruptions, among other economic and market factors. Specifically, continued political and economic unrest in
Mexico, Guatemala and some countries in South America contributed to volatility. Our business has generally been resilient during times of economic
instability as money remittances are essential to many recipients, with the funds used by the receiving parties for their daily needs; however, long-term
sustained appreciation of the Mexican peso or Guatemalan quetzal as compared to the U.S. dollar could negatively affect our revenues and profitability.

Another significant trend impacting the money remittance industry is increasing regulation on banks, making it difficult for money remittance
companies to have strong banking relationships. Regulations in the United States and elsewhere focus, in part, on cybersecurity and consumer protection.
Regulations require money remittance providers, banks and other financial institutions to develop systems to prevent, detect, monitor and report certain
transactions. In coming periods, we expect these and future regulatory requirements will continue to result in changes to certain of our business and
administrative practices and may result in increased costs.

Government Regulation

As a non-bank financial institution in the United States, we are regulated by the Department of Treasury, the Internal Revenue Service, the U.S.
Department of the Treasury’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”), the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”), the Department
of Banking and Finance of the State of Florida and the equivalent regulatory authorities in all of the other states, the District of Columbia and the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, in which we hold an operating money transmission license. We are duly registered as a Money Services Business (“MSB”)
with FinCEN, the financial intelligence unit of the U.S. Department of the Treasury. We are also subject to a wide range of regulations in the United States
and other countries, including: minimum capital or capital adequacy requirements; anti-money laundering laws and regulations; financial services
regulations; currency control regulations; anti-bribery laws; money transfer and payment instrument licensing laws; escheatment laws; privacy, data
protection and information security laws, such as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLBA”); and consumer disclosure and consumer protection laws, such as
the California Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”).

Regulators worldwide are exercising heightened supervision of money remittance providers and requiring increased efforts to ensure compliance.
Failure to comply with any applicable laws and regulations could result in restrictions on our ability to provide our products and services, as well as the
potential imposition of civil fines and possibly criminal penalties, including suspension or cancellation of an affected license. We continually monitor and
enhance our compliance programs to stay current and compliant with legal and regulatory changes.

Anti-Money Laundering, Counter-Terrorism Financing and Sanctions Compliance
Our money remittance services are subject to anti-money laundering laws and regulations of the United States, including the Bank Secrecy Act
(“BSA”), as amended by the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001, as well as state laws and regulations and the anti-money laundering laws and regulations in many

of the countries in which we operate. The countries in which we operate may require one or more of the following:

» reporting of large cash transactions and suspicious activity;
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* transaction screening against government watch-lists, including the sanctions list maintained by OFAC;
*  prohibition of transactions in, to or from certain countries, governments, individuals and entities;

* limitations on amounts that may be transferred by a consumer or from a jurisdiction at any one time or over specified periods of time, which require
aggregation over multiple transactions;

*  consumer information gathering and reporting requirements;
*  consumer disclosure requirements, including language requirements and foreign currency restrictions;

» notification requirements as to the identity of contracting agents, governmental approval of contracting agents or requirements and limitations on
contract terms with our agents; and

»  registration or licensing of us or our agents with a state or federal agency in the United States or with the central bank or other proper authority in a
foreign country.

Anti-money laundering regulations are constantly evolving and vary from country to country. We continuously monitor our compliance with anti-
money laundering regulations and implement policies and procedures to stay current with legal requirements. Our money remittance services are primarily
offered through third-party agents under contract with us, but we do not directly control these agents. As a MSB, we and our agents are required to
establish anti-money laundering compliance programs that include internal policies and controls; a designated compliance officer; employee training and an
independent review function. We have developed an anti-money laundering training manual and a program to assist with the education of our agents and
employees on the applicable rules and regulations. We also offer in-person and online training as part of our agent compliance training program, engage in
various activities to enable agent oversight and have adopted compliance policies that outline key principles of our compliance program to our agents. We
have developed a regulatory compliance department, under the direction of our Chief Compliance Officer, whose foremost responsibility is to monitor
transactions, detect suspicious activity, maintain financial records and train our employees and agents. An independent third-party consulting firm
periodically reviews our policies and procedures to ensure the efficacy of our anti-money laundering and regulatory compliance programs. Key milestones
in the compliance processes include: (1) mandatory fields and identification requirements at the time the sending agents initiate a transaction; (2) the sender
and receiver are screened against government-required lists (for OFAC and other purposes); (3) before the transaction is sent to the paying agent, it is
screened and any flagged exceptions are sent to the compliance unit for investigation and release or rejection; and (4) the transaction is screened for limit
restrictions, velocity levels, structuring and identification requirements.

In connection with, and when required by regulatory requirements, we make information available to certain U.S. federal and state, as well as certain
foreign, government agencies to assist in the prevention of money laundering, terrorism financing and other illegal activities and pursuant to legal
obligations and authorizations. In certain circumstances, we may be required by government agencies to deny transactions that may be related to persons
suspected of money laundering, terrorism financing or other illegal activities, and it is possible that we may inadvertently deny transactions from
consumers who are making legal money transfers.

Licensing. In most countries, either we or our agents are required to obtain licenses or to register with a government authority in order to offer money
transfer services. Almost all states in the United States, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico, as well as certain provinces in Canada, require us to be
licensed to conduct business within their jurisdictions. Licensing requirements may include requirements related to net worth, providing surety bonds and
letters of credit, operational procedures, agent oversight and maintenance of reserves to cover outstanding payment obligations. Acceptable forms of such
reserves will vary based on jurisdiction and the applicable regulator, but generally include cash and cash equivalents, U.S. government securities and other
highly rated debt instruments. Many regulators require us to file reports on a quarterly or more frequent basis to verify our compliance with their
requirements. We are also subject to periodic examinations by the governmental agencies with regulatory authority over our business.

Escheatment. Unclaimed property laws of each state in the United States in which we operate, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico require us to
track certain information for all of our money remittances and payment instruments and, if the funds underlying such remittances and instruments are
unclaimed at the end of an applicable statutory abandonment period, require us to remit the proceeds of the unclaimed property to the appropriate
jurisdiction. Applicable statutory abandonment periods range from three to seven years. We have an ongoing program designed to comply with
escheatment laws as they apply to our business.

Data Privacy and Cybersecurity. We are subject to federal, state and international laws and regulations relating to the collection, use, retention,
security, transfer, storage and disposal of personally identifiable information of our customers, agents and employees. In the United States, we are subject to
various federal privacy laws, including the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which requires that financial institutions provide consumers with privacy notices and
have in place policies and procedures regarding the safeguarding of personal information. We are also subject to privacy and data breach laws of various
states.
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Consumer Protection. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) imposes additional regulatory
requirements and creates additional regulatory oversight over us. The Dodd-Frank Act created the CFPB which issues and enforces consumer protection
initiatives governing financial products and services, including money remittance services, in the United States through the CFPB’s Remittance Transfer
Rule. Its requirements include: a disclosure requirement to provide consumers sending funds internationally from the United States enhanced pre-
transaction written disclosures, an obligation to resolve certain errors, including errors that may be outside our control, and an obligation to cancel
transactions that have not been completed at a consumer’s request. As a “larger participant” in the market for international money transfers, we are subject
to direct examination and supervision by the CFPB. We have modified our systems and consumer disclosures in light of the requirements of the Remittance
Transfer Rule.

In addition, under the Dodd-Frank Act, it is unlawful for any provider of consumer financial products or services to engage in unfair, deceptive, or
abusive acts or practices. The CFPB has substantial rule making and enforcement authority to prevent unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices in
connection with any transaction with a consumer for a financial product or service. In addition, each state of the United States from time to time, may enact
new laws and regulations, such as the CCPA, which creates new consumer rights relating to the access to, deletion of, and sharing of personal information
that is collected by businesses. We have taken the necessary steps to review, modify and implement, as needed, policies and procedures designed to comply
with the CFPB’s Remittance Transfer Rule. The Company’s communications, advertising and sales practices and that of its agent network are subject to
regulation by, among other things, state and federal consumer protection laws including the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (“TCPA”). The FTC and
the Federal Communications Commission have issued regulations under the TCPA that place restrictions on, among other things, unsolicited automated
telephone calls or text messages to residential and wireless telephone subscribers by means of automatic telephone dialing systems and the use of
prerecorded or artificial voice messages. The Company has taken steps to insulate itself from any such wrongful conduct, including conduct engaged in by
its agents, by, among other things, requiring its agents to comply with the TCPA and such regulations.

Anti-Bribery Regulation. We are subject to regulations imposed by the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA”) in the United States and similar
anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions. These laws may impose recordkeeping and other requirements on us. We maintain a compliance program designed
to comply with anti-bribery laws and regulations applicable to our business.

Risk Management

At times, we are exposed to credit risk related to receivable balances from sending agents in the money remittance process if agents do not timely
make payments to us.

Through our online and electronic platforms, we also are exposed to credit risk directly from transactions that are originated through means other than
cash, such as credit, debit cards and “ACH” transfers, and therefore are subject to “chargebacks” for insufficient funds or other collection impediments,
such as fraud.

Given the nature of our business, we are also subject to liquidity risk as the timing of the funds to be remitted by our sending agents may extend in
comparison with the timing when we make the funds available to the money transfer beneficiary in the destination country. Our current liquidity sources as
well as our ability to generate free cash are mitigating factors in our liquidity management strategy.

Our indebtedness bears interest at variable rates, which exposes us to interest rate risk as a result of fluctuations on market interest rate benchmarks.

We continually monitor fraud risk, perform credit reviews before adding agents to our network and conduct periodic credit risk analyses of agents and
certain other parties that we transact with directly. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, our provision for credit losses was equal to 0.5% of our
total revenues.

Seasonality

We do not experience meaningful seasonality in our business. We may experience, however, increased transaction volume around certain holidays,
such as Mother’s Day and the December holidays.

Competition

The market for money remittance services is very competitive. Our competitors include a small number of large money remittance providers, financial
institutions and banks as well as a large number of small niche money remittance service providers that serve select regions. We compete with larger
companies, such as The Western Union Company (“Western Union”), MoneyGram International, Inc. (“MoneyGram”), Remitly Global, Inc. (“Remitly”)
and Euronet Worldwide Inc. (“Euronet”), and a number of other smaller competitors. We generally compete for money remittance agents on the basis of
value, service, quality, technical and operational differences, commission, and marketing efforts. As a philosophy, we sell credible solutions to agents, not
discounts or higher commissions as is typical for the industry. We compete for money remittance customers on the basis of trust, convenience, service,
efficiency of outlets, value,
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technology and brand recognition. We believe that our ongoing investments in new products and services will help us to remain competitive in our evolving
business environment, given the increasing competition from digital platform providers.

We expect to encounter increasing competition as new technologies emerge that enable customers to send and receive money through a variety of
channels, but we do not expect adoption rates to be as significant in the near term for the consumer segment we serve. Regardless, we continue to innovate
in the industry by differentiating our money remittance business through programs to foster loyalty among agents as well as consumers and have expanded
our channels through which our services are accessed to include online and mobile offerings in preparation for consumer adoption.

Human Capital

We invest in our workforce by offering a competitive total rewards package that in addition to a salary, includes performance incentives and
comprehensive benefits that are intended to be competitive in the market and focused on the needs of our employees in order to attract and retain highly
qualified talent. Our incentives are primarily measurable and performance-based, and are designed to align compensation to our business strategy and
goals. We have enhanced our onboarding process and plan to further enhance learning and development programs to drive quicker integration, development
and higher productivity of new employees, as well as the ongoing development of team members to ensure robust recruitment and retention.

We value diversity and inclusion and strive to create a work environment where everyone feels valued and devoted to their work. As of December 31,
2022, 98.5% of our U.S. team members identified themselves as racially or ethnically diverse. Also, 63.9% of our U.S. team identified themselves as
female. In 2023, we intend to continue to promote greater community involvement through philanthropic and volunteer efforts, with a focus on diversity,
community improvement, and STEM programs.

Since 2020, the well-being and health of our employees has remained one of our top priorities, especially in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. We
adjusted standard operating procedures within our business operations to ensure continued worker safety.

As of December 31, 2022, we had 571 employees in the United States, all of whom are full-time. We also have 611 employees in Mexico, of whom
262 are full-time, and 60 employees in Guatemala, all of whom are full-time. As of December 31, 2022, 523 of our employees in Mexico were represented
by a labor union.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports are
available free of charge through the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website, www.intermexonline.com, as soon as reasonably practical after
they are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The SEC maintains a website, www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information filed electronically with the SEC by the Company. In addition, you may automatically receive email alerts
and other information when you enroll your email address by visiting the “Investor Relations” section of our website. We use our website as a channel of
distribution for important Company information, including press releases, investor presentations and financial information, which may be accessed by
clicking on the Investors Relations section. We may also use our website to expedite public access to time-critical information regarding our Company in
advance of or in lieu of distributing a press release or a filing with the SEC disclosing the same information. Therefore, investors should look to the
Investor Relations section of our website for important and time-critical information. The content of any website referred to in this document is not
incorporated by reference into this document.

Information about our Executive Officers

Set forth below is certain information regarding the Company’s current executive officers as of March 6, 2023:

Name Age Position

Robert Lisy 65 Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Andras Bende 48 Chief Financial Officer

Joseph Aguilar 61 President and General Manager - Latin America

Randall Nilsen 60 Chief Revenue Officer

Ernesto Luciano 49 General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer

Christopher Hunt 47 Acting Chief Operating Officer

Robert Lisy has served as a director of International Money Express, Inc. since 2018. Mr. Lisy served as a director of International Money Express
Sub 2, LLC’s predecessor entities from 2009 to 2018. Mr. Lisy is the Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chairman of the Board of Directors of
International Money Express, Inc. and its predecessors, which he joined in 2009. Mr. Lisy has more than 30 years
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of experience in the retail financial services and electronic payment processing industry in various positions, including three years as the Chief Marketing
and Sales Officer of Vigo Remittance Corp., a money transfer and bill payments service in the United States and internationally, and over seven years at
Western Union in various sales, marketing and operational positions of increasing responsibility. Mr. Lisy was a founding partner of Direct
Express/Paystation America, which offered, among other things, prepaid debit cards to federal benefit recipients, where he served as Chief Operating
Officer and on the board of directors. He was an integral part in the efforts to successfully sell Direct Express in 2000 to American Payment Systems. Mr.
Lisy holds a bachelor’s degree in Finance from Cleveland State University.

Andras Bende joined International Money Express, Inc. as Chief Financial Officer in December 2020. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bende
served as the Chief Financial Officer of Computer Services, Inc., a financial technology company, from 2018 to 2019, where he helped guide the company
during a period of significant growth and share price appreciation. Prior to his time at Computer Services, Inc., Mr. Bende held several international Chief
Financial Officer and Controller roles at GE Capital from 2005 to 2017. Mr. Bende is a graduate of GE’s Financial Management Program and the GE
Corporate Audit Staff and holds a bachelor’s degree in financial management from Clemson University.

Randall Nilsen has served as the Chief Revenue Officer of International Money Express, Inc. since 2018. Mr. Nilsen was Intermex’s Chief Revenue
Officer from 2015 to 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Nilsen served as Chief Revenue Officer at Sigue Money Transfer Services (“Sigue”), a global
remittance provider from 2011 to 2015 where he was responsible for revenue generation through acquisition and retention of both agents and consumers
within North America. Prior to his employment with Sigue, Mr. Nilsen was the Chief Franchise Sales and Operations Officer at Jackson Hewitt from 2008
to 2011. Prior to Jackson Hewitt, Mr. Nilsen was with Western Union from 1987 to 2008 where he held roles with increasing responsibility in sales,
marketing and sales planning and was responsible for business units in the U.S., Canada and the U.K. Mr. Nilsen is a graduate of the Executive
Management program at the University of California Los Angeles’s Anderson School of Management and holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Finance
from Brigham Young University.

Joseph Aguilar joined International Money Express, Inc. in September 2019 as Chief Operating Officer. Effective January 2023, Mr. Aguilar was
appointed President and General Manager - Latin America. Prior to joining Intermex, Mr. Aguilar was a senior executive at Sigue Corporation, a money
transfer company; starting in 2005 as the Chief Auditor, where he established the Internal Audit function for its U.S. and Mexico Operations. Following
several successful audit cycles, he was promoted to Chief Operating Officer, responsible for all operations and technology functions of the global
organization. In 2014, Mr. Aguilar was promoted to President of SGS, Ltd. UK, the International Division of Sigue Corporation, with responsibility for all
aspects of the business in the EU, Eastern Europe, Africa, Asia and South Asia. Prior to his roles at Sigue Corporation, Mr. Aguilar held senior roles at
BBVA Bancomer, California Commerce Bank and Dai-Ichi Kangyo Bank of California. Mr. Aguilar holds a bachelor’s degree in English from University
of California at Santa Barbara.

Ernesto Luciano joined International Money Express, Inc. in November 2020 as General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer and subsequently
served as General Counsel and Chief Regulatory Affairs Officer from May 1, 2021 until January 24th, 2022. Effective January 25, 2022, Mr. Luciano was
appointed Corporate Secretary, General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Luciano was the vice president & associate
general counsel of Kaplan Higher Education, LLC, an educational program provider, (“Kaplan”) from 2016 to 2020. Prior to his role at Kaplan, Mr.
Luciano was general counsel for Verizon Media’s U.S. Hispanic and Latin American division (k/n/a Yahoo!) from 2007 to 2016 and also held senior legal
positions with Home Box Office, Inc. (HBO), Gilat Satellite Networks Ltd., and Turner Broadcasting Systems (TBS), among others. Mr. Luciano holds a
bachelor’s degree from the State University of New York at Albany and a Juris Doctor (J.D.) from the New England School of Law in Boston,
Massachusetts.

Christopher Hunt joined International Money Express, Inc. in March 2021 as Chief Information Officer. Effective January 2023, Mr. Hunt was
appointed Acting Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hunt was the Chief Technology Officer of Bankers Healthcare Group, a
financial services company (“Bankers”), from 2013 to 2021. Prior to his role at Bankers, Mr. Hunt worked at several companies where he held a variety of
IT positions with increasing responsibility for all aspects of overall IT strategy, product development, compliance and cybersecurity. Mr. Hunt earned a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with a major in Decision Information Sciences from the University of Florida in Gainesville, Florida.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves certain risks. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only risks that may have a material and
adverse effect on the Company, and the risks described herein are not listed in order of the potential occurrence or severity. There is no assurance that we
have identified, assessed and appropriately addressed all risks affecting our business operations. Additional risks and uncertainties could adversely affect
our business and our results. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, consolidated financial condition or results of operations could be
negatively affected, and the market price for our shares could decline. Further, to the extent that any of the information contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K constitutes forward-looking statements, the risk factors set forth below are cautionary statements, identifying important factors that could cause
the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the
Company. There can also be no assurance that the actual future results, performance, benefits or achievements that we expect from our strategies, systems,
initiatives or products will occur.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

Our financial condition, results of operations, business and cash flow may be negatively affected by a public health crises, such as the coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic.

We may face risks related to health epidemics and pandemics or other outbreaks of communicable diseases such as the global COVID-19 pandemic.
The COVID-19 pandemic has had and continues to have a significant effect on economic conditions in the United States of America (“United States” or
“U.S.”), and to a certain degree continues to cause, significant uncertainties in the U.S. and global economies. Public health officials and medical
professionals have warned that COVID-19 resurgences may continue to occur due to a variety of factors, including the extent of economic activity, social
interaction, vaccination rates and the emergence of potent variants. It is unclear if and when resurgences will occur or how long any resurgence will last,
how severe it will be, and what safety measures governments and businesses will impose in response.

A public health epidemic or pandemic, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, can have a material adverse effect on the demand for our money remittance
services to the extent it impacts the markets in which we operate, and poses the risk that we or our employees, network of agents and consumers and their
beneficiaries may be prevented from conducting business activities for an indefinite period of time, including due to shutdowns requested or mandated by
governmental authorities, or that such epidemic may otherwise interrupt or impair business activities. We continue to prioritize taking appropriate actions to
protect the health and safety of our employees. We have adjusted standard operating procedures within our business operations to ensure continued worker
safety, and are continually monitoring evolving health guidelines and responding to changes as appropriate.

Although certain measures that restrict the normal course of operations of businesses and consumers were still in place for the year ended December
31, 2022, such measures did not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2022. Although the Company’s operations continued effectively despite social distancing and other measures taken in response to the
pandemic, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows remain subject to future developments, including the persistence of the pandemic’s
effects on economic conditions, particularly the level of unemployment of our customers, inflation (including changes in wages) and governmental efforts
to restrain inflation, interest rate levels and foreign exchange volatility, as well as the possibility of resurgences of the pandemic and the severity of any
such resurgence, all of which remain uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time along with any potential material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If we lose key sending agents, our business with key sending agents is reduced or we are unable to maintain our sending agent network under terms
consistent with those currently in place, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Most of our revenue is earned through our sending agent network. Sending agents are the persons who interact with consumers and provide them with
our money remittance services. If sending agents decide to leave our network, our revenue and profits could be adversely affected. The loss of sending
agents may occur for a number of reasons, including competition from other money remittance providers, a sending agent’s dissatisfaction with its
relationship with us or the revenue earned from the relationship, or a sending agent’s unwillingness or inability to comply with our standards or legal
requirements, including those related to compliance with anti-money laundering regulations, anti-fraud measures or agent monitoring. Sending agents also
may generate fewer transactions or reduce locations for reasons unrelated to our relationship with them, including increased competition in their business,
general economic conditions, regulatory costs or other reasons. In addition, larger sending agents may demand additional financial concessions, which
could increase competitive pressure.
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We face intense competition, and if we are unable to continue to compete effectively, our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be adversely affected.

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive, and we face a variety of competitors across our businesses, some of which have larger and
more established customer bases and substantially greater financial, marketing and other resources than we have. We compete in a concentrated industry,
with a small number of large competitors and a large number of small, niche competitors, including consumer money remittance companies, banks, card
associations, web-based services, payment processors, informal remittance systems and others. We also face competition from new digital and
nontraditional remittance service providers within the financial technology industry. We believe our services are differentiated by features and
functionalities, including trust, convenience, service, efficiency of outlets, value, technology and brand recognition. Distribution channels and digital
platforms such as online, account based and mobile solutions continue to evolve and impact the competitive environment for money remittances.

Our future growth depends on our ability to compete effectively. For example, if our services do not offer competitive features and functionalities, we
may lose customers to our competitors, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if we fail to
price our services appropriately relative to our competitors, consumers may not use our services, which could adversely affect our business and financial
results. For example, transaction volume where we face intense competition could be adversely affected by increasing pricing pressures between our money
remittance services and those of some of our competitors, which could reduce margins and adversely affect our financial results. We have historically
implemented and may continue implementing price adjustments from time to time in response to competition and other factors. If we reduce prices in order
to mitigate the actions of competitors, such reductions could adversely affect our financial results in the short term and may also adversely affect our
financial results in the long term if transaction volumes do not increase sufficiently or we do not implement other pricing strategies.

Weakness in economic conditions, in both the U.S. and international markets, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. We are subject to business cycles and other outside factors, including geopolitical events, natural disasters and other factors, that may
negatively affect our business.

Our money remittance business relies in part on the overall strength of economic conditions. Consumer money remittance transactions are affected by,
among other things, employment opportunities and overall economic conditions, such as recession, rising inflation and higher market interest rates.
Additionally, consumers tend to be employed in industries such as construction, information technology, manufacturing, agriculture, hospitality and certain
service industries that tend to be cyclical and are more significantly affected by weak economic conditions than other industries. This may result in reduced
job opportunities for consumers in the United States or other countries that are important to our business, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, increases in employment opportunities may lag other elements of any economic recovery.

If general market and economic conditions in the United States or other countries important to our business were to deteriorate, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely impacted. Our agents may have reduced sales or business as a result of weak economic conditions.
As a result, our agents may reduce their number of locations, hours of operation, or cease doing business altogether. If consumer transactions decline due to
deteriorating economic conditions, we may be unable to timely and effectively reduce our operating costs or take other actions in response, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our employees, agents and consumers in a particular country or region in the
world may be negatively affected as a result of a variety of diversions, including: geopolitical events, such as war, the threat of war, or terrorist activity;
natural disasters or the effects of climate change (such as drought, flooding, wildfires, increased storm severity, and sea level rise); power shortages or
outages; major public health issues, including pandemics (such as COVID-19); and significant local, national or global events capturing the attention of a
large part of the population. If any of these, or any other factors, disrupt a country or region where we have a significant workforce, customers or agents,
our business could be materially adversely affected. Additionally, economic or political instability, wars, civil unrest, terrorism and natural disasters may
make money transfers to, from or within a particular country more difficult. The inability to timely complete money transfers could adversely affect our
business.

If consumer confidence in our business or in consumer money remittance providers generally deteriorates, our business, financial condition and
results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our business is built on consumer confidence in our brands and our ability to provide convenient, reliable and value-added money remittance services.
Erosion in consumer confidence in our business, or in consumer money remittance service providers as a means to transfer money more generally, could

adversely impact transaction volumes which would in turn adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A number of factors could adversely affect consumer confidence in our business, or in consumer money remittance providers more generally, many of
which are beyond our control, and could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. These factors include:

 the quality of our services and our customer experience, and our ability to meet evolving consumer needs and preferences;
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« failure of our agents to deliver services in accordance with our requirements;

+ reputational concerns resulting from actual or perceived events, including those related to fraud, consumer protection, money laundering,
corruption or other matters;

» changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations, or regulator or judicial interpretation thereof, that have the effect of making it more difficult or
less desirable to transfer money using consumer money remittance service providers, including additional customer due diligence, identification,
reporting, and recordkeeping requirements;

+ actions by federal, state or foreign regulators that interfere with our ability to remit consumers’ money reliably; for example, attempts to seize
money remittance funds, imposition of tariffs or limits on our ability to, or that prohibit us from, remitting money in the corridors in which we
operate;

+ federal, state or foreign legal requirements, including those that require us to provide consumer or transaction data, and other requirements or to a
greater extent than is currently required;

* any interruption or downtime in our systems, including those caused by fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorism,
vendor failure, unauthorized entry and computer viruses or disruptions in our workforce; and

» any attack or breach of our computer systems or other data storage facilities resulting in a compromise of personal data.

A significant portion of consumers that use our services are migrants. Consumer advocacy groups or governmental agencies could consider migrants to
be disadvantaged and entitled to protection, enhanced consumer disclosure, or other different treatment. If consumer advocacy groups are able to generate
widespread support for actions that are detrimental to our business, then our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

Our profit margins may be adversely affected by expansion into new geographic or product markets, which we may enter by acquisition or otherwise,
that do not have the same profitability as our core markets.

Although expansion of our business into new geographic or product markets may increase our aggregate revenues, such new geographic or product
markets may be more expensive to operate in and may require us to receive lower payment per wire or remittance than that which we currently experience
in our core geographic markets of Mexico and Guatemala or other more established product markets due to, among other things:

» increased compliance and regulatory costs requiring us to dedicate more expense, time and resources to comply with such regulatory requirements;

» potentially higher operational expenses, such as higher agent fees, taxes, fees, technology costs, support costs or other charges and expenses
associated with engaging in the money transfer business in different jurisdictions or as a result of new product offerings;

+ reduced pricing models due to more intense competition with entities that may have more experience and resources as well as more established
relationships with relevant customers, regulators and industry participants;

» potentially reduced demand for remittance services; and

« difficulty building and maintaining a network of sending and paying agents in a particular geographic area or with respect to a particular product
offering.

We process remittances to Latin America, Africa and Asia from the United States and from Canada to Latin America and Africa. Additionally, we have
expanded our product and service portfolio to include online payment options, pre-paid debit cards and direct deposit payroll cards, which may present
different cost, demand, regulatory and risk profiles relative to our core remittance business. If we are unable to capitalize on these markets, or if we spend
significant time and resources on expansion plans that fail or are delayed, our business will be adversely affected. Even if we are successful, we will be
exposed to additional risks in these markets that we do not face in the United States or in our core remittance business, which could have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Acquisitions and integration of new businesses create risks and may affect operating results. Failure to successfully complete or manage strategic
transactions can adversely affect our business.

We regularly review our businesses strategy and evaluate potential acquisitions, joint ventures, divestitures, and other strategic transactions. We have
acquired and may acquire businesses both inside and outside the United States, such as the acquisition of La
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Nacional on November 1, 2022, and the pending acquisition of LAN Holdings expected in 2023. The success of these transactions is dependent upon,
among other things, our ability to realize the full extent of the expected returns, benefits, cost savings or synergies as a result of a transaction within the
anticipated time frame, or at all, and receipt of necessary consents, clearances and approvals. Acquisitions often involve additional or increased risks
including, for example:

* managing the complex process of integrating the acquired company’s employees, products and services, technology and other assets in an effort to
realize the projected value of the acquired company and the projected synergies of the acquisition;

+ realizing the anticipated financial benefits from these acquisitions and where necessary, improving controls of these acquired businesses (including
internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures);

* retaining existing customers and attracting new customers;

* maintaining good relations with agents of acquired companies;

* managing geographically separated organizations, systems and facilities;

* managing multi-jurisdictional operating, tax and financing structures or any inefficiencies;
* integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds and organizational cultures;

* integrating the acquired systems and technologies into our Company;

+ complying with regulatory requirements, including those particular to the industry and jurisdiction of the acquired business, and the need to
improve regulatory compliance systems and controls;

* obtaining and enforcing intellectual property rights in some foreign countries;
+ entering new markets with the services of the acquired businesses; and

+ general economic and political conditions, including legal and other barriers to cross-border investment in general, or by United States companies
in particular.

Integrating operations could also cause an interruption of, or divert resources from, one or more of our businesses and could result in the loss of key
personnel. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with an acquisition and the integration of the
acquired company’s operations could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. Strategic
transactions that are not successfully completed or managed effectively, or our failure to effectively manage the risks associated with such transactions,
could result in adverse effects on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Current and future data privacy and cybersecurity laws and regulations could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are subject to requirements relating to data privacy and cybersecurity under U.S. federal, state and foreign laws. For example, in the U.S. the FTC
routinely investigates the privacy practices of companies and has commenced enforcement actions against many, resulting in multi-million dollar
settlements and multi-year agreements governing the settling companies’ privacy practices. If we are unable to meet such requirements, we may be subject
to significant fines or penalties. Furthermore, certain industry groups require us to adhere to privacy requirements in addition to federal, state and foreign
laws, and certain of our business relationships depend upon our compliance with these requirements.

As the number of jurisdictions enacting privacy and related laws increases and the scope of these laws and enforcement efforts expands, we will
increasingly become subject to new and varying requirements. For example, the CCPA requires covered companies to provide California consumers with
new disclosures and expands the rights afforded to consumers regarding their data. The costs of compliance with, and other burdens imposed by, the CCPA
and similar laws may limit the use and adoption of our products and services and/or require us to incur substantial compliance costs, which could have an
adverse impact on our business. In addition, it is anticipated that the California Privacy Rights Act of 2020 (CPRA), effective January 1, 2023, will expand
the CCPA. For example, the CPRA establishes a new California Privacy Protection Agency to implement and enforce the CPRA, which could increase the
risk of an enforcement action. Other states have also enacted data privacy laws. For example, Virginia passed the Consumer Data Protection Act, Colorado
passed the Colorado Privacy Act, and Utah passed the Consumer Privacy Act, all of which become effective in 2023. Additionally, several states and
localities have enacted measures related to the use of artificial intelligence and machine learning in products and services. In addition, data privacy and
security laws have been proposed at the federal, state, and local levels in recent years,
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which could further complicate compliance efforts. Failure to comply with existing or future data privacy and cybersecurity laws, regulations and
requirements, including by reason of inadvertent disclosure of personal information, could result in significant adverse consequences, including
reputational harm, civil litigation, regulatory enforcement, costs of remediation, increased expenses for security systems and personnel, harm to our
consumers and harm to our agents.

In addition, in connection with regulatory requirements to assist in the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing and pursuant to legal
obligations and authorizations, we make information available to certain U.S. federal and state, as well as certain foreign, government agencies.
Periodically, we receive data sharing requests by these agencies, particularly in connection with efforts to prevent terrorist financing, human traffic or
reduce the risk of identity theft. During the same period, there has also been increased public attention to the corporate use and disclosure of personal
information, accompanied by legislation and regulations intended to strengthen data protection, information security and consumer privacy. These
regulatory goals may conflict, and the law in these areas is not consistent or settled. While we believe that we are compliant with our regulatory
responsibilities, the legal, political and business environments in these areas are rapidly changing, and subsequent legislation, regulation, litigation, court
rulings or other events could expose us to increased program costs, liability and reputational damage that could have a material and adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our current risk management and compliance systems may not be able to exhaustively assess or mitigate all risks to which we are exposed from a
transaction monitoring perspective.

We are engaged in ongoing efforts to enhance our risk management and compliance policies, procedures and systems to assure compliance with anti-
money laundering laws and economic sanctions regulations. We have implemented, and are continuing to implement, policies, procedures and systems
designed to address these laws and regulations, including monitoring on an automated and manual basis, the transactions processed through our systems
and restricting business involving certain countries or individuals. However, the implementation of such policies, procedures and systems may be subject to
human error. Further, we may be exposed to fraud or other misconduct committed by our employees, or other third parties, including but not limited to
consumers and agents, or other events that are out of our control. Additionally, our risk management policies, procedures and systems are based upon our
experience in the industry, and may not be adequate or effective in managing our future risk exposures or protecting us against unidentified or unanticipated
risks, which could be significantly greater than those indicated by our past experience. As a result, we can offer no assurances that these policies,
procedures and systems will be adequate to detect or prevent money laundering activity or OFAC violations. If any of these policies, procedures or systems
do not operate properly, or are disabled, or are subject to intentional manipulation or inadvertent human error, we could suffer financial loss, a disruption of
our business, regulatory intervention or reputational damage.

Our services might be used for illegal or improper purposes, such as consumer fraud or money laundering, which could expose us to additional
liability.

Our services remain susceptible to potentially illegal or improper uses as criminals are using increasingly sophisticated methods to engage in illegal
activities involving internet services and payment services, such as identity theft, fraud and paper instrument counterfeiting. As we make more of our
services available online and via Internet-enabled mobile devices, we subject ourselves to new types of consumer fraud risk because requirements relating
to consumer authentication are more complex with internet services and such other technologies. Additionally, it is possible that our agents could engage in
fraud against consumers. We use a variety of tools to protect against fraud; however, these tools may not always be successful. Allegations of fraud may
result in fines, settlements, litigation expenses and reputational damage.

Other illegal or improper uses of our services may include money laundering, terrorist financing, drug trafficking, human trafficking, illegal online
gaming, romance and other online scams, illegal sexually-oriented services, prohibited sales of pharmaceuticals, fraudulent sale of goods or services, piracy
of software, movies, music and other copyrighted or trademarked goods, unauthorized uses of credit and debit cards or bank accounts and similar
misconduct. Users of our services also may encourage, promote, facilitate or instruct others to engage in illegal activities. If the measures we have taken are
too restrictive and inadvertently screen proper transactions, this could diminish our customer experience which could harm our business. There is no
assurance that the measures we have taken to detect and reduce the risk of this kind of conduct will stop all illegal or improper uses of our services. Our
business could be harmed if consumers use our system for illegal or improper purposes.

A breach of security in the systems on which we rely could adversely affect our reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on a variety of technologies to provide security for our systems. Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of
cryptography or other events or developments, including improper acts by third parties, may result in a compromise or breach of the security measures we
use to protect our systems. We obtain, transmit and store confidential consumer, employer and agent information in connection with some of our services.
These activities are subject to laws and regulations in the United States and other jurisdictions. The requirements imposed by these laws and regulations,
which often differ materially among the many jurisdictions, are designed to protect the privacy of personal information and to prevent that information
from being inappropriately disclosed. Any security breaches in
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our computer networks, databases or facilities could lead to the inappropriate use or disclosure of personal information, which could harm our business,
adversely affect consumers’ confidence in our or our agents’ business, result in inquiries and fines or penalties from regulatory or governmental authorities,
cause a loss of consumers, damage our reputation and subject us to lawsuits and to potential financial losses. In addition, we may be required to expend
significant capital and other resources to protect against these security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches. Our agents and third-
party independent contractors may also experience security breaches involving the storage and transmission of our data as well as the ability to initiate
unauthorized transactions. If users gain improper access to our, our agents’ or our third-party independent contractors’ computer networks or databases,
they may be able to steal, publish, delete or modify confidential customer information or generate unauthorized money remittances. Such a breach could
expose us to monetary liability, losses and legal proceedings, lead to reputational harm, cause a disruption in our operations, or make consumers and agents
less confident in our services.

Our business is particularly dependent on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of our information technology, computer network systems and data
centers. Disruptions to these systems and data centers could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our ability to provide reliable services largely depends on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of our computer network systems and data centers.
Our business involves the physical and electronic movement of large sums of money and the management of data necessary to do so. The success of our
business particularly depends upon the efficient and error-free handling of transactions and data. We rely on the ability of our employees and our internal
systems and procedures to process these transactions in an efficient, uninterrupted and error-free manner.

In the event of a breakdown, catastrophic event (such as fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure or physical break-in), security
breach, computer virus, improper operation, improper action by our employees, agents, consumers, financial institutions or third-party vendors or any other
event impacting our systems or processes or our agents’ or vendors’ systems or processes, we could suffer financial loss, loss of consumers, regulatory
sanctions, lawsuits and damage to our reputation or consumers’ confidence in our business. The measures we have enacted, such as the implementation of
business continuity and disaster recovery plans and redundant computer systems, may not be successful. We may also experience problems other than
system failures, including software defects, development delays and installation difficulties, which would harm our business and reputation and expose us
to potential liability and increased operating expenses. In addition, any work stoppages or other labor actions by employees who support our systems or
perform any of our major functions could adversely affect our business.

In addition, our ability to continue to provide our services to a growing number of agents and consumers in a growing number of countries, as well as
to enhance our existing services and offer new services across new distribution platforms, is dependent on our information technology systems. If we are
unable to effectively manage the technology associated with our business, we could experience increased costs, reductions in system availability and loss of
agents or consumers.

If we fail to successfully develop and timely introduce new and enhanced services or if we make substantial investments in an unsuccessful new service
or infrastructure change, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our future growth will depend, in part, on our ability to continue to develop and successfully introduce new and enhanced methods of providing
money remittance services that keep pace with competitive introductions, technological changes, and the demands and preferences of our agents,
consumers and the financial institutions with which we conduct our business. Distribution channels such as online, account based, and mobile solutions
continue to evolve and impact the competitive environment for money remittances. If alternative payment mechanisms become widely accepted as
substitutes for our current services, and we do not develop and offer similar alternative payment mechanisms successfully and on a timely basis, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. We may make future acquisitions and investments or enter into strategic
alliances to develop new technologies and services or to implement infrastructure changes to further our strategic objectives, strengthen our existing
businesses and remain competitive. Such acquisitions, investments and strategic alliances, however, are inherently risky, and we cannot guarantee that such
investments or strategic alliances will be successful.

A significant percentage of our banking relationships are concentrated in a few banks.

A substantial portion of the transactions that we conduct with and through banks are concentrated in a few banks, notably Wells Fargo, Bank of
America and US Bank. Because of the current concentration of our major banking relationships, if we lose such a banking relationship, which could be the
result of many factors including, but not limited to, changes in regulation, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected.
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A significant portion of our paying agents are concentrated in a few large banks and financial institutions or large retail chains.

A substantial portion of our paying agents are concentrated in a few large banks and financial institutions and large retail chains. Because of the current
concentration, if we lose an institution as a paying agent, which could be the result of many factors including, but not limited to, changes in regulation, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. Elektra, our largest paying agent by volume, accounted for
approximately 24% of Intermex’s total remittance volume in fiscal year 2022. The loss of Elektra as one of our paying agents could have a material adverse
impact on our business and results of operations.

Major bank failure or sustained financial market illiquidity, or illiquidity at our clearing, cash management and custodial financial institutions, could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We face certain risks in the event of a sustained deterioration of domestic or international financial market liquidity, as well as in the event of sustained
deterioration in the liquidity, or failure, of our clearing, cash management and custodial financial institutions. In particular:

*  We may be unable to access funds in our deposit accounts and clearing accounts on a timely basis to pay money remittances and make related
settlements to agents. Any resulting need to access other sources of liquidity or short-term borrowings would increase our costs. Any delay or
inability to pay money remittances or make related settlements with our agents could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

* In the event of a major bank failure, we could face major risks to the recovery of our bank deposits used for the purpose of settling with our agents.
A substantial portion of our cash and cash equivalents held at U.S. banks are not subject to federal deposit insurance protection against loss as they
exceed the federal deposit insurance limit. Similarly, we hold cash and cash equivalents at foreign banks, which may not enjoy benefits such as the
United States’ federal deposit insurance protection.

*  We may be unable to borrow from financial institutions or institutional investors on favorable terms, or at all, which could adversely impact our
ability to pursue our growth strategy and fund key strategic initiatives.

If financial liquidity deteriorates, there can be no assurance we will not experience an adverse effect, which may be material, on our ability to access
capital or contingent liquidity sources.

Changes in banking industry regulation and practice could make it more difficult for us and our sending agents to maintain depository accounts with
banks, which would harm our business.

The banking industry, in light of increased regulatory oversight, is continually examining its business relationships with companies that offer money
remittance services and with retail agents that collect and remit cash collected from end consumers. Certain major national and international banks have
withdrawn from providing service to money remittance services businesses. Should our existing relationship banks decide to not offer depository services
to companies engaged in processing money remittance transactions, or to retail agents that collect and remit cash from end consumers, our ability to
complete money remittances, and to administer and collect fees from money remittance transactions, could be adversely affected.

Our regulatory status and the regulatory status of our agents as MSBs could affect our ability to offer our services. We also rely on bank accounts to
provide our payment services. We and some of our agents may in the future have difficulty establishing or maintaining banking relationships due to the
banks’ policies, including policies with respect to anti-money laundering. If we or a significant number of our agents are unable to maintain existing or
establish new banking relationships, or if we or these agents face higher fees and other costs to maintain or establish new bank accounts, our ability and the
ability of our agents to continue to offer our services may be adversely impacted.

We face credit risks from our sending agents and financial institutions with which we do business.

The majority of our business is conducted through independent sending agents that provide our services to consumers at their business locations. Our
sending agents receive the proceeds from the sale of our money remittances, and we must then collect these funds from the sending agents. If a sending
agent becomes insolvent, files for bankruptcy, commits fraud or otherwise fails to remit money remittance proceeds to us, we must nonetheless complete
the money remittance on behalf of the consumer.

We monitor the creditworthiness of our sending agents and the financial institutions with which we do business on an ongoing basis. There can be no

assurance that the models and approaches we use to assess and monitor the creditworthiness of our sending agents and these financial institutions will be
sufficiently predictive, and we may be unable to detect and take steps to timely mitigate an increased credit risk.
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In the event of a sending agent bankruptcy, we would generally be in the position of creditor, possibly with limited security or financial guarantees of
performance, and we would therefore be at risk of a reduced recovery. We are not insured against credit losses, except in circumstances of agent theft or
fraud. Significant credit losses could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Retaining our chief executive officer and other key executives and recruiting and retaining qualified personnel is important to our continued success,
and any inability to attract and retain such personnel could harm our operations.

Our ability to successfully operate our business will depend upon the efforts of certain key personnel. The development and implementation of our
strategy has depended in large part on our Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of Directors, Robert Lisy. The retention of Mr.
Lisy is important to our continued success, and we expect him to remain with the Company for the foreseeable future.

In addition to Mr. Lisy, we have a number of key executives who have a significant impact on our business. The unexpected loss of key personnel may
adversely affect the operations and profitability of the Company. Our success also depends to a large extent upon our ability to attract and retain key
employees. Qualified individuals with experience in our industry are in high demand. Our IT personnel have designed and implemented key portions of our
proprietary software and are crucial to the success of our business. In addition, legal or enforcement actions against compliance and other personnel in the
money remittance industry may affect our ability to attract and retain key employees and directors. The lack of management continuity or the loss of one or
more members of our executive management team could harm our business and future development. A failure to recruit and retain key personnel including
operating, marketing, financial and technical personnel, could also have a material and adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We and our agents are subject to numerous U.S. and international laws and regulations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result
in material settlements, fines or penalties and reputational harm, and changes in these laws or regulations could result in increased operating costs or
reduced demand for our services, all of which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment, and our business is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations that vary from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction. We are also subject to oversight by various governmental agencies, both in the United States and abroad and, in any given year, we are subject
to examinations by relevant federal and state agencies. Lawmakers and regulators in the United States in particular have increased their focus on the
regulation of the financial services industry. New or modified regulations and increased oversight may have unforeseen or unintended adverse effects on
the financial services industry, which could affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The money transfer business is subject to a variety of regulations aimed at preventing money laundering, human trafficking and terrorism. We are
subject to U.S. federal anti-money laundering laws, including the BSA and the requirements of the U.S. Treasury Department’s OFAC, which prohibit us
from transmitting money to specified countries or to or from prohibited individuals. Additionally, we are subject to anti-money laundering laws in the other
countries in which we operate. We are also subject to financial services regulations, money transfer licensing regulations, consumer protection laws,
currency control regulations, escheat laws, privacy and data protection laws and anti-bribery laws. Many of these laws are constantly evolving, unclear and
inconsistent across various jurisdictions, making compliance challenging. Subsequent legislation, regulation, litigation, court rulings or other events could
expose us to increased program costs, liability and reputational damage.

As a MSB, we are subject to reporting, recordkeeping and anti-money laundering provisions in the United States as well as many other jurisdictions. In
the past few years there have been significant regulatory reviews and actions taken by U.S. and other regulators and law enforcement agencies against
banks, MSBs and other financial institutions related to money laundering, and the trend appears to be greater scrutiny by regulators of potential money
laundering activity through financial institutions. We are also subject to regulatory oversight and enforcement by FinCEN. Any determination that we have
violated the anti-money-laundering laws could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Dodd-Frank Act increases the regulation and oversight of the financial services industry. The Dodd-Frank Act requires enforcement by various
governmental agencies, including the CFPB. We could be subject to fines or other penalties if we are found to have violated the Dodd-Frank Act’s
prohibition against unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices. The CFPB’s authority to change regulations adopted in the past by other regulators could
increase our compliance costs and litigation exposure. Our litigation exposure may also be increased by the CFPB’s authority to limit or ban pre-dispute
arbitration clauses. We may also be liable for failure of our agents to comply with the Dodd-Frank Act. The legislation and implementation of regulations
associated with the Dodd-Frank Act have increased our costs of compliance and required changes in the way we and our agents conduct business. In
addition, we are subject to periodic examination by the CFPB. These examinations may require us to change the way we conduct business or increase the
costs of compliance.
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In addition, we are subject to escheatment laws in the United States. We are subject to the laws of various states in the United States which from time
to time take inconsistent or conflicting positions regarding the requirements to escheat property to a particular state, making compliance challenging. In
some instances, we escheat items to states pursuant to statutory requirements and then subsequently pay those items to consumers. For such amounts, we
must file claims for reimbursement from the states.

Any violation by us of the laws and regulations set forth above could lead to significant settlements, fines or penalties and could limit our ability to
conduct business in some jurisdictions. Our systems, employees and processes may not be sufficient to detect and prevent violations of the laws and
regulations set forth above by our agents, which could also lead to us being subject to significant settlements, fines or penalties. In addition to these fines
and penalties, a failure by us or our agents to comply with applicable laws and regulations also could seriously damage our reputation, result in diminished
revenue and profit and increase our operating costs and could result in, among other things, revocation of required licenses or registrations, loss of
approved status, termination of contracts with banks or retail representatives, administrative enforcement actions and fines, class action lawsuits, cease and
desist or consent orders and civil and criminal liability. The occurrence of one or more of these events could have a material and adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

In certain cases, regulations may provide administrative discretion regarding enforcement. As a result, regulations may be applied inconsistently across
the industry, which could result in additional costs for us that may not be required to be incurred by our competitors. If we were required to maintain a price
higher than most of our competitors to reflect our regulatory costs, this could harm our ability to compete effectively, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, changes in laws, regulations or other industry practices and standards, or interpretations
of legal or regulatory requirements, may reduce the market for or value of our services or render our services less profitable or obsolete. Changes in the
laws affecting the kinds of entities that are permitted to act as money remittance agents (such as changes in requirements for capitalization or ownership)
could adversely affect our ability to distribute our services and the cost of providing such services. Many of our sending agents are in the check cashing
industry. Any regulatory action that negatively impacts check cashers could also cause this portion of our agent base to decline. If onerous regulatory
requirements were imposed on our agents, the requirements could lead to a loss of agents, which, in turn, could adversely affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Regulators around the world compare approaches to the regulation of the payments and other industries. Consequently, a development in any one
country, state or region may influence regulatory approaches in other jurisdictions. Similarly, new laws and regulations in a country, state or region
involving one service may cause lawmakers there to extend the regulations to another service. As a result, the risks created by any new laws or regulations
are magnified by the potential that they may be replicated, affecting our business in another market or involving another service. Conversely, if widely
varying regulations come into existence worldwide, we may have difficulty adjusting our services, fees, foreign exchange spreads and other important
aspects of our business, with the same effect.

Litigation or investigations involving us or our agents could result in material settlements, fines or penallties.

We have been, and in the future may be, subject to allegations and complaints that individuals or entities have used our money remittance services for
fraud-induced money transfers, as well as certain money laundering activities, which may result in fines, penalties, judgments, settlements and litigation
expenses. We also are the subject from time to time of litigation related to our business.

Regulatory and judicial proceedings and potential adverse developments in connection with ongoing litigation may adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. There also may be adverse publicity associated with lawsuits and investigations that could decrease agent and
consumer acceptance of our services. Additionally, our business has been in the past, and may be in the future, the subject of class action lawsuits,
regulatory actions and investigations and other general litigation. The outcome of class action lawsuits, regulatory actions and investigations and other
litigation is difficult to assess or quantify but may include substantial fines and expenses, as well as the revocation of required licenses or registrations or
the loss of approved status, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations or consumers’
confidence in our business. Plaintiffs or regulatory agencies in these lawsuits, actions or investigations may seek recovery of very large or indeterminate
amounts, and the magnitude of these actions may remain unknown for substantial periods of time. The cost to defend or settle future lawsuits or
investigations may be significant. In addition, improper activities, lawsuits or investigations involving our agents may adversely impact our business,
financial condition and results of operations or reputation even if we are not directly involved.

We could be adversely affected by violations of the FCPA or other similar anti-corruption laws.

Our operations around the world, particularly in LAC countries and Africa, are subject to anti-corruption laws and regulations, including restrictions
imposed by the U.S. FCPA. The FCPA and similar anti-corruption laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from
making improper payments to government officials or employees of commercial enterprises for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business, a business
advantage or a governmental approval. We operate in parts of the world that are perceived as having higher incidence of corruption and, in certain
circumstances, strict compliance with anti-corruption laws may conflict with local customs and practices. Because of the scope and nature of our
operations, we experience a higher risk associated with compliance with the FCPA and similar anti-corruption laws than many other companies.
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Our employees and agents interact with government officials on our behalf, including as necessary to obtain licenses and other regulatory approvals
necessary to operate our business, employ expatriates and resolve tax disputes. We also have a number of contracts with third-party paying agents that are
owned or controlled by non-U.S. governments. These interactions and contracts create a risk of payments or offers of payments by one of our employees or
agents that could be in violation of the FCPA or other similar anti-corruption laws. Under the FCPA and other similar anti-corruption laws, we may be held
liable for actions taken by our employees or agents.

In recent years, there have been significant regulatory reviews and actions taken by the United States and other governments related to anti-corruption
laws, and the trend appears to be greater scrutiny on payments to, and relationships with, foreign entities and individuals.

There can be no assurance that all of our employees and agents will abide by the policies and procedures we have implemented to promote compliance
with local laws and regulations as well as U.S. laws and regulations, including FCPA and similar anti-corruption laws. If we are found to be liable for
violations of the FCPA or similar anti-corruption laws in other jurisdictions, either due to our own or others’ acts or inadvertence, we could suffer, among
other consequences, substantial civil and criminal penalties, including fines, incarceration, prohibitions or limitations on the conduct of our business, the
loss of our financing facilities and significant reputational damage, any of which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Government or regulatory investigations into potential violations of the FCPA or other similar anti-corruption laws by U.S. agencies or other
governments could also have a material and adverse effect on our results of business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, detecting,
investigating and resolving actual or alleged violations of the FCPA and other similar anti-corruption laws is expensive and can consume significant time
and attention of our senior management.

We conduct money remittance transactions through agents in regions that are politically volatile or, in a limited number of cases, may be subject to
certain OFAC restrictions.

We conduct money remittance transactions through agents in regions that are politically volatile or, in a limited number of cases, may be subject to
certain OFAC restrictions. It is possible that our money remittance services or other services could be used in contravention of applicable law or
regulations. Such circumstances could result in increased compliance costs, regulatory inquiries, suspension or revocation of required licenses or
registrations, seizure or forfeiture of assets and the imposition of civil and criminal fines and penalties. In addition to monetary fines or penalties that we
could incur, we could be subject to reputational harm that could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

New business initiatives, such as modifications to our current product offerings or the introduction of new products, may modify our risk profile from a
regulatory perspective.

A number of our recent and planned business initiatives and expansions of existing businesses may bring us into contact, directly or indirectly, with
information, individuals and entities that are not within our traditional customer and agent network and that could expose us to new or enhanced regulatory
scrutiny. For example, our offering of services across newer distribution platforms could expose us to increased anti-money laundering, anti-terrorist
financing and consumer protection regulations and compliance requirements. Any change in our risk profile stemming from this or any of our other
business initiatives could result in increased compliance costs and litigation exposure, which could adversely impact our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Changes in U.S. tax laws could adversely affect our results of operations.

Changes in tax legislation by U.S. federal, state and local governments could impact our effective tax rates. If statutory tax rates are increased, our
results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Our business and results of operations may be adversely affected by foreign political, economic and social instability risks, foreign currency restrictions
and devaluation, and various local laws associated with doing business primarily in LAC countries.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenue from our money remittance transactions from the United States to the LAC corridor, particularly Mexico
and Guatemala, and we are exposed to certain political, economic and other uncertainties not encountered in U.S. operations. Consequently, actions or
events in LAC countries that are beyond our control could restrict our ability to operate there or otherwise adversely affect the profitability of those
operations. Furthermore, changes in the business, regulatory or political climate in any of those countries, or significant fluctuations in currency exchange
rates, could affect our ability to expand or continue our operations there, which could have a material and adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, we are exposed to new political, economic and other uncertainties as a result of the geographic expansion to
Africa and Asia, any of which could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The countries in which we operate may impose or tighten foreign currency exchange control restrictions, taxes or limitations with regard to repatriation
of earnings and investments from these countries. If exchange control restrictions, taxes or limitations are imposed or
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tightened, our ability to receive dividends or other payments from affected jurisdictions could be reduced, which could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, corporate, contract, property, insolvency, competition, securities and other laws and regulations in many of the countries in which we
operate have been, and continue to be, substantially revised. Therefore, the interpretation and procedural safeguards of the new legal and regulatory
systems are in the process of being developed and defined, and existing laws and regulations may be applied inconsistently. Also, in some circumstances, it
may not be possible to obtain the legal remedies provided for under these laws and regulations in a reasonably timely manner, if at all.

Our ability to grow in international markets and our future results could be adversely affected by a number of factors, including:

+ changes in geopolitical and economic conditions and potential instability in certain regions;

 restrictions on money transfers to, from and between certain countries;

* inability to recruit and retain paying agents and consumers for new corridors;

» currency exchange controls, new currency adoptions and repatriation issues;

» changes in regulatory requirements or in foreign policy, including the adoption of domestic or foreign laws, regulations and interpretations
detrimental to our business;

» possible increased costs and additional regulatory burdens imposed on our business;
+ the implementation of U.S. sanctions, resulting in bank closures in certain countries and the ultimate freezing of our assets;
* burdens of complying with a wide variety of laws and regulations;

+ possible fraud or theft losses, and lack of compliance by international representatives in foreign legal jurisdictions where collection and legal
enforcement may be difficult or costly;

* inability to maintain or improve our software and technology systems;
» reduced protection of our intellectual property rights;

+ unfavorable tax rules or trade barriers; and

* inability to secure, train or monitor international agents.

If we are unable to adequately protect our brands and the intellectual property rights related to our existing and any new or enhanced services, or if we
infringe on the rights of others, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

The Intermex brand as well as other brands we operate under are critical to our business. We utilize trademark registrations and other tools to protect
our brands. We have not applied for trademark registrations for our name and logo in all geographic markets where we provide services. In those markets
where we have applied for trademark registrations, failure to secure those registrations could adversely affect our ability to enforce and defend our
trademark rights. Our business would be harmed if we were unable to adequately protect our brands and the value of our brands was to decrease as a result.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark and copyright laws and trade secret protection and invention assignment, confidentiality or license
agreements to protect the intellectual property rights related to our services, all of which only offer limited protection. We may be subject to third-party
claims alleging that we infringe their intellectual property rights or have misappropriated other proprietary rights. We may be required to spend resources to
defend such claims or to protect and police our own rights. Some of our legal rights in information or technology that we deem proprietary may not be
protected by intellectual property laws, particularly in foreign jurisdictions. The loss of our intellectual property protection, the inability to secure or
enforce intellectual property protection or to successfully defend against claims of intellectual property infringement or misappropriation could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

The processes and systems we employ may be subject to patent protection by other parties, and any claims could adversely affect our business and
results of operations.
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In certain countries, including the United States, patent laws permit the protection of processes and systems. We employ processes and systems in
various markets that have been used in the industry by other parties for many years. We or other companies that use these processes and systems consider
many of them to be in the public domain. If a person were to assert that it holds a patent covering any of the processes or systems we use, we would be
required to defend ourselves against such claim. If unsuccessful, we may be required to pay damages for past infringement, which could be trebled if the
infringement was found to be willful. We also may be required to seek a license to continue to use the processes or systems. Such a license may require
either a single payment or an ongoing license fee. No assurance can be given that we will be able to obtain a license which is reasonable in fee and scope. If
a patent owner is unwilling to grant such a license, or we decide not to obtain such a license, we may be required to modify our processes and systems to
avoid future infringement.

Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness
The Company’s indebtedness may limit our operating flexibility and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We had approximately $156.9 million of indebtedness as of December 31, 2022, consisting of $80.9 million in outstanding borrowings under the term
loan facility and $76.0 million in outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Our indebtedness, which bears interest at variable rates, could
have important consequences to our investors, including, but not limited to:

* increasing our vulnerability to, and reducing our flexibility to respond to, general adverse economic and industry conditions;

+ requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to servicing debt, including from increased interest rates;
 limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the competitive environment; and

* limiting our ability to borrow additional funds and increasing the cost of any such borrowing.

We also are subject to capital requirements imposed by various regulatory bodies in the jurisdictions in which we operate. We may need access to
external capital to support these regulatory requirements in order to maintain our licenses and our ability to earn revenue in these jurisdictions. An
interruption of our access to capital could impair our ability to conduct business if our regulatory capital falls below requirements.

Our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains covenants that may impair our ability to conduct business.

Our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the "A&R Credit Agreement") contains operating covenants and financial covenants that may in each
case limit management’s discretion with respect to certain business matters. Among other things, these covenants restrict our and our subsidiaries’ ability
to, among other things, grant liens, incur additional indebtedness, make acquisitions or investments, dispose of certain assets, change the nature of their
businesses, enter into certain transactions with affiliates, amend the terms of material indebtedness or make certain restricted payments, including the
repurchase of shares of our common stock above certain limits. We are required to comply with a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a maximum
consolidated leverage ratio. As a result of these covenants, we may be limited in how we conduct our business. Failure to comply with such covenants may
lead to default and acceleration under our A&R Credit Agreement and may impair our ability to conduct business. We may not be able to maintain
compliance with these covenants in the future and, if we fail to do so, that we will be able to obtain waivers from the lenders and/or amend the covenants,
which may result in foreclosure of our assets. See the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations of Intermex—Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information.

Under our A&R Credit Agreement, upon the occurrence of an event of default, we will be unable to continue to borrow funds under the A&R Credit
Agreement for so long as an event of default is not remedied or waived. In addition, the lenders will be able to elect to declare all amounts outstanding
under the A&R Credit Agreement to be immediately due and payable and terminate all commitments to lend additional funds. If we are unable to repay
those amounts, the lenders under the A&R Credit Agreement could proceed to foreclose against our collateral that secures that indebtedness. We have
granted the lenders a security interest in substantially all of our assets, including the assets of certain subsidiaries.

Risks Relating to Our Securities

Because we have no current plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future, you may not receive any return on investment
unless you sell your common stock for a price greater than that which you paid for it.

We have no current plans to pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future. The declaration, amount, and payment of any future dividends on shares
of common stock will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors. Our board of directors may take into account
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general and economic conditions, our financial condition, and results of operations, our available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capital
requirements, contractual, legal, tax, and regulatory restrictions, implications on the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders or by our subsidiaries
to us, and such other factors as our board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is limited by covenants of our existing
and outstanding indebtedness and may be limited by covenants of any future indebtedness we or our subsidiaries incur. As a result, you may not receive
any return on an investment in our common stock unless you sell our common stock for a price greater than that which you paid for it.

Our ability to meet expectations and projections in any research or reports published by securities or industry analysts, or a lack of coverage by
securities or industry analysts, could result in a depressed market price and limited liquidity for our common stock.

The trading market for our common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts may publish about us, our
business, our market, or our competitors. If no or few securities or industry analysts cover the Company, our stock price would likely be less than that
which we would obtain if we had such coverage and the liquidity, or trading volume of our common stock may be limited, making it more difficult for a
stockholder to sell shares at an acceptable price or amount. If any analysts do cover the Company, their projections may vary widely and may not
accurately predict the results we actually achieve. Our share price may decline if our actual results do not match the projections of research analysts
covering us. Similarly, if one or more of the analysts who write reports on us downgrades our stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about
our business, our share price could decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, our share price
or trading volume could decline.

Provisions in our charter and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which could limit the price investors might be willing to pay in the future for
our common stock and could entrench management.

Our charter contains provisions that opt out of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”). These provisions include the
ability of the board of directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred shares, which may make more difficult the removal of
management and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market prices for our securities.

In addition, while we have opted out of Section 203 of the DGCL, our charter contains similar provisions providing that we may not engage in certain
“business combinations” with any “interested stockholder” for a three-year period following the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder,
unless:

+ prior to such time, our board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an
interested stockholder;

* upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least
85% of our voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding certain shares; or

+ at or subsequent to that time, the business combination is approved by our board of directors and by the affirmative vote of holders of at least two-
thirds of our outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of us. These provisions could also
discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other stockholders to elect directors of your choosing and cause us to take corporate
actions other than those you desire.

Our charter designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the exclusive forum for certain litigation that may be initiated by our
stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us.

Our charter provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or
proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed to us or our stockholders by any of our directors,
officers, employees or agents, (iii) any action asserting a claim against us arising under the DGCL or (iv) any action asserting a claim against us that is
governed by the internal affairs doctrine. The exclusive forum provision of our bylaws does not establish exclusive jurisdiction in the Court of Chancery of
the State of Delaware for claims that arise under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or other federal securities laws if there is exclusive or concurrent
jurisdiction in the federal courts. By becoming our stockholder, you will be deemed to have notice of and have consented to the provisions of our charter
related to choice of forum. The choice of forum provision in our charter may limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes
with us.

Certain of our directors have relationships with Stella Point Capital (“Stella Point”), an entity affiliated with SPC Intermex LP which is a beneficial
owner of shares of our outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2022, which may cause conflicts of interest with respect to our business.

As of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, two of our eight directors are affiliated with Stella Point. Stella Point affiliated directors
have fiduciary duties to us and, in addition, have duties to their respective funds. As a result, these directors may face
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real or apparent conflicts of interest with respect to matters affecting both us and their funds, whose interests may be adverse to ours in some
circumstances.

We may be subject to securities litigation, which is expensive and could divert management’s attention.

Our share price may be volatile and, in the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been subject to
securities class action litigation. We may be the target of this type of litigation in the future. Litigation of this type could result in substantial costs and
diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any adverse determination in litigation could also subject us to significant liabilities.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our leased corporate offices are located in Miami, Florida. We lease five other facilities in Miami, Florida, Denver, Colorado and New York, New
York. In addition, as of December 31, 2022, we lease 116 Company-operated stores throughout the United States. Substantially all our facilities are leased.
We have two international customer service centers located in Guatemala City, Guatemala and Puebla, Mexico where our employees answer operational
questions from agents and customers. Our facilities are used for operational, sales and administrative purposes in support of our business, and are all
currently being utilized as intended.

We believe that our properties are sufficient to meet our current and projected business needs. We periodically review our facility requirements and
may acquire new facilities, or modify, update, consolidate, dispose of or sublet existing facilities, based on evolving business needs. In December 2022, we
entered into a lease agreement, which expires in 2033, for our new headquarters to accommodate our growing workforce. We expect to complete the move
to the new headquarters in the second half of 2023 following the completion of leasehold improvements.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various claims, charges and litigation matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. We believe these
actions are a normal incident of the nature and kind of business in which we are engaged. While it is not feasible to predict the outcome of these matters
with certainty, we do not believe that any asserted or unasserted legal claims or proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material and
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Reference is made to Note 18 — Commitments and Contingencies in the Consolidated Financial Statements of International Money Express, Inc.
contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information regarding certain legal proceedings to which we are a party, which information is
incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART II

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for the Company’s Common Stock
Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “IMXI”.
As of March 8, 2023, there were 64 holders of record of our common stock.

We have not declared or paid, and do not anticipate declaring or paying in the foreseeable future, any cash dividends on our common stock. In
addition, the terms of our credit facility include restrictions on our ability to pay dividends to our common stockholders. Any payment of future dividends
will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend upon, among other factors, the Company’s earnings, financial condition,
current and anticipated capital requirements, plans for expansion, level of indebtedness and contractual restrictions. The payment of future cash dividends,
if any, would be made only from assets legally available.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required by Item 5 with respect to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is incorporated herein by
reference to Part I1I, Item 12 of this Form 10-K.

Performance Graph

The Company’s peer group (‘“Peer Group”) consists of publicly-traded companies that are in the money remittance and payment industries and is
composed of the following: MoneyGram, Euronet, Remitly and Western Union. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company revised its Peer
Group to include other public companies that have increased their participation in the digital money remittance industry segment.

The following graph shows a comparison of cumulative total shareholder return, calculated on a dividend-reinvested basis, for (1) the Company’s
common stock, (2) the NASDAQ US Benchmark TR Index and (3) our Peer Group, for the period from July 27, 2018 (the first day our common stock was
separately traded) through December 31, 2022. The graph assumes the value of the investment in our common stock and each index was $100 on July 27,
2018 and that all dividends were reinvested. The graph plots the value of the initial $100 investment at quarterly intervals for the fiscal years shown. We
have not paid any cash dividends and, therefore, the cumulative total return calculation for us is based solely upon stock price appreciation and not upon
reinvestment of cash dividends. Historic stock price performance is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC,,
NASDAQ INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX

Comparison of 54 Month Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
December 2022
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The graph is furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” with the SEC or subject to Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any
general incorporation language in such filing.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Repurchases of Equity Securities of the Issuer

The following table provides information about repurchases of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2022:

Approximate Dollar Value of
Total Number of Shares Shares that May Yet be

Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Purchased under the
Purchased Average Price Paid Publicly Announced Program
Period (a) per Share Program (b) (c)
October 1 through October 31 441 $ 26.65 — 3 18,253,402
November 1 through November 30 178,559 §$ 20.81 174,585 $ 14,620,077
December 1 through December 31 290,544 § 21.91 290,544 § 8,253,419
Total 469,544 465,129

(a) Includes 174,585 and 290,544 shares purchased in November and December 2022, respectively, under the Repurchase Program (as defined below)
and 441 and 3,974 shares withheld for income tax purposes in October and November 2022, respectively, in connection with shares issued under
compensation and benefit programs.

(b) On August 18, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”) that authorizes the
Company to purchase up to $40.0 million of its outstanding shares. The Repurchase Program does not have an expiration date.

(c) On March 3, 2023 the Board of Directors approved an increase to the Repurchase Program that authorizes the Company to purchase an additional
$100.0 million of its outstanding shares.
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ITEM 6.

[RESERVED]
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The objectives of our Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are to provide users of our
consolidated financial statements with a narrative explanation from the perspective of management of our financial condition, results of operations, cash
flows, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect future results. This Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K. This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements are not
historical facts, but rather are based on current expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about our industry, business and future financial
results. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for additional factors
relating to such statements and see “Risk Factors” included in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our past operating results are not necessarily
indicative of operating results in any future periods.

Overview

We are a leading omnichannel money remittance services company focused primarily on the United States of America (“United States” or “U.S.”) to
Latin America and the Caribbean (“LAC”) corridor, which includes Mexico, Central and South America and the Caribbean. In recent years, we expanded
our services to allow remittances to Africa and Asia from the United States and also began offering sending services from Canada to Latin America and
Africa. We utilize our proprietary technology to deliver convenient, reliable and value-added services to consumers through a broad network of sending and
paying agents. Our remittance services, which include a comprehensive suite of ancillary financial processing solutions and payment services, are available
in all 50 states in the U.S., Washington D.C., Puerto Rico and 13 provinces in Canada, where consumers can send money to beneficiaries in 16 LAC
countries, eight countries in Africa and two countries in Asia. Our services are accessible in person through over 100,000 independent sending and paying
agents and 117 Company-operated stores, as well as online and via Internet-enabled mobile devices. Additionally, our product and service portfolio include
online payment options, pre-paid debit cards and direct deposit payroll cards, which may present different cost, demand, regulatory and risk profiles
relative to our core money remittance business. In March 2022, we entered into an agreement to acquire La Nacional and LAN Holdings, money remittance
companies serving more than 70 countries. In November 2022, we completed the acquisition of La Nacional and we expect to complete the acquisition of
LAN Holdings in the second quarter of 2023 subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including pending regulatory approvals. The
acquisition of La Nacional strengthens the Company’s presence in the Dominican Republic and other key markets to Latin America.

Money remittance services to LAC countries, mainly Mexico and Guatemala, are the primary source of our revenue. These services involve the
movement of funds on behalf of an originating consumer for receipt by a designated beneficiary at a designated receiving location. Our remittances to LAC
countries are primarily generated in the United States by consumers with roots in Latin American and Caribbean countries, many of whom do not have an
existing relationship with a traditional full-service financial institution capable of providing the services we offer. We provide these consumers with
flexibility and convenience to help them meet their financial needs. We believe many consumers who use our services may have access to traditional
banking services, but prefer to use our services based on reliability, convenience and value. We generate money remittance revenue from fees paid by
consumers (i.e., the senders of funds), which we share with our sending agents in the originating country and our paying agents in the destination country.
Remittances paid in local currencies that are not pegged to the U.S. dollar can also generate revenue if we are successful in our daily management of
currency exchange spreads.

Our money remittance services enable consumers to send funds through our broad network of locations in the United States and Canada that are
primarily operated by third-party businesses, as well as through our Company-operated stores located in the United States. Transactions are processed and
payment is collected by our agent (“sending agent(s)”’) and those funds become available for pickup by the beneficiary at the designated destination,
usually within minutes, at any Intermex payer location (“paying agent(s)”). We refer to our sending agents and our paying agents collectively as agents. In
addition, our services are offered digitally through Intermexonline.com and via Internet-enabled mobile devices. Since January 1, 2022 through December
31, 2022, we have grown our agent network by approximately 27.3% and increased our principal amount sent by more than 21.2% to $21.0 billion. In
2022, we processed approximately 47.8 million remittances, representing over 19.2% growth in transactions as compared to 2021.

COVID-19 Update

The coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic that started in 2020 has had and continues to have a significant effect on economic conditions in the United
States of America (“United States” or “U.S.”), and to a certain degree continues to cause, significant uncertainties in the U.S. and global economy. Public
health officials and medical professionals have warned that COVID-19 resurgences may continue to occur due to a variety of factors, including the extent
of economic activity, social interaction, vaccination rates and the emergence of

27



Index

potent variants. It is unclear if and when resurgences will occur or how long any resurgence will last, how severe it will be, and what safety measures
governments and businesses will impose in response.

We continue to prioritize taking appropriate actions to protect the health and safety of our employees. We have adjusted standard operating procedures
within our business operations to ensure continued worker safety, and are continually monitoring evolving health guidelines and responding to changes as
appropriate.

Although certain measures that restrict the normal course of operations of businesses and consumers were still in place for the year ended
December 31, 2022, such measures did not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2022. Although the Company’s operations continued effectively despite social distancing and other measures taken in response to
the pandemic, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows remain subject to future developments, including the persistence of the
pandemic’s effects on economic conditions, particularly the level of unemployment of our customers, inflation (including changes in wages) and
governmental efforts to restrain inflation, interest rate levels and foreign exchange volatility, as well as the possibility of resurgences of the pandemic and
the severity of any such resurgence, all of which remain uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time.

Further quantification and discussion of these pandemic related effects, to the extent relevant and material, are included in the discussion of results of
operations below.

Acquisition of La Nacional and LAN Holdings

On March 16, 2022, the Company entered into a definitive purchase agreement to acquire La Nacional and LAN Holdings, which either directly or
indirectly operate as money remittance companies in the United States, Canada and certain countries in Europe. On November 1, 2022, we completed the
acquisition of La Nacional and we expect to complete the acquisition of LAN Holdings in the second quarter of 2023 subject to the satisfaction of
customary closing conditions, including pending regulatory approvals. See Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 3,
“Acquisitions” for additional information regarding the completed acquisition of La Nacional and pending acquisition of LAN Holdings.

The Company expects the integration of La Nacional and LAN Holdings to be completed in the four quarters following the closing of the respective
transactions. Once La Nacional and LAN Holdings are fully integrated, the Company expects the combined entities to continue to contribute approximately
$80.0 million to $90.0 million a year in revenues with an Adjusted EBITDA margin in the range of 9% to 11%. A quantitative reconciliation of projected
Adjusted EBITDA margin to the most comparable GAAP measure is not available without unreasonable efforts because of the inherent difficulty in
forecasting and quantifying the amounts necessary under GAAP guidance for operating or other adjusted items including, without limitation, integration
costs and expenses, amortization of intangible assets and depreciation, which may be significant and difficult to project with a reasonable degree of
accuracy, as well as, tax effects of certain adjustments and other items related to the acquisitions.

The “Results of Operations” section below includes the impact of La Nacional for the period of November 2, 2022 through December 31, 2022. See
Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 3, “Acquisitions” for additional financial information regarding La Nacional.

A discussion of changes in our results of operations and cash flows from fiscal 2021 to fiscal 2020 has been omitted from this Annual Report on Form
10-K, but may be found in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on March 7, 2022, which is available free of charge on the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov and at www.intermexonline.com, by clicking “Investors” located at the bottom of the page.

Key Factors and Trends Affecting our Business

Various trends and other factors have affected and may continue to affect our business, financial condition and operating results, including, but not
limited to:

« the Company’s ability to successfully execute, manage, integrate and obtain the anticipated financial benefits of key acquisitions and mergers,
including the completed acquisition of La Nacional and pending acquisition of LAN Holdings;

*  economic factors such as inflation, the level of economic activity, recession risks and labor market conditions, as well as rising interest rates;

e public health conditions, including the COVID-19 pandemic, responses thereto and the economic and market effects thereof;

e competition in the markets in which we operate;
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« volatility in foreign exchange rates that could affect the volume of consumer remittance activity and/or affect our foreign exchange related
gains and losses;

e our ability to maintain favorable banking and agent relationships necessary to conduct our business;

»  credit risks from our agents and the financial institutions with which we do business;

e bank failures, sustained financial illiquidity, or illiquidity at our clearing, cash management or custodial financial institutions;
* new technology or competitors that disrupt the current ecosystem, including the introduction of new digital platforms;

*  cyber-attacks or disruptions to our information technology, computer network systems, data centers and phone apps;

e our ability to satisfy our debt obligations and remain in compliance with our credit facility requirements;

*  our success in developing and introducing new products, services and infrastructure;

»  consumer confidence in our brand and in consumer money transfers generally;

e our ability to maintain compliance with applicable regulatory requirements;

* international political factors, political stability, tariffs, border taxes or restrictions on remittances or transfers out of the United States and
Canada;

e currency restrictions and volatility in countries in which we operate or plan to operate;
*  consumer fraud and other risks relating to the authenticity of customers’ orders;

e changes in immigration laws and their enforcement;

*  our ability to protect our brands and intellectual property rights;

« weakness in U.S. or international economic conditions;

e changes in tax laws; and

e our ability to recruit and retain key personnel.

Worldwide political and economic conditions continue to exhibit instability, as evidenced by high unemployment rates in key Latin American markets,
restricted lending activity, higher inflation, volatility in foreign currencies and low consumer confidence, some of which reflect the residual effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, supply chain disruptions, among other economic and market factors. Specifically, continued political and economic unrest in
Mexico, Guatemala and some countries in South America contributed to volatility. Our business has generally been resilient during times of economic
instability as money remittances are essential to many recipients, with the funds used by the receiving parties for their daily needs; however, long-term
sustained appreciation of the Mexican peso or Guatemalan quetzal as compared to the U.S. dollar could negatively affect our revenues and profitability.

Money remittance businesses have continued to be subject to strict legal and regulatory requirements, and we continue to focus on and regularly
review our compliance programs. In connection with these reviews, and in light of regulatory complexity and heightened attention of governmental and
regulatory authorities related to cybersecurity and compliance activities, we have made, and continue to make, enhancements to our processes and systems
designed to detect and prevent cyber-attacks, consumer fraud, money laundering, terrorist financing and other illicit activities, along with enhancements to
improve consumer protection, including the Dodd-Frank Act and similar regulations outside the United States. In coming periods, we expect these and
future regulatory requirements will continue to result in changes to certain of our business and administrative practices and may result in increased costs.

We maintain a compliance department, the responsibility of which is to monitor transactions, detect and report suspicious activity, maintain
appropriate records and train our employees and agents. An independent third-party periodically reviews our policies and procedures and performs
independent testing to assess the effectiveness of our anti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act compliance program. We also maintain a regulatory
affairs and licensing department, under the direction of our Chief Compliance Officer.

The market for money remittance services is very competitive. Our competitors include a small number of large money remittance providers,
financial institutions, banks and a large number of small niche money remittance service providers that serve select regions. We compete with larger
companies, such as Western Union, MoneyGram, Remitly and Euronet, and a number of other smaller money services business (“MSB”) entities. We
generally compete for money remittance agents on the basis of value, service, quality, technical and operational differences, commission structure and
marketing efforts. As a philosophy, we sell credible solutions to our sending agents, not discounts or higher commissions, as is typical for the industry. We
compete for money remittance customers on the basis of trust, convenience, service, efficiency of outlets, value, enhanced technology and brand
recognition.

We have encountered and continue to expect to encounter increasing competition as new electronic platforms emerge that enable consumers to
send and receive money through a variety of channels, but we do not expect adoption rates to be as significant in the near
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term for the consumer segment we serve. Regardless, we continue to innovate in the industry by differentiating our money remittance business through
programs to foster loyalty among agents as well as consumers and have expanded our channels through which our services are accessed to include online
and mobile offerings which are experiencing consumer adoption.

Effective December 31, 2022, we are no longer considered an emerging growth company, as we reached the fifth anniversary of becoming a publicly-
traded company.

How We Assess the Performance of Our Business

In assessing the performance of our business, we consider a variety of performance and financial measures. The key indicators of the financial
condition and operating performance of our business are revenues, service charges from agents and banks, salaries and benefits, other selling, general and
administrative expenses and net income. To help us assess our performance with these key indicators, we primarily use Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted
Earnings per Share and Adjusted EBITDA as non-GAAP financial measures. We believe these non-GAAP measures provide useful information to
investors and expanded insight to measure our revenue and cost performance as a supplement to our U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements. See the
“Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per Share” and “Adjusted EBITDA” sections below for reconciliations of these non-GAAP financial
measures to net income and earnings per share, our closest GAAP measures.

Revenues

Transaction volume is the primary generator of revenue in our business. Revenue on transactions is derived primarily from transaction fees paid by
consumers to transfer money. Revenues per transaction vary based upon send and receive locations and the amount sent. In certain transactions involving
different send and receive currencies, we generate foreign exchange gains based on the difference between the set exchange rate charged by us to the sender
and the rate available to us in the wholesale foreign exchange market.

Operating Expenses

Service Charges from Agents and Banks

Service charges primarily consist of agent commissions and bank fees. Service charges vary based on agent commission percentages and the amount of
fees charged by the banks. Sending agents earn a commission on each transaction they process of approximately 50% of the transaction fee. Service
charges may increase if banks or payer organizations increase their fee structure or sending agents use higher fee methods to remit funds to us. Service
charges also vary based on the method the consumer selects to send the transfer and the payer organization that facilitates the transaction.

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and benefits include cash and share-based compensation associated with our corporate employees and sales team as well as employees at our
Company-operated stores. Corporate employees include management, customer service, compliance, information technology, operations, finance, legal and
human resources. Our sales team, located throughout the United States and Canada, is focused on supporting and growing our sending agent network.
Share-based compensation is primarily recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period; unrecognized compensation
expense related to stock options, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), restricted stock awards (“RSAs”) and performance stock units (“PSUs”) of approximately
$10.2 million is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.66 years.

Other Selling, General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of fixed overhead expenses associated with our operations, such as information technology,
telecommunications, rent, insurance, professional services, non-income or indirect taxes, facilities maintenance, provision for credit losses and other similar
types of operating expenses. A portion of these expenses relate to our Company-operated stores; however, the majority relate to the overall business and
compliance requirements of a regulated publicly traded financial services company. Selling expenses include expenses such as advertising and promotion,
shipping, supplies and other expenses associated with serving and increasing our network of agents.

Transaction Costs
We incurred transaction costs associated with the acquisitions of La Nacional and LAN Holdings. These costs included all internal and external costs
directly related to the transaction, consisting primarily of legal, consulting, accounting and advisory fees and certain incentive bonuses. Due to their

significance, they are presented separately in our consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization largely consists of depreciation of computer equipment and amortization of software that supports our technology
platform. In addition, it includes amortization of intangible assets primarily related to our agent relationships, trade names and developed technology.

Non-Operating Expenses
Interest Expense

Interest expense consists primarily of interest associated with our debt, which consists of a term loan facility and a revolving credit facility. The
effective average interest rates for the year ended December 31, 2022 for the term loan facility and revolving credit facility, which related to the Company’s
previous credit agreement and Credit Agreement (as defined herein), were 4.87% and 1.04%, respectively.

Income tax provision

Our income tax provision includes the expected benefit of all deferred tax assets, including our net operating loss carryforwards. With few exceptions,
our net operating loss carryforwards will expire from 2029 through 2042. After consideration of all evidence, both positive and negative, management has
determined that no valuation allowance is required at December 31, 2022 on the Company’s U.S. federal or state deferred tax assets; however, a valuation
allowance has been recorded as of December 31, 2022 on deferred tax assets associated with Canadian net operating loss carryforwards. Our income tax
provision reflects the effects of state taxes, non-deductible expenses, share-based compensation expense, and foreign tax rates applicable to the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries that are higher or lower than the U.S. statutory rate.

Net Income

Net income is determined by subtracting operating and non-operating expenses from revenues.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for each period. Diluted
earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding for
each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if outstanding stock options at the presented dates are exercised and
shares of RSUs, RSAs and PSUs have vested, using the treasury stock method. Shares of treasury stock are not considered outstanding and therefore are
excluded from the weighted average number of common shares outstanding calculation.

Segments

Our business is organized around one reportable segment that provides money transmittal services between the United States and Canada to Mexico,
Guatemala and other countries in Latin America, Africa and Asia through a network of authorized agents located in various unaffiliated retail

establishments and 117 Company-operated stores throughout the United States and Canada. This is based on the objectives of the business and how our
chief operating decision maker, the CEO and President, monitors operating performance and allocates resources.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes key components of our results of operations for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except for share data) 2022 2021 2020
Revenues:
Wire transfer and money order fees, net $ 469,162 $ 393241 $ 307,909
Foreign exchange gain, net 72,920 62,832 46,763
Other income 4,723 3,133 2,537
Total revenues 546,805 459,206 357,209
Operating expenses:
Service charges from agents and banks 364,804 307,458 238,597
Salaries and benefits 52,224 43,065 32,831
Other selling, general and administrative expenses 34,394 30,334 22,086
Transaction costs 3,005 1,006 —
Depreciation and amortization 9,470 9,491 10,828
Total operating expenses 463,897 391,354 304,342
Operating income 82,908 67,852 52,867
Interest expense 5,629 4,537 6,566
Income before income taxes 77,279 63,315 46,301
Income tax provision 19,948 16,472 12,517
Net income $ 57,331 $ 46,843 $ 33,784
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 1.52 % 122§ 0.89
Diluted $ 148 $ 120 $ 0.88
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2021
Revenues
Revenues for the above periods are presented below:
Year Ended December 31,
% of % of
(8 in thousands) 2022 Revenues 2021 Revenues
Revenues:
Wire transfer and money order fees, net $ 469,162 86 % $ 393,241 85 %
Foreign exchange gain, net 72,920 13 % 62,832 14 %
Other income 4,723 1% 3,133 1%
Total revenues $ 546,805 100 % $ 459,206 100 %

Wire transfer and money order fees, net of $469.2 million, for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased by $76.0 million, or 19.3%, from $393.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This increase was primarily due to a 19.2% increase in transaction
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volume compared to the year ended December 31, 2021, largely due to the continued growth in our agent network, which increased by 6.0% from
December 2021 to December 2022, excluding the agents added as part of La Nacional acquisition.

Revenues from foreign exchange gain, net of $72.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, increased by $10.1 million, or 16.1%, from $62.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This increase was primarily due to higher transaction volume achieved by growth in our agent network and
a higher average amount sent by consumers, as well as, increased foreign exchange volatility in the Mexican peso during the year.

Other income of $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased by $1.6 million or 50.8% from $3.1 million for the year ended

December 31, 2021, primarily due to higher volume of checks processed by our sending agents as well as higher maintenance fees on money transfers
pending to be refunded to consumers.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the above periods are presented below:

Year Ended December 31,
% of % of
(8 in thousands) 2022 Revenues 2021 Revenues
Operating expenses:
Service charges from agents and banks $ 364,804 67% $ 307,458 67 %
Salaries and benefits 52,224 10 % 43,065 9 %
Other selling, general and administrative expenses 34,394 6 % 30,334 7%
Transaction costs 3,005 1% 1,006 NM
Depreciation and amortization 9,470 2% 9,491 2%
Total operating expenses $ 463,897 85% $ 391,354 85 %

NM - Amounts rounds to less than 1%.

Service charges from agents and banks— Service charges from agents and banks were $364.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 compared
to $307.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase of $57.3 million, or 18.7%, was primarily due to the increase in transaction volume
described above.

Salaries and benefits— Salaries and benefits were $52.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, an increase of $9.1 million, or 21.3%, from
$43.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily due to $4.7 million spent in talent acquisition and retention to support the
continued growth of our business, increased wages and bonuses to recognize performance, $2.4 million and $0.2 million in wages and commissions
expense, respectively, attributed to the La Nacional workforce, and a $2.5 million increase in share-based compensation as a result of new awards granted
in 2022 and updated probability of vesting of PSUs, offset by a $0.7 million decrease in commission expense for our sales representatives, other than those
added with the acquisition of La Nacional.

Other selling, general and administrative expenses— Other selling, general and administrative expenses of $34.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 increased by $4.1 million, or 13.4%, from $30.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The increase was primarily the result of:

* $2.1 million - higher IT related expenses incurred to sustain our business expansion and to improve our technology environment;

* $1.8 million - higher facilities and rent expenses for scheduled maintenance and contracted lease rate increases to support our business growth as
well as related operating expenses in connection with the 80 corporate stores acquired through La Nacional;

* $1.0 million - increase in provision for credit losses due to higher net write-offs of accounts receivable during the year ended December 31, 2022
compared to the same period in 2021, primarily as a result of sending agents that were not able to pay in accordance with the original terms and
are, accordingly, subject to our normal collection procedures;

* $1.0 million - higher travel costs, primarily of our sales force, to support or business growth and expansion;

* $0.9 million - higher audit related and professional fees to support our internal audit and compliance functions;

* $0.4 million - higher shipping costs due to deployment of equipment for new and existing agents.

These increases were partially offset by:
* $1.4 million - in lower advertising and promotion expenses, primarily as a result of higher co-branding investment by some of our paying agents

during 2022;
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* $0.8 million - refund of state business and occupancy tax from the state of Washington;

* $0.6 million - lower loss on disposal of assets, as the year ended December 31, 2021 included a $1.0 million impairment charge that did not
reoccur in the year ended December 31, 2022; and

* $0.4 million - related to a lower provision recorded on deposits frozen at certain closed financial institutions in Mexico in 2022 compared to
fiscal year 2021. The provision amounted to $1.6 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Transaction Costs— Transaction Costs of $3.0 million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, relate primarily
to financial advisory fees as well as other professional fees and legal fees incurred in connection with acquisitions. Transaction costs for the year ended
December 31, 2022 related to the La Nacional and LAN Holdings acquisitions, while transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2021 relate to costs
incurred in connection with potential acquisitions during that period, including La Nacional and LAN Holdings.

Depreciation and amortization— Depreciation and amortization of $9.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 remained consistent with $9.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This is mainly due to $0.9 million less amortization related to trade names, developed technology and agent
relationships during the year ended December 31, 2022 as these intangibles are being amortized on an accelerated basis, which declines over time, offset by
an increase in depreciation of $0.9 million associated primarily with additional computer equipment to support our growing business and agent network.

Non-Operating Expenses

Interest expense— Interest expense was $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, an increase of $1.1 million, or 24.1%, from $4.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily due to higher market interest rates paid under our A&R Credit Agreement (as described
below), as well as higher drawings under our revolving credit facility primarily during the fourth quarter of 2022.

Income tax provision— Income tax provision was $19.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, an increase of $3.4 million, or 21.1%, from an
income tax provision of $16.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase in the income tax provision was mainly attributable to higher
taxable income resulting from our growth described above, partially offset by a tax benefit from deductible stock-compensation as a result of stock option
exercises.

Net Income

We reported net income of $57.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 compared to net income of $46.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, which resulted in an increase of $10.5 million due to the same factors discussed above.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per Share - Basic for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1.52, representing an increase of $0.30, or 24.6%, compared to $1.22 for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

Earnings per Share - Diluted for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1.48, representing an increase of $0.28, or 23.3%, compared to $1.20 for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

The increase in both basic and diluted EPS largely reflect the increased net income discussed above and the effect of a reduced share count.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted Earnings per Share and Adjusted EBITDA to evaluate our performance, both internally and as compared with
our peers, because these measures exclude certain items that may not be indicative of our core operating results, as well as items that can vary widely
among companies within our industry. For example, non-cash compensation costs can be subject to volatility from changes in the market price per share of
our common stock or variations in the value and number of shares granted, and amortization of intangible assets is subject to business acquisition activities,
which varies from period to period.

We present these non-GAAP financial measures because we believe they are frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties to
evaluate companies in our industry. Furthermore, we believe they are helpful in highlighting trends in our operating results by focusing on our core
operating results and are useful to evaluate our performance in conjunction with our GAAP financial measures. Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted Earnings
per Share and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP financial measures and should not be considered as an alternative to operating income, net income or
earnings per share as a measure of operating performance or cash flows or
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as a measure of liquidity. Non-GAAP financial measures are not necessarily calculated the same way by different companies and should not be considered
a substitute for or superior to GAAP measures.

Adjusted EBITDA is one of the primary metrics used by management to evaluate the financial performance of our business because it excludes, among
other things, the effects of certain transactions that are outside the control of management, while other measures can differ significantly depending on long-
term strategic decisions regarding capital structure, the jurisdictions in which we operate and capital investments.

In particular, Adjusted EBITDA is subject to certain limitations, including the following:

+ Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect interest expense, or the amounts necessary to service interest or principal payments on our debt;

* Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect income tax provision (benefit), and because the payment of taxes is part of our operations, tax provision is a
necessary element of our costs and ability to operate;

» Although depreciation and amortization are eliminated in the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA, the assets being depreciated and amortized will
often have to be replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any costs of such replacements;

* Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the noncash component of share-based compensation;

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the impact of earnings or charges resulting from matters we consider not to be reflective, on a recurring basis,
of our ongoing operations; and

+ other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled measures differently than we do, limiting its usefulness as a
comparative measure.

We adjust for these limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using Adjusted EBITDA, as well as our other non-GAAP financial
measures, only as supplemental information.

Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings per Share

Adjusted Net Income is defined as net income adjusted to add back certain charges and expenses, such as non-cash amortization of intangible assets
resulting from business acquisition transactions, which will recur in future periods until these assets have been fully amortized, non-cash compensation
costs, litigation settlements and other items set forth in the table below, as these charges and expenses are not considered a part of our core business
operations and are not an indicator of ongoing, future company performance.

Adjusted Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted is calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by GAAP weighted-average common shares
outstanding (basic and diluted).

Adjusted Net Income for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $69.9 million, representing an increase of $12.4 million, or 21.6%, from Adjusted
Net Income of $57.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase in Adjusted Net Income was primarily due to the increase in net income
discussed above and the impact of certain adjusting items detailed in the table below.

The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Income, our closest GAAP measure, to Adjusted Net Income:
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Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except for share data) 2022 2021
Net Income $ 57,331 $ 46,843
Adjusted for:
Share-based compensation (a) 7,118 4,601
Loss on bank closure (b) 1,583 2,000
Transaction costs (c) 3,005 1,006
Other charges and expenses (d) 1,141 1,705
Amortization of intangibles (e) 4,102 5,052
Income tax benefit related to adjustments (f) (4,376) (3,738)
Adjusted Net Income $ 69,904 $ 57,469
Adjusted Earnings per share
Basic $ 1.85 $ 1.49
Diluted $ 1.81 $ 1.47
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic 37,733,047 38,474,040
Diluted 38,625,390 39,103,450

(a) Represents share-based compensation relating to equity awards granted to employees and independent directors of the Company.

(b) Represents losses related to the closure of a financial institution in Mexico during 2021.

(c) Represents primarily, financial advisory fees and other professional fees and legal fees related to business acquisition transactions.

(d) Represents primarily loss on disposal of fixed assets, including a write-off of software development expenditures in an amount of $1.0 million
during the year ended December 31, 2021 (none in 2022) and foreign currency (gains) losses.

(e) Represents the amortization of intangible assets resulting from business acquisition transactions.

(f) Represents the current and deferred tax impact of the taxable adjustments to Net Income using the Company’s blended federal and state tax rate for
each period. Relevant tax-deductible adjustments include all adjustments to Net Income.

Adjusted Earnings per Share - Basic (previously defined and used as described above) for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1.85, representing
an increase of $0.36, or 24.2%, compared to $1.49 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Adjusted Earnings per Share - Diluted (previously defined and used as described above) for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1.81, representing
an increase of $0.34, or 23.1%, compared to $1.47 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The following table presents the reconciliation of GAAP Earnings per Share, our closest GAAP measure, to Adjusted Earnings per Share:

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

GAAP Earnings per Share $ 152 $ 148 $ 122§ 1.20
Adjusted for:

Share-based compensation $ 019 $ 0.13 $ 012 $ 0.12

Loss on bank closure $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 0.05 § 0.05

Transaction costs $ 008 $ 0.08 $ 0.03 § 0.03

Other charges and expenses $ 003 $ 0.03 $ 004 $ 0.04

Amortization of intangibles $ 0.11 § 0.11 $ 0.13 $ 0.13

Income tax benefit related to adjustments $ (0.12) $ (0.11) $ (0.10) $ (0.10)
Adjusted Earnings per Share $ 185 § 1.81 § 149 § 1.47
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The table above may contain slight summation differences due to rounding.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income before depreciation and amortization, interest expense, income taxes, and also adjusted to add back certain
charges and expenses, such as non-cash compensation costs and other items set forth in the table below, as these charges and expenses are not considered a
part of our core business operations and may not be indicative of ongoing, future company performance.

Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $105.2 million, representing an increase of $18.5 million, or 21.4%, from $86.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase in Adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the increase in net income discussed above and the impact

of certain adjusting items detailed in the table below.

The following table presents the reconciliation of Net Income, our closest GAAP measure, to Adjusted EBITDA:
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Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021
Net Income $ 57,331 $ 46,843
Adjusted for:
Interest expense 5,629 4,537
Income tax provision 19,948 16,472
Depreciation and amortization 9,470 9,491
EBITDA 92,378 77,343
Share-based compensation (a) 7,118 4,601
Loss on bank closure (b) 1,583 2,000
Transaction costs (¢) 3,005 1,006
Other charges and expenses (d) 1,141 1,705
Adjusted EBITDA $ 105,225 § 86,655

(a) Represents share-based compensation relating to equity awards granted to employees and independent directors of the Company.

(b) Represents losses related to the closure of a financial institution in Mexico during 2021.

(c) Represents primarily financial advisory fees and other professional fees and legal fees related to business acquisition transactions.

(d)Represents primarily loss on disposal of fixed assets, including a write-off of software development expenditures in an amount of $1.0 million
during the year ended December 31, 2021 (none in 2022) and foreign currency (gains) losses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We consider liquidity in terms of cash position, cash flows from operations and their sufficiency to fund business operations, including working capital
needs, debt service, acquisitions, capital expenditures, contractual obligations and other commitments. In particular, to meet our payment service
obligations at all times, we must have sufficient highly liquid assets and be able to move funds on a timely basis.

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash generated by operating activities supplemented with borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Our
primary cash needs are for day-to-day operations, to pay interest and principal on our indebtedness, to fund working capital requirements and to make
capital expenditures.

We have funded and still expect to continue funding our liquidity requirements through internally generated funds, supplemented in the ordinary
course, with borrowings under our revolving credit facility. We maintain a strong cash balance position and have access to committed funding sources,
which we have used only on a limited and ordinary course basis during the year ended December 31, 2022. Therefore, we believe that our projected cash
flows generated from operations, together with borrowings under our revolving credit facility are sufficient to fund our principal debt payments, interest
expense, our working capital needs and our expected capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months.

Credit Agreement

We have an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as amended as described below, the “Credit Agreement”) with a group of banking institutions.
The Credit Agreement provides for a $150.0 million revolving credit facility, an $87.5 million term loan facility and an uncommitted incremental facility,
which may be utilized for additional revolving or term loans, of up to $70.0 million. The Credit Agreement also provides for the issuance of letters of
credit, which would reduce availability under the revolving credit facility. The proceeds of the term loan were used to refinance the existing term loan
under the Company’s previous credit agreement, and the revolving credit facility is available for working capital, general corporate purposes and to pay
fees and expenses in connection with this transaction. The maturity date of the Credit Agreement is June 24, 2026. Included in the lender group under the
Credit Agreement is Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”), which holds 13% of the revolving credit facility commitments. Due to recent events regarding SVB and
its control by federal banking authorities, it is unclear whether SVB would be in a position to continue to fund its pro rata portion of draws under the
revolving credit facility. Pending a resolution of SVB's participation in the Credit Agreement, which resolution may include seeking a replacement lender
and/or a request to utilize the uncommitted incremental facility, the Company believes that the availability of the remaining revolving credit facility
commitments should be sufficient to allow the Company to meet its foreseeable working capital needs in the event SVB does not fund its portion of any
draw request.

In November 2022, the Credit Agreement was amended to replace the London Inter-bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as a benchmark interest rate for
loans with the secured overnight financing rate as administered by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (“SOFR”).
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As of December 31, 2022, we had $80.9 million of borrowings under the term loan facility excluding debt origination costs of $1.7 million. As of
December 31, 2022 there were $76.0 million of outstanding amounts drawn on the revolving credit facility. There were $144.0 million of additional
borrowings available under these facilities as of December 31, 2022.

At the election of the Company, interest on the term loan facility and revolving loans under the Credit Agreement may be determined by reference to
SOFR plus an index adjustment of 0.10% and an applicable margin ranging between 2.50% and 3.00% based upon the Company’s consolidated leverage
ratio, as calculated pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement. Loans (other than Term Loans, as defined in the Credit Agreement), may also bear
interest at the base rate plus an applicable margin ranging between 1.50% and 2.00% based upon the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, as so
calculated. The Company is also required to pay a fee on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility equal to 0.35% per annum.

The effective interest rates for the year ended December 31, 2022 for the term loan facility and revolving credit facility were 4.87% and 1.04%,
respectively. Interest is payable (x)(i) generally on the last day of each interest period selected for SOFR loans, but in any event, not less frequently than
every three months, and (ii) on the last business day of each quarter for base rate loans and (y) at final maturity.

The principal amount of the term loan facility under the Credit Agreement must be repaid in consecutive quarterly installments of 5.0% in years 1 and
2,7.5% in year 3, and 10.0% in years 4 and 5, in each case on the last day of each quarter, commencing in September 2021 with a final balloon payment at
maturity. The term loans under the Credit Agreement may be prepaid at any time without premium or penalty. Revolving loans may be borrowed, repaid
and reborrowed from time to time in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement. The Company is also required to repay the loans
upon receipt of net proceeds from certain casualty events, upon the disposition of certain property and upon incurrence of indebtedness not permitted by the
Credit Agreement. In addition, the Company is required to make mandatory prepayments annually from excess cash flow if the Company’s consolidated
leverage ratio (as calculated under the Credit Agreement) is greater than or equal to 3.0, and the remainder of any such excess cash flow is contributed to
the available amount which may be used for a variety of purposes, including investments and distributions.

The Credit Agreement contains financial covenants that require the Company to maintain a quarterly minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of
1.25:1.00 and a quarterly maximum consolidated leverage ratio of 3.25:1.00. As of December 31, 2022, we were in compliance with the covenants of the
Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement also contains covenants that limit the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ ability to, among other things, grant liens,
incur additional indebtedness, make acquisitions or investments, dispose of certain assets, change the nature of their businesses, enter into certain
transactions with affiliates or amend the terms of material indebtedness. The Credit Agreement generally restricts the ability of the Company to make
certain restricted payments, including the repurchase of shares of its common stock, provided that the Company may make restricted payments, among
others, (i) without limitation so long as the Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement), as of the then most recently completed four
fiscal quarters of the Company, after giving pro forma effect to such restricted payments, is 2.25 to 1.00 or less, (ii) that do not exceed, in the aggregate
during any fiscal year, the greater of (x) $23.8 million and (y) 25.0% of Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for the then most
recently completed four fiscal quarters of the Company, and (iii) to repurchase Company common stock from current or former employees in an aggregate
amount of up to $10.0 million per calendar year.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital, limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry,
expose us to interest rate risk and prevent us from meeting our obligations. See “Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness—The Company's
indebtedness may limit our operating flexibility and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.”

Repurchase Program

In August 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program™) that authorizes the Company to
purchase up to $40.0 million of its outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the Repurchase Program, the Company is authorized to
repurchase shares from time to time in accordance with applicable laws, both on the open market and in privately negotiated transactions and may include
the use of derivative contracts or structured share repurchase agreements. The timing and amount of repurchases depends on several factors, including
market and business conditions, the trading price of the Company’s common stock and the nature of other investment opportunities. The Repurchase
Program may be limited, suspended or discontinued at any time without prior notice. The Repurchase Program does not have an expiration date. Under the
terms of the Credit Agreement, the Company has restrictions that limit the maximum amount of repurchases as described in the “Credit Agreement” section
above.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company purchased 1,308,259 shares under the Repurchase Program for an aggregate purchase price
totaling $26.2 million. As of December 31, 2022, there were $8.3 million remaining amount available for future share repurchases under the Repurchase
Program. During the first quarter of 2023 to date, the Company repurchased 317 thousand shares for $7.6 million, resulting in $0.7 million available for
future share repurchases under the Repurchase Program.
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On March 3, 2023 the Board of Directors approved an increase to the Repurchase Program that authorizes the Company to purchase an additional
$100.0 million of its outstanding shares.

Privately-Negotiated Share Repurchase Transaction

On August 9, 2022, the Company entered into an agreement with SPC Intermex, LP for the purchase of 1,172,485 shares of the Company’s common
stock for a total purchase price of $27.6 million, or a per share price of $23.50, in a privately-negotiated transaction.

Operating Leases
We are party to operating leases for office space, warehouses and Company-operated store locations, which we use as part of our day-to-day

operations. Operating lease expenses were $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. We have not entered into finance lease commitments. For
additional information on operating lease obligations, refer to Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 8, “Leases”.

In December 2022, we entered into a lease agreement, which expires in 2033, for our new headquarters to accommodate our growing workforce. We
expect to complete the move to the new office space in the second half of 2023 following the completion of leasehold improvements. The new lease
agreement provides for the Company to receive a tenant allowance amounting to approximately $3.8 million through the third quarter of 2023 and the
Company will commence making monthly lease payments on November 1, 2024.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the changes to our cash flows for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020
Statement of Cash Flows Data:

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 15,174  $ 78,098 $ (880)
Net cash used in investing activities (12,529) (10,773) (4,062)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 14,058 (9,616) (6,160)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 316 (142) (108)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,019 57,567 (11,210)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year $ 132,474  $ 74,907 $ 86,117
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year $ 149,493 $ 132,474  $ 74,907

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $15.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, a decrease of $62.9 million from net cash provided
by operating activities of $78.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease of $62.9 million is primarily a result of $78.3 million related
to changes in working capital, which varies due to timing of money transmissions and payments, offset by additional cash generated by our improved
operating results for the year ended December 31, 2022, which reflected the further growth of our business.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, an increase of $1.8 million from $10.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. This increase in cash used was due to the acquisition of La Nacional through a cash transaction which resulted in
$0.1 million of cash used, net of cash acquired. In addition, the Company invested funds in higher purchases of property and equipment as a result of our
continued growth of sending agents, as well as, upgrading equipment of existing agents during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Financing Activities
Net cash provided by financing activities was $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which primarily consisted of $4.4 million in
scheduled quarterly payments due on the term loan facility, $53.7 million of repurchases of common stock and $5.4 million of payments for stock-based

awards for shares withheld in connection with stock-based compensation arrangements and related payments to taxing authorities, offset by $76.0 million
of borrowings, net under the revolving credit facility and $1.7 million in proceeds from issuance of stock as a result of the exercise of options.
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Net cash used in financing activities was $9.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, which primarily consisted of a $44.2 million debt
repayment, including $4.1.million in scheduled quarterly payments due on the term loan facility, and $2.9 million of debt origination costs in connection
with the refinancing of the existing debt under the Company’s previous credit agreement, $5.6 million of repurchases of common stock and $0.8 million of
payments for stock-based awards for shares withheld in connection with stock-based compensation arrangements and related payments to taxing
authorities, offset by $40.2 million borrowings in connection with the refinancing of the Company’s previous credit agreement and $3.8 million in proceeds
from issuance of stock as a result of the exercise of options.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events that affect amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as the related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Management evaluates its accounting policies, estimates and judgments
on an on-going basis. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. Our significant accounting policies are
discussed in Part 11, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable and agent advances receivable are recorded at their net realizable value, which is net of an allowance for credit losses. Accounts
receivable are recorded upon initiation of the wire transfer and are typically due to the Company within five days. The Company maintains an allowance
for credit losses for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its sending agents to make required payments.

The Company adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, on December 31, 2022, which was retroactively applied as of the first day
of fiscal year 2022. This accounting standard requires companies to measure expected credit losses on financial instruments based on the total estimated
amount to be collected over the lifetime of the instrument. Prior to the adoption of this accounting standard, the Company recorded incurred loss reserves
against receivable balances based on current and historical information.

Expected credit losses for uncollectible receivable balances consider both current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
conditions. Current conditions considered include pre-defined aging criteria, as well as specified events that indicate the balance due is not collectible.
Reasonable and supportable forecasts used in determining the probability of future collection consider publicly available macroeconomic data and whether
future credit losses are expected to differ from historical losses. Accounts receivable that are more than 90 days past due are charged off against the
allowance for credit losses.

The Company is not party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that would require an allowance for credit losses in accordance with this accounting
standard.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets result primarily from business combination acquisitions. Intangible assets include agent relationships, trade names,
developed technology and other intangibles, all with finite lives. Our agent relationships, trade names and developed technology are currently amortized
utilizing an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives. Other intangible assets are amortized straight-line over a useful life of 10 years. Upon the
acquisition, the purchase price is first allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities, including the trade name and other intangibles, with any remaining
purchase price recorded as goodwill.

Goodwill is not amortized; however, it is assessed for impairment at least annually, at the beginning of the fourth quarter, or more frequently if
triggering events occur. For purposes of the annual impairment test, management initially performs a qualitative assessment, which includes consideration
of the economic, industry and market conditions in addition to our overall financial performance and the performance of these assets. If our qualitative
assessment does not conclude that it is more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is greater than the carrying value, we perform
a quantitative analysis. In a quantitative test, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis. A discounted cash
flow analysis requires us to make various assumptions, including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. The assumptions
about future cash flows and growth rates are based on our long-term projections. Assumptions used in our impairment testing are consistent with our
internal forecasts and operating plans. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, there is no impairment. If not, we recognize an
impairment equal to the difference between the carrying amount of the reporting unit and its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill.

The Company continuously monitors for events and circumstances that could negatively impact the key assumptions in determining fair value. While
the Company believes the judgments and assumptions used in the goodwill impairment tests are reasonable, different
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assumptions or changes in general industry, market and macro-economic conditions, including the effect of health crises, could change the estimated fair
values and, therefore, future impairment charges could be required, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company evaluates amortizable intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of
an asset to forecasted undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair
value is determined based on discounted cash flows, appraised values or management’s estimates, depending upon the nature of the assets.

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions and our foreign subsidiaries are subject to taxes
by local tax authorities. As required by the uncertain tax position guidance, we recognize the financial statement benefit of a position only after determining
that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the positions following an audit. Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the
interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply. We apply the uncertain tax position guidance to all tax
positions for which the statute of limitations remains open. Resolution of these uncertainties in a manner inconsistent with management’s expectations
could have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition and operating results.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Part 11, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, for further discussion.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Risk

We manage foreign currency risk through the structure of the business and an active risk management process. One of the methods to settle with our
payers in Latin America is entering into foreign exchange tom and spot transactions with local and foreign currency providers (“counterparties”). The
foreign currency exposure on our foreign exchange tom and spot transactions is limited by the fact that all transactions are settled within two business days
from trade date. Foreign currency fluctuations, however, may negatively affect our average exchange gain per transaction. The Company had open tom and
spot foreign exchange contracts for Mexican pesos and Guatemalan quetzales amounting to approximately $41.3 million and $48.6 million at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

In addition, included in wire transfers and money orders payable, net in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there are
$39.3 million and $17.8 million, respectively, of wire transfers payable denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in Mexican pesos and Guatemalan
quetzales.

Also, included in prepaid wires, net in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there are $82.3 million and $39.7 million,
respectively, of prepaid wires denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in Mexican pesos and Guatemalan quetzales.

We are also exposed to changes in currency rates as a result of our investments in foreign operations and revenues generated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar. Revenues and profits generated by international operations will increase or decrease because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
This foreign currency risk is related primarily to our operations in our foreign subsidiaries. Revenues from our foreign subsidiaries represent less than 1%
of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2022. Therefore, a 10% increase or decrease in these currency rates against the U.S. Dollar
would result in a de minimis change to our overall operating results.

The spot and average exchange rates for Mexico, Guatemala and Canada currencies to U.S. dollar are as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Spot" Average? Spot® Average®? Spot® Average®?
U.S. dollar/Mexico Peso 19.40 20.09 20.50 20.27 19.89 21.47
U.S. dollar/Guatemala Quetzal 7.85 7.73 7.71 7.73 7.79 7.71
U.S. dollar/Canadian Dollar 1.36 1.30 1.28 1.25 1.28 1.34

(1) Spot exchange rates are as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.
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(2) Average exchange rates are for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

Long-term sustained appreciation of the Mexican peso or Guatemalan quetzal as compared to the U.S. dollar could affect our margins.

Interest Rate Risk

As discussed above, interest under the Credit Agreement is variable based on certain benchmark rates, including SOFR. Because interest expense is
subject to fluctuation, if interest rates increase, our debt service obligations on such variable rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount
borrowed remained the same. Accordingly, an increase in interest rates would adversely affect our profitability.

During the year ended December 31, 2022 the Federal Reserve raised the fed funds rate from 0.25% to 4.50% as a countermeasure to control inflation
in the United States. As a consequence, other benchmark interest rates such as SOFR and previously LIBOR increased as well. These increases have
resulted in the Company incurring higher interest expense. The Company expects that the Federal Reserve will continue raising the fed funds rate during
2023, which will continue exposing the Company to higher interest rate risk as benchmark interest rates such as SOFR will continue increasing as well. As
of December 31, 2022, we had $80.9 million and $76.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the term loan facility and revolving credit facility,
respectively. A hypothetical 1% increase or decrease in the interest rate on our indebtedness as of December 31, 2022 would have increased or decreased
annual cash interest expense on our term loan facility and revolving credit facility by approximately $0.8 million each.

Credit Risk

We maintain certain cash balances in various U.S. banks, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. We have not incurred any losses on these
accounts. In addition, we maintain various bank accounts in Mexico, Guatemala and Canada, which are not insured. During the year ended December 31,
2022, we did not incur any losses on these uninsured accounts with the exception of a $1.6 million provision we recorded in the third quarter of 2022 as a
result of the closure of a financial institution in Mexico during the third quarter of 2021 (See Part 11, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
Note 6 “Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets” for further discussion). To manage our exposure to credit risk with respect to cash balances and other credit
risk exposure resulting from our relationships with banks and financial institutions, we regularly review cash concentrations, and we attempt to diversify
our cash balances among global financial institutions.

We are also exposed to credit risk related to receivable balances from sending agents. We perform a credit review before each agent signing and
conduct ongoing analyses of sending agents and certain other parties we transact with directly. As of December 31, 2022, we also had $2.8 million
outstanding of agent advances receivable from sending agents. Most of the agent advances receivable are collateralized by personal guarantees from the
sending agents and by assets from their businesses.

Our provision for credit losses was approximately $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 (0.5% of total revenues), $1.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 (0.3% of total revenues) and $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 (0.5% of total revenues). The increase in
our provision for credit losses in the year ended December 31, 2022 is due to higher write-offs of accounts receivable in 2022 compared to 2021 primarily
as a result of sending agents that were not able to pay in accordance with the original terms and are, accordingly, subject to our normal collection
procedures.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
International Money Express, Inc.
Miami, Florida

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of International Money Express, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) and our report dated March 15, 2023 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below,
providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Sufficiency of Audit Evidence from Highly Automated Systems to Process and Record Revenue

As described in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, revenue is primarily generated from fees earned from providing wire transfer and
money order transaction services to individual customers.

We identified the evaluation of the sufficiency of audit evidence over revenue from wire transfer fees obtained from the Company’s information technology
(IT) systems to be a critical audit matter. The processing and recording of wire transfer fees is highly automated and relies on multiple internally developed
systems and databases. The process to understand, design and test the operating effectiveness of relevant IT general and application controls required the
involvement of individuals with specialized skills and knowledge.
The primary procedures performed to address this critical audit matter included:
* Involving IT professionals with specialized skills and knowledge in the performance of the following procedures:
o Identifying the relevant systems used to calculate, transmit and record wire transfer fees.
o Testing the general IT controls over relevant systems, including testing user access controls, change management controls, and IT
operations controls.
o Testing the operating effectiveness of automated application controls, including system interfaces.
*  Performing substantive analytical procedures over wire transfer fee revenue, including testing the underlying information from the IT system.

Business Combination - Fair Value Measurement of Certain Acquired Intangible Assets

As described in Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, on November 1, 2022, the Company acquired Envios de Valores La Nacional Corp.
for total consideration transferred of $41.0 million which includes contingent consideration of $1.3 million. The Company accounted for the transaction
under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Accordingly, the consideration transferred was allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date including the trade name and agent relationships of approximately $8.4
million.

We identified the determination of the fair values of the trade name and agent relationships as a critical audit matter because (i) the fair value estimates
were sensitive to changes in the significant assumptions such as revenue growth rates and agent attrition rates used in the applicable valuation model and



(i1) the audit effort required the involvement of individuals with specialized skills and knowledge in valuation.

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included:

»  Testing the design and operating effectiveness of controls over the Company’s forecasting process, including controls over the Company’s review
of the significant assumptions described above.

»  Testing the completeness and accuracy of the underlying data used in the valuation.

+ Evaluating the reasonableness of the significant assumptions described above used in the applicable valuation model by comparing (i) revenue
growth rates to historical operating performance, industry trends, and results from other areas of the audit; and (ii) agent attrition rates to historical
attrition rates and results from other areas of the audit.

»  Utilizing our valuation specialists to assess the appropriateness of the valuation methodology and evaluating the reasonableness of the discount
rates by developing an independent estimate of the discount rate and comparing it to the discount rate used by the Company.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2017.

Miami, Florida
March 15,2023
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INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except for share data)

December 31,

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,493 $ 132,474
Accounts receivable, net 129,808 67,317
Prepaid wires, net 90,386 56,766
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,749 6,988
Total current assets 382,436 263,545
Property and equipment, net 28,160 17,905
Goodwill 49,774 36,260
Intangible assets, net 19,826 15,392
Other assets 31,876 7,434
Total assets $ 5 12,072 $ 340,536
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt, net $ 4975 $ 3,882
Accounts payable 25,686 23,151
Wire transfers and money orders payable, net 112,251 56,066
Accrued and other liabilities 41,855 33,760
Total current liabilities 184,767 116,859
Long-term liabilities:
Debt, net 150,235 79,211
Lease liabilities, net 23,272 —
Deferred tax liability, net 3,892 1,426
Total long-term liabilities 177,399 80,637
Commitments and contingencies, see Note 18
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock $0.0001 par value; 230,000,000 shares authorized, 39,453,236 and 38,820,222
shares issued and 36,630,970 and 38,478,700 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively 4 4
Additional paid-in capital 70,210 66,875
Retained earnings 139,134 81,803
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (142) (76)
Treasury stock, at cost; 2,822,266 and 341,522 shares as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively (59,300) (5,566)
Total stockholders’ equity 149,906 143,040
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 512,072 $ 340,536

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except for share data)

Revenues:
Wire transfer and money order fees, net
Foreign exchange gain, net
Other income
Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Service charges from agents and banks
Salaries and benefits
Other selling, general and administrative expenses
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Interest expense

Income before income taxes

Income tax provision

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

Earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

469,162 $ 393,241 $ 307,909
72,920 62,832 46,763
4,723 3,133 2,537
546,305 459,206 357,209
364,804 307,458 238,597
52,224 43,065 32,831
34,394 30,334 22,086
3,005 1,006 —
9,470 9,491 10,828
463,897 391,354 304,342
82,908 67,852 52,867
5,629 4,537 6,566
77,279 63,315 46,301
19,948 16,472 12,517
57,331 46,343 33,784
(66) (63) (106)
57,265 $ 46,780 $ 33,678
152 $ 122§ 0.89

148 $ 1.20 $ 0.88
37,733,047 38,474,040 38,060,290
38,625,390 39,103,450 38,358,171
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Balance, December 31,
2019

Net income

Issuance of common stock:
Exercise of stock options
Restricted stock units

Share-based compensation

Adjustment from foreign
currency translation, net

Balance, December 31,
2020

Net income

Issuance of common stock:

Exercise of stock options,
net of shares withheld
for taxes

Restricted stock units, net
of shares withheld for
taxes

Fully vested shares
Share-based compensation

Adjustment from foreign
currency translation, net

Acquisition of treasury
stock, at cost

Balance, December 31,
2021

Net income
Issuance of common stock:

Exercise of stock options,
net of shares withheld
for taxes

Restricted stock units and
awards, net of shares
withheld for taxes

Fully vested shares
Share-based compensation

Adjustment from foreign
currency translation, net

Acquisition of treasury
stock, at cost

Balance, December 31,
2022

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except for share data)

» Accumulated

Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional . Other Total
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Income Equity
38,034,389 $ 4 — — § 54,694 § 1,176 § 93 § 55,967
— — — — — 33,784 — 33,784
163,783 — — 1,379 — — 1,379
18,953 — — — — — —
— — — 3,237 — — 3,237
— — — — — (106) (106)
38,217,125 § 4 — — § 59310 § 34,960 $ 13) $ 94,261
— — — — — 46,843 — 46,843
463,021 — — 3,037 — — 3,037
135,943 — — (73) — — (73)
4,133 — — — — — — —
— — — — 4,601 — — 4,601
— — — — — — (63) (63)
— — (341,522) (5,566) — — — (5,566)
38,820,222 § 4 (341,522) § (5,566) $ 66,875 § 81,803 § (76) $ 143,040
— — — — 57,331 — 57,331
476,304 — — — (3,388) — — (3,388)
153,266 — — (395) — — (395)
3,444 — — — — — —
_ _ _ 7,118 — — 7,118
— — — — — (66) (66)
— —  (2,480,744) (53,734) — — — (53,734)
39,453,236 $ 4 (2,822,266) $§ (59,3000 § 70,210 $ 139,134 (142) $ 149,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 57,331 $ 46,843 $ 33,784

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 9,470 9,491 10,828
Share-based compensation 7,118 4,601 3,237
Provision for credit losses 2,572 1,537 1,801
Debt origination costs amortization 998 875 760
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision, net (503) 734 1,433
Non-cash lease expense 3,105 — —
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 788 1,423 419
Total adjustments 23,548 18,661 18,478
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (48,628) (13,846) (17,080)
Prepaid wires, net (32,444) (3,887) (35,598)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (3,919) (6,355) (1,137)
Lease Liabilities 594 — —
Wire transfers and money orders payable, net 19,734 14,726 2,092
Accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities (1,042) 21,956 (1,419)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 15,174 78,098 (880)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash used in business acquisition, net of cash and cash equivalents

acquired (131) — _
Purchases of property and equipment (12,173) (10,588) (4,062)
Acquisition of agent locations (225) (185) —
Net cash used in investing activities (12,529) (10,773) (4,062)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Borrowings under term loan facility 40,158 —
Repayments of term loan facility (4,375) (44,228) (7,661)
Borrowings under revolving loan, net 76,000 — —
Payment of debt origination costs (50) (2,944) —
Proceeds from exercises of options 1,660 3,813 1,501
Payments for stock-based awards (5,443) (849) —
Repurchases of common stock (53,734) (5,566) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 14,058 (9,616) (6,160)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 316 (142) (108)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,019 57,567 (11,210)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 132,474 74,907 86,117
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year $ 149,493 $ 132,474 $ 74,907

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest $ 4,625 $ 3,666 $ 5,812

Cash paid for income taxes $ 24,265 % 13,456 $ 11,140
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing
activities:

Issuance of common stock for cashless exercise of options $ 9,175 $ 2,973 $ 130

Non-cash lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets ~ $ 23,013 $ — $ —

Contingent consideration liability $ 1,321 § — § —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BUSINESS

International Money Express, Inc. (the “Company” or “us” or “we”) operates as a money transmitter between the United States of America (“United
States” or “U.S.”) and Canada to Mexico, Guatemala and other countries in Latin America, Africa and Asia through a network of authorized agents located
in various unaffiliated retail establishments and 117 Company-operated stores throughout the United States and Canada.

The coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic that started in 2020 has had and continues to have a significant effect on economic conditions in the United
States, and continues to cause significant uncertainties in the U.S. and global economies. Public health officials and medical professionals have warned that
COVID-19 resurgences may continue to occur due to a variety of factors, including the extent of economic activity, social interaction, vaccination rates and
the emergence of potent variants. It is unclear if and when resurgences will occur or how long any resurgence will last, how severe it will be, and what
safety measures governments and businesses will impose in response.

The Company’s operations have continued effectively despite measures taken in response to the pandemic. However, the Company’s financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows remain dependent on future developments, including the persistence of the pandemic’s effects on economic conditions,
particularly the level of unemployment of our consumers, inflation (including changes in wages) and governmental efforts to restrain inflation, interest rate
levels and foreign exchange volatility, as well as the possibility of resurgences of the pandemic and the severity of any such resurgence, all of which remain
uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include Intermex Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”), a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of
the Company, Intermex Wire Transfer, LLC (“LLC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Holdings, Intermex Wire Transfers de Guatemala, S.A. (“Intermex
Guatemala”) - 100% owned by LLC, Intermex Wire Transfer de Mexico, S.A. and Intermex Transfers de Mexico, S.A. (“Intermex Mexico”) - 98.0%
directly owned by LLC and 2.0% directly owned by Holdings, Intermex Wire Transfer Corp. - 100% owned by LLC, Intermex Wire Transfer II, LLC -
100% owned by LLC, Canada International Transfers Corp. - 100% owned by LLC and Envios de Valores La Nacional Corp. (“La Nacional”) - 100%
owned by LLC. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”).

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for each period. Diluted
earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding for
each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if outstanding stock options at the presented dates are exercised and
shares of restricted stock units (“RSUs”), restricted stock awards (“RSAs”) and performance stock units (“PSUs”) have vested, using the treasury stock
method. Potential common shares are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per common share when the effect would be anti-dilutive.
Treasury stock shares that have been repurchased are not considered outstanding and therefore are excluded from the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding calculation.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash is comprised of deposits in U.S. and foreign banks. The Company recognizes interest income from its cash deposits on an accrual basis. The
Company considers cash equivalents to be short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents include
cash on deposit in overnight deposit accounts.

Concentrations

The Company maintains certain of its cash balances in various U.S. banks, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
incurred any losses on these accounts. In addition, the Company maintains various bank accounts in Mexico, Guatemala and Canada, which are not
insured. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has not incurred any significant losses on these uninsured foreign bank accounts, with the
exception of a $3.6 million reserve recorded by the Company on the balance of deposits
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held as a result of the closure of a financial institution in Mexico during the third quarter of 2021 (see Note 6). Management believes it is not exposed to
any significant credit risk regarding these accounts as it performs periodic reviews of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions the Company uses.
Cash and cash equivalents balances were as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents in U.S. dollars in U.S. banks $ 142,143  $ 130,032
Cash and cash equivalents in foreign banks and foreign currency 7,340 2,433
Petty cash 10 9
$ 149,493  $ 132,474

A substantial portion of our paying agents are concentrated in a few large banks and financial institutions and large retail chains. Our largest paying agent
by volume accounted for approximately 24% and 22% of the Company’s total remittance volume for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, primarily from the U.S. to Mexico.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues for wire transfer and money order fees are recognized at the time the transaction is processed. The Company acts as the principal for these
transactions as the Company controls the service at all times prior to transferring the funds to the beneficiary, is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
customer contracts, has the risk of loss and has the ability to establish transaction prices. Therefore, these fees are recognized on a gross basis equal to the
full amount of the fee charged to the customer. These fees also vary by transaction primarily depending upon, the principal amount sent, the send and
receive locations, as well as the respective currencies of the send and receive locations. Foreign exchange gain, net, which represents the difference
between the exchange rate set by the Company and the rate realized, is recognized upon the disbursement of U.S. dollars to the entities from which the
Company is acquiring foreign currency. Other income primarily represents revenues for technology services provided to the independent network of agents
who utilize the Company’s technology in processing transactions and check cashing services, for which revenue is derived by a fee per transaction.

Refer to Note 4 for the discussion related to revenue recognition and additional information on the Company’s revenue.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for its business combinations using the acquisition method, which requires that intangible assets be recognized apart from goodwill
if they are contractual in nature or separately identifiable. Acquisitions are measured based on the fair value of consideration transferred and, if the
consideration transferred is not cash, measurement is based on the fair value of the consideration transferred or the fair value of the assets acquired,
whichever is more reliably measurable. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
is allocated to goodwill.

The valuation and allocation processes rely on significant assumptions made by management. In certain situations, the allocations of excess purchase price
are based upon preliminary estimates and assumptions. Accordingly, the allocations are subject to revision when the Company receives updated
information, including valuations and other analyses, which are completed within one year of the acquisition. Revisions to the preliminary fair values,
which may be significant, are recorded through goodwill until pending information is finalized, not to exceed one year from the acquisition date. Any
revisions to the fair values after they have been finalized will be accounted for as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive
income.

Consideration transferred may consist of potential future payments that are contingent upon the acquired business achieving certain levels of earnings in the
future, also referred to as “contingent consideration” or “earn-out.” Earn-out liability is measured at its estimated fair value as of the date of acquisition.
Changes in the fair value of earn-out liability are recorded as a component of operating income in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive
income. The earn-out liability is included within accrued current and other liabilities within the consolidated balance sheet. Earn-out payments, to the
extent they relate to the estimated earn-out liability as of the date of acquisition, are classified within financing activities in the consolidated statement of
cash flows. Earn-out payments in excess of the acquisition date earn-out liability are classified within operating activities.

Direct costs incurred in connection with business combination transactions are expensed as incurred and are included as Transaction Costs in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable and agent advances receivable are recorded at their net realizable value, which is net of an allowance for credit losses. Accounts
receivable are recorded upon initiation of the wire transfer and are typically due to the Company within five days. The Company maintains an allowance
for credit losses for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its sending agents to make required payments.

The Company adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, on December 31, 2022, which was retroactively applied as of the first day of
fiscal year 2022, as further described within the section below titled Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. This accounting standard requires
companies to measure expected credit losses on financial instruments based on the total estimated amount to be collected over the lifetime of the
instrument. Prior to the adoption of this accounting standard, the Company recorded incurred loss reserves against receivable balances based on current and
historical information.

Expected credit losses for uncollectible receivable balances consider both current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future conditions.
Current conditions considered include pre-defined aging criteria, as well as specified events that indicate the balance due is not collectible. Reasonable and
supportable forecasts used in determining the probability of future collection consider publicly available macroeconomic data and whether future credit
losses are expected to differ from historical losses. Accounts receivable that are more than 90 days past due are charged off against the allowance for credit
losses.

Receivable balances from sending agents are usually due to the Company within five days from the invoice date. Any balances not collected after that time
are considered past due.

The Company is not party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that would require an allowance for credit losses in accordance with this accounting
standard.

Prepaid Wires, Net

Prepaid wires, net represents funds provided to certain paying agents in advance of a transaction, net of wires pending to be picked up by the beneficiary of
the money transfer.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets consist primarily of prepaid expenses for services, tenant allowance, agent advances receivable (see Note 6) and deferred
financing costs. Interest income on agent advances receivable is recognized on a cash basis due at the end of each calendar month, which is when the
interest payments are due from the majority of the agent advances receivable.

Wire Transfers Payable, Net

Wire transfers payable, net represent wires pending to be picked up by the beneficiary of the money transfer net of funds provided to certain paying agents
in advance of a transaction.

Leases

The Company is a party to leases for office space, warehouses and Company-operated store locations. The Company determines if a contract contains a
lease arrangement at the inception of the contract. For leases in which the Company is the lessee, leases are classified as either finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition. At commencement date, lease right-of-use (“ROUs”) assets consist of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement date, minus any lease incentive received, and any
initial direct costs. If a lease does not provide a discount rate and the rate cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is used to determine
the present value of future lease payments. Lease and variable non-lease components within the Company’s lease agreements are not accounted for
separately.

Refer to Note 8 for additional information on the adoption of ASC 842: Leases, effective January 1, 2022.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost, or the allocated fair value in purchase accounting, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. The costs of additions and betterments that substantially extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and the
expenditures for ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed in the period incurred as part of other selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is shorter. At the
time depreciable assets are retired or otherwise disposed, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation of such assets are eliminated from the accounts
and any gain or loss is recognized in the current
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period. The Company capitalizes costs incurred for the development of internal use computer software, which are depreciated over five years using the
straight-line method.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets result primarily from business combination acquisitions. Intangible assets include primarily agent relationships, trade
names, developed technology and other intangibles, all with finite lives. Other intangibles relate to the acquisition of certain agent locations and non-
competition agreements. Upon the acquisition, the purchase price is first allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities, including trade name and other
intangibles, with any remaining purchase price recorded as goodwill.

Goodwill is not amortized; however, it is assessed for impairment at least annually, at the beginning of the fourth quarter, or more frequently if triggering
events occur. For purposes of the annual assessment, management initially performs a qualitative assessment, which includes consideration of the
economic, industry and market conditions in addition to our overall financial performance and the performance of these assets. If our qualitative assessment
does not conclude that it is more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is greater than the carrying value, we perform a
quantitative analysis. In a quantitative test, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis. A discounted cash flow
analysis requires us to make various assumptions, including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. The assumptions about
future cash flows and growth rates are based on our long-term projections. Assumptions used in our impairment testing are consistent with our internal
forecasts and operating plans. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, there is no impairment. If not, we recognize an impairment
equal to the difference between the carrying amount of the reporting unit and its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill.

The Company’s agent relationships, trade names and developed technology are amortized utilizing an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives
of up to 15 years. Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over a useful life of up to 10 years. The Company reviews for impairment

indicators of finite-lived intangibles and other long-lived assets as described below in “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.”

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
comparing the carrying amount of an asset to forecasted undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the asset. For long-lived assets held for sale, assets are written down to fair value, less cost to sell. Fair value is determined based on
discounted cash flows, appraised values or management’s estimates, depending upon the nature of the assets.

Debt Origination Costs

The Company incurred debt origination costs related to the A&R Credit Agreement (as defined herein), consisting of a term loan facility and a revolving
credit facility and amortizes these costs over the life of the related debt using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.
The unamortized portion of debt origination costs related to the term loan is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as an offset to the related debt,
while deferred up-front commitment fees paid directly to the lender related to the revolving credit facility are recorded within other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets. Amortization of debt origination costs is included as a component of interest expense in the consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are included in other selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income
and are expensed as incurred. The Company incurred advertising costs of approximately $1.0 million, $2.5 million and $0.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with GAAP which requires, among other things, recognition of future tax benefits measured at
enacted rates attributable to deductible temporary differences between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and to tax net
operating loss carryforwards to the extent that realization of said benefits is more likely than not.

The Company accounts for tax contingencies by assessing all material positions, including all significant uncertain positions, for all tax years that are open
to assessment or challenge under tax statutes. Those positions that have only timing consequences are separately analyzed based on the recognition and
measurement model provided in the tax guidance.
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As required by the uncertain tax position guidance, the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a position only after determining that the
relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more likely-than-not threshold, the
amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the relevant tax authority. The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Tax regulations
within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company
applies the uncertain tax position guidance to all tax positions for which the statute of limitations remains open. The Company’s policy is to classify interest
accrued as interest expense and penalties as other selling, general and administrative expenses.

Foreign subsidiaries of the Company are subject to taxes by local tax authorities.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The financial statements and transactions of the Company’s foreign operations are maintained in their functional currency, which is other than the U.S.
dollar. Assets and liabilities are translated at current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rate for each period. Translation adjustments, which result from the process of translating the financial statements of the Company’s foreign
operations into U.S. dollars, are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Gains or losses from foreign currency transactions amounted to approximately a loss of $15.5 thousand, and gains of $0.3 million and $0.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in other selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

We manage foreign currency risk through the structure of the business and an active risk management process. We currently settle with our payers in Latin
America primarily by entering into foreign exchange tom and spot transactions with local and foreign currency providers (“counterparties”). The foreign
currency exposure on our foreign exchange tom and spot transactions is limited by the fact that all transactions are settled within two business days from
trade date. Foreign currency fluctuations, however, may negatively affect our average exchange gain per transaction. The Company had open tom and spot
foreign exchange contracts for Mexico and Guatemala amounting to approximately $41.3 million and $48.6 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

In addition, included in wire transfers and money orders payable, net in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there are $39.3
million and $17.8 million, respectively, of wire transfers payable denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in Mexican pesos and Guatemalan quetzales.

Also, included in prepaid wires, net in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there are $82.3 million and $39.7 million,
respectively, of prepaid wires denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in Mexican pesos and Guatemalan quetzales.

Comprehensive Income (Loss),

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and the foreign currency translation adjustment and is presented in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its share-based compensation expense related to equity instruments under GAAP, which requires the measurement and
recognition of compensation costs for all equity-based payment awards made to employees and directors based on estimated fair values. We have elected to
account for forfeitures as they occur. The Company may use either authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares to meet share issuance requirements.
See Note 14 for further discussion related to the Company’s share-based compensation plans.

Segments

The Company’s business is organized around one reportable segment that provides money transmittal services between the U.S. and Canada to Mexico,
Guatemala and other countries in Latin America, Africa and Asia through a network of authorized agents located in various unaffiliated retail
establishments and 117 Company-operated stores throughout the U.S. and Canada. This is based on the objectives of the business and how our chief

operating decision maker, the CEO and President, monitors operating performance and allocates resources.

Reclassifications
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Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. These changes did not have any effect on net income,
stockholders’ equity, the consolidated balance sheet or the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounting Pronouncements

The FASB issued guidance, Leases (Topic 842), to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease
liabilities on the balance sheet for those leases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP. The guidance requires that a lessee recognizes a liability
to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a ROU asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term on the consolidated balance
sheet. Leases will be classified as financing or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. The Company adopted the new standard, including the related amendments, effective January 1, 2022 using the
modified retrospective approach and used the effective date as the date of initial application. Management has completed its analysis and determined that
all of its leasing arrangements will be classified as operating leases. The Company elected to apply three practical expedients, including (i) the election not
to reassess its prior conclusions about lease identification, lease classification and initial direct costs, (ii) to use hindsight in determining the lease term, and
(iii) the election not to separate lease and non-lease components for arrangements where the Company is a lessee. Additionally, management has
implemented new processes to facilitate the requirements of the new standard and determined the ROU asset and lease liability will each amount to
approximately $5.6 million on January 1, 2022. Refer to Note 8 for additional information on this standard and related disclosures. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows.

The FASB issued guidance, ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, which requires entities to estimate all expected credit losses for financial
assets measured at amortized cost basis, including trade receivables, held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts. The Company adopted this guidance using the modified retrospective adoption method on December 31, 2022, which
was retroactively applied as of the first day of fiscal year 2022. The adoption of this accounting standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The FASB issued guidance, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, which
provides optional expedient and exceptions for applying generally accepted accounting principles to contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions
affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. In response to the concerns about structural risks of interbank offered rates and, particularly, the
risk of cessation of the London Inter-bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), regulators in several jurisdictions around the world have undertaken reference rate
reform initiatives to identify alternative reference rates that are more observable or transaction based and less susceptible to manipulation. This accounting
standards update provides companies with optional guidance to ease the potential accounting burden associated with transitioning away from reference
rates that are expected to be discontinued. The Company adopted this guidance upon entering into an amendment of the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement in November 2022, which among other provisions, introduces the secured overnight financing rate as administered by the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York to replace LIBOR as the benchmark rate. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

NOTE 3 — ACQUISITIONS

Envios de Valores L.a Nacional Corp.

In March 2022, the Company entered into a definitive purchase agreement to acquire La Nacional and LAN Holdings, Corp. (“LAN Holdings”), which
operate as money remittance companies in the United States, Canada and certain countries in Europe. On November 1, 2022, we completed the acquisition
of 100% of the voting interest of La Nacional (the “La Nacional Acquisition”) and we expect to complete the acquisition of LAN Holdings (the “LAN
Acquisition,” and together with the La Nacional Acquisition, the “Acquisitions”) in the second quarter of 2023 subject to the satisfaction of customary
closing conditions, including pending regulatory approvals. See “LAN Holdings, Corp.” section below.

The La Nacional Acquisition strengthens the Company’s presence in the Dominican Republic and other key markets in Latin America. La Nacional has
more than 35 years of experience in the money transfer industry, is licensed to operate in 34 states and is headquartered in Denver, Colorado with offices in
New York, NY.

The Company paid cash consideration of $39.7 million upon consummation of the La Nacional Acquisition (subject to customary purchase price
adjustments) and anticipates up to an additional $2.4 million in contingent consideration to be paid in cash in 2023 as a result of La Nacional achieving
certain transaction volume and financial targets during 2023.

The La Nacional Acquisition was funded with cash on hand. The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of consideration paid and

identifiable net assets acquired, which is subject to customary purchase price adjustments. The Company engaged an independent third party to assist with
the valuation of identifiable net assets acquired.

F-13



Index

La Nacional

Acquisition consideration:

Cash $ 39,700
Estimated fair value of contingent consideration 1,321
Total consideration transferred $ 41,021

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,569
Accounts receivable 16,504
Prepaid wires 571
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,219
Property and Equipment 4,077
Intangible assets 8,450
Other assets 13,659

Total identifiable assets acquired 84,049

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable (1,260)
Wire transfers and money orders payable (35,595)
Accrued and other liabilities (3,651)
Lease liabilities (13,067)
Deferred tax liability (2,969)
Total liabilities assumed (56,542)
Net identifiable assets acquired 27,507
Consideration transferred 41,021
Goodwill $ 13,514

The goodwill balance for La Nacional Acquisition represents the estimated values of the company’s geographic presence in key markets, assembled
workforce, management team’s industry-specific knowledge and synergies expected to be achieved from the combined operations of La Nacional and
Intermex. Goodwill resulting from La Nacional Acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.

Amortizing intangible assets related to La Nacional Acquisition are primarily comprised of agent relationships, trade name and non-competition
agreements, which had weighted average lives of approximately 15 years, 10 years and 5 years, respectively, and are based on La Nacional’s operational
history and established relationships with, and the nature of, its customers. The weighted average life of amortizing intangible assets for La Nacional
Acquisition was 14.95 years in the aggregate. These intangible assets are amortized utilizing an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives, which
is a manner consistent with the pattern in which the related benefits are expected to be consumed. The acquisition date fair value of the agent relationship,
trade name and non-competition agreement intangibles was $5.6 million, $2.8 million and $40.0 thousand, respectively.

The agent relationships intangible represents the network of independent sending agents. This intangible was valued using the excess earnings method,
which was based on the Company’s forecasts and historical activity at agent locations in order to develop a turnover rate and expected economic useful life.
Assuming a year-over-year location turnover rate of 20.0%, this resulted in an expected useful life for this intangible of 15 years.

Trade name refers to the La Nacional name, branded on all agent locations and well recognized in the market. This fair value was determined using the
relief-from-royalty method, which is based on the Company’s expected revenues and a royalty rate estimated using comparable market data. The Company
determined it was appropriate to assign a finite useful life of 10 years to the trade name to provide better matching of the amortization expense during the
period of expected benefits.

F-14



Index

The definitive purchase agreement to acquire La Nacional and LAN Holdings entered into by the Company includes non-competition provisions agreed to
by the former owner and two key members of management of La Nacional. The fair value of these intangibles was valued using the “with and without”
method, which estimated the value of an asset based on the difference in the value of the business’s cash flows “with” and “without” that asset. The
Company assigned useful lives of up to five years for these intangibles, which matches the contractual term of the non-competition agreements.

The contingent consideration fair value of approximately $1.3 million at the acquisition date was determined using a Monte-Carlo option pricing model.

As a result of La Nacional Acquisition, La Nacional entered into retention agreements with certain key employees if they remain employed by the
Company for a term of up to 18 months. The total amount to be paid under these retention agreements is $1.6 million, out of which $0.5 million was paid
by La Nacional at the closing of La Nacional Acquisition. In connection with these retention agreements, the Company incurred $0.1 million that is
included in salaries and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022.
The remaining benefit will be expensed as incurred over the remaining term of the retention agreements.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company’s consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income includes $13.3 million and $0.1
million of revenue and net loss, respectively, from La Nacional.

LAN Holdings, Corp.

On February 17, 2023, the Company entered into the third amendment of the definitive purchase agreement (the “Third Amendment”). The Third
Amendment allows the parties to close the acquisition of LAN Holdings at a later date subject to customary regulatory approvals. In addition, under the
Third Amendment the parties agreed that the LAN Holdings earn-out targets (as defined in the definitive purchase agreement) have been achieved and the
earn-out will be paid under the terms of the definitive purchase agreement.

The acquisition of LAN Holdings is expected to close in the second quarter of 2023. For LAN Holdings, the Company expects to pay cash of
approximately $8.0 million (subject to customary purchase price adjustments), and an additional $0.6 million related to LAN Holdings’s achievement of
certain operational milestones during 2023.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs include all internal and external costs directly related to the acquisition activity, consisting primarily of legal, consulting, accounting and
financial advisory fees. Transaction costs for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to $3.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively. There
were no transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2020. Transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2022 related to the Acquisitions, while
transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2021 relate to costs incurred in connection with potential acquisitions at that moment, including La
Nacional and LAN Holdings.

Unaudited Supplemental Pro Forma Financial Information

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, unaudited supplemental pro forma revenue totaled approximately $613.2 million and $556.1 million,
respectively, and unaudited supplemental pro forma net income totaled approximately $60.3 million and $45.7 million, respectively.

These unaudited pro forma financial results include the results of operations of La Nacional as if it had been consolidated as of January 1, 2021, the
beginning of the year prior to its acquisition, and are provided for illustrative purposes only. These unaudited pro forma financial results do not purport to
be indicative of the actual results that would have been achieved by the combined companies for the periods indicated, or of the results that may be
achieved by the combined companies in the future. The Company’s unaudited pro forma financial results were prepared by adding the unaudited historical
results of the acquired business to the historical results of Intermex, and then adjusting those combined results for transaction costs of $3.0 million and the
incremental depreciation and amortization expense related to the property and equipment and intangible assets acquired. The transaction costs were
included in the pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2021 but removed from the pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2022.
These unaudited pro forma financial results do not include adjustments to reflect other cost savings or synergies that may have resulted from this
acquisition. Future results may vary significantly due to future events and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control.
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NOTE 4 - REVENUE

The Company recognized in revenues from contracts with customers for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2022 2021 2020
Wire transfer and money order fees $ 471,190 $ 394,669 $ 308,850
Discounts and promotions (2,028) (1,428) (941)
Wire transfer and money order fees, net 469,162 393,241 307,909
Foreign exchange gain, net 72,920 62,832 46,763
Other income 4,723 3,133 2,537
Total revenues $ 546,805 $ 459206 $ 357,209

There are no significant initial costs incurred to obtain contracts with customers, although the Company has a loyalty program under which customers earn
one point for each wire transfer completed. Points can be redeemed for a discounted wire transaction fee or a foreign exchange rate that is more favorable
to the customer. The customer benefits vary by country, and the earned points expire if the customer has not initiated and completed an eligible wire
transfer transaction within the immediately preceding 180-day period. In addition, earned points will expire 30 days after the end of the program. Because
the loyalty program benefits represent a future performance obligation, a portion of the initial consideration is recorded as deferred revenue loyalty program
(see Note 11) and a corresponding loyalty program expense is recorded as contra revenue. Revenue from this performance obligation is recognized upon
customers redeeming points or upon expiration of any points outstanding.

Except for the loyalty program discussed above, our revenues include only one performance obligation, which is to collect the customer’s money and make
funds available for payment, generally on the same day, to a designated recipient in the currency requested.

The Company also offers several other services, including money orders, and check cashing through our sending agents, for which revenue is derived from
a fee per transaction. For substantially all of the Company’s revenues, the Company acts as principal in the transactions and reports revenue on a gross
basis, because the Company controls the service at all times prior to transfer to the customer, is primarily responsible for fulfilling the customer contracts,

has the risk of loss and has the ability to establish transaction prices.

Wire transfers and money order fees include money order fees of $1.8 million, $1.5 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 5 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND AGENT ADVANCES RECEIVABLE, NET OF ALLOWANCE
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represents primarily outstanding balances from sending agents for pending wire transfers or money orders from our customers. The
outstanding balance of accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses, consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Accounts receivable $ 132,363 $ 69,498
Allowance for credit losses (2,555) (2,181)
Accounts receivable, net $ 129,808 $ 67,317

Agent Advances Receivable
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The Company had agent advances receivable, net of allowance for credit losses, from sending agents as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Agent advances receivable, current $ 1,373  $ 791
Allowance for credit losses (62) (55)
Net current $ 1,311 § 736
Agent advances receivable, long-term $ 1,423 § 656
Allowance for credit losses (31) (13)
Net long-term $ 1,392 $ 643

The net current portion of agent advances receivable is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets (see Note 6), and the net long-term portion is
included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Certain agent advances receivable bear interest and have interest rates ranging from 0% to
15.0% per annum. The Company had an immaterial amount of accrued interest receivable as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and included accrued interest
receivable in the allowance for credit losses calculation. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were $2.8 million and $1.4 million, respectively, of agent
advances receivable collateralized by personal guarantees from the sending agents and assets from their businesses in case of a default by the agent.

The maturities of agent advances receivable at December 31, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Outstanding
Balance
Under 1 year $ 1,373
Between 1 and 2 years 1,302
Between 2 and 3 years 121
Total $ 2,796

Allowance for Credit Losses

The changes in the allowance for credit losses related to accounts receivable and agent advances receivable are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020
Beginning balance $ 2,249 $ 2,042 $ 1,236
Provision 2,572 1,537 1,801
Charge-offs (2,982) (1,863) (1,491)
Recoveries 809 533 496
Ending Balance $ 2,648 $ 2,249 § 2,042

The allowance for credit losses allocated by financial instrument category is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Accounts receivable $ 2,555 $ 2,181 $ 1,503
Agent advances receivable 93 68 539
Allowance for credit losses $ 2,648 $ 2,249 $ 2,042
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NOTE 6 — PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

Prepaid insurance

Prepaid fees and services

Agent incentives advances

Agent advances receivable, net of allowance
Assets pending settlement

Prepaid income taxes

Tenant allowance

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Other assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

Revolving line origination fees

Agent incentives advances

Agent advances receivable, net of allowance
Right-of-use assets, net

Funds held by seized banking entities, net of allowance
Other assets

During September 2021, local banking regulators in Mexico resolved to close and liquidate a local financial institution, citing a lack of compliance with
minimum capital requirements. The Company has approximately $5.2 million of exposure from deposits it held with this bank when it was closed. In
accordance with the banking regulations in Mexico, large depositors such as the Company will be paid once the assets of the financial institution are
liquidated. Currently, it is difficult to predict the length of the liquidation process or if the proceeds from the asset liquidation will be sufficient to recover a
portion or all of its funds on deposit. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recorded an initial provision of $2.0 million. As a result of
management’s reassessment of the current status of the liquidation process, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded an additional
provision of $1.6 million for a total valuation allowance of approximately $3.6 million as of December 31, 2022, in connection with the balance of deposits

held by the financial institution as a result of its closure.
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December 31,

2022 2021
1,578 $ 923
1,986 1,930
1,014 815
1,311 736
211 331
2,130 1,563
3,753 —
766 690
12,749 $ 6,988
December 31,
2022 2021
1,578 $ 2,032
1,062 1,010
1,392 643
24,768 —
1,646 3,114
1,430 635
31,876 $ 7,434
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31, [ljissélﬁrﬁaieige
2022 2021 (in years)
Land $ 36 $ —
Building 565 — 30
Computer software and equipment 47,316 30,805 3t05
Office improvements 5,508 1,575 5
Furniture and fixtures 2,789 835 7
56,214 33,215
Less accumulated depreciation (28,054) (15,310)
$ 28,160 $ 17,905

Computer software and equipment above includes internal use software of approximately $8.6 million and $4.7 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company wrote-off $1.0 million (none in 2022) in software development expenditures, which
is included in other selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Depreciation expense included in depreciation and amortization expense in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income was
approximately $5.2 million, $4.3 million and $3.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Repairs and maintenance expenses included in other selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income were approximately $3.7 million, $2.6 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 8 - LEASES

The Company adopted ASC 842, including related amendments, effective January 1, 2022, using the modified retrospective approach and used the
effective date as the date of initial application; therefore comparative periods were not adjusted. The Company determined that all of its leasing
arrangements are classified as operating leases. The Company elected to apply the practical expedients to (i) not reassess its prior conclusions about lease
identification, lease classification and initial direct costs and (ii) use hindsight in determining the lease term. In addition, the Company elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components for all arrangements where the Company is a lessee. The Company presently intends to exercise certain of the
extension options available and for purposes of computing the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities required by ASC 842, the Company has incorporated
the options to renew that are reasonably certain of being exercised. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the recording of additional right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately $5.6 million as of January 1, 2022. The adoption of ASC 842 did not materially impact the Company’s consolidated
net income and cash flows. Additionally, there was no cumulative effect of adoption recognized on retained earnings in the consolidated statement of
changes in stockholders’ equity.

In December 2022, the Company entered into a lease agreement, which expires in 2033, for its new headquarters to accommodate its growing workforce.
The Company expects to complete the move to the new headquarters in the second half of 2023 following the completion of leasehold improvements. The
new lease agreement provides for the Company to receive a tenant allowance amounting to approximately $3.8 million through the third quarter of 2023
and the Company will commence making monthly lease payments on November 1, 2024. Such tenant allowance has been recorded within prepaid
expenses and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The tables below include the ROU assets acquired and lease liabilities assumed in the La Nacional Acquisition, which amounted to approximately $12.2
million and $12.5 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2022. In addition, lease expense attributed to La Nacional of approximately $0.7 million for the
period from November 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, is included in the other selling and general administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of income and comprehensive income.

The presentation of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows (in thousands):
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Leases Classification December 31, 2022
Assets

Right-of-use assets Other assets" $ 24,768
Total leased assets $ 24,768
Liabilities
Current

Operating Accrued and other liabilities $ 5,258
Noncurrent

Operating Lease liabilities 23,272
Total Lease liabilities $ 28,530

(1) Operating right of-use assets are recorded net of accumulated amortization of $5.6 million as of December 31, 2022.

Lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2022, was as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended
Lease Cost Classification December 31, 2022

Operating lease cost Other selling, general and administrative expenses $ 3,105

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 was $2.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively, which is included in other
selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s weighted-average remaining lease terms on its operating leases is 6.6 years, and the Company’s weighted-
average discount rate is 5.67%. Our leases have remaining terms of up to 11.3 years, some of which include options to renew and extend the lease.

Lease Payments

Future minimum lease payments for assets under non-cancelable operating lease agreements with original terms of more than one year for the next five
years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2023 $ 5,228
2024 4,764
2025 5,658
2026 4,328
2027 3,080
Thereafter 14,892
Total lease payments 37,950
Less: Imputed interest (9,420
Present value of lease liabilities $ 28,530

The table above includes approximately $15.1 million of future estimated payments attributed to leases acquired in the La Nacional Acquisition.
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NOTE 9 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Indefinite life:
Goodwill $ 49,774  $ 36,260
Total indefinite life $ 49,774 $ 36,260
Intangible assets consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Net Gross Net
Gross Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Amortizable:
Agent relationships $ 46,140 $ (35,409) $ 10,731 $ 40,500 $ (32,915) § 7,585
Trade name 18,270 (10,710) 7,560 15,500 (9,404) 6,096
Developed technology 6,600 (5,990) 610 6,600 (5,690) 910
Other intangibles 1,544 (619) 925 1,279 (478) 801
Net amortizable intangible assets $ 72,554 $ (52,728) $ 19,826  $ 63,879 $ (48,487) $ 15,392

Goodwill and the majority of intangible assets on the consolidated balance sheets of the Company were recognized from acquisitions. The fair value
measurements were based on significant inputs, such as the Company’s forecasted revenues, assumed turnover of agent locations, obsolescence
assumptions for technology, market discount and royalty rates. These inputs are based on information not observable in the market and represent Level 3

measurements within the fair value hierarchy.

Management believes it has made reasonable estimates and judgments concerning these risks and uncertainties. A change in the conditions, circumstances
or strategy of the Company may result in a need to recognize an impairment charge. As a result of the annual impairment tests, the Company determined
that goodwill was not impaired as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The following table presents the changes in goodwill and intangible assets (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2019
Amortization expense
Balance at December 31, 2020
Acquisition of agent locations
Amortization expense

Balance at December 31, 2021
Acquisition of La Nacional
Acquisition of agent locations
Amortization expense

Balance at December 31, 2022

Goodwill Intangible Assets

$ 36,260 § 27,381
— (6,951)

$ 36,260 $ 20,430
— 124
— (5,162)

$ 36,260 $ 15,392
13,514 8,450

— 225

— (4,241)

$ 49,774 $ 19,826
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Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the next five years and thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

2023 $ 4,280
2024 3,387
2025 2,691
2026 2,147
2027 1,721
Thereafter 5,600

$ 19,826

NOTE 10 — WIRE TRANSFERS AND MONEY ORDERS PAYABLE, NET

Wire transfers and money orders payable, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Wire transfers payable, net $ 55,572 $ 20,744
Customer voided wires payable 27,236 16,895
Money orders payable 29,443 18,427
$ 112,251 § 56,066

Customer voided wires payable consist primarily of wire transfers that were not completed because the recipient did not collect the funds within 30 days
and the sender has not claimed the funds and, therefore, are considered unclaimed property. Unclaimed property laws of each state in the United States in
which we operate, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico require us to track certain information for all of our money remittances and payment
instruments and, if the funds underlying such remittances and instruments are unclaimed at the end of an applicable statutory abandonment period, require
us to remit the proceeds of the unclaimed property to the appropriate jurisdiction. Applicable statutory abandonment periods range from three to seven
years.

NOTE 11 — ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued and other liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021

Commissions payable to sending agents $ 19,141 $ 16,303
Accrued salaries and benefits 5,578 4,892
Accrued bank charges 1,644 1,371
Lease liability, current portion 5,258 —
Accrued other professional fees 1,169 1,619
Accrued taxes 1,329 4,908
Deferred revenue loyalty program 4,212 3,391
Contingent consideration liability 1,321 —
Accrued transaction costs 134 —
Other 2,069 1,276

$ 41,855 $ 33,760

The following table shows the changes in the deferred revenue loyalty program liability (in thousands):
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Balance, December 31, 2020 $ 2,750
Revenue deferred during the year 2,326
Revenue recognized during the year (1,685)
Balance, December 31, 2021 3,391
Revenue deferred during the year 2,936
Revenue recognized during the year (2,115)
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 4,212

NOTE 12 - DEBT

Debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2022 2021
Revolving credit facility $ 76,000 $ —
Term loan facility 80,938 85,313
156,938 85,313
Less: Current portion of long term debt (¥ (4,975) (3,882)
Less: Debt origination costs (1,728) (2,220)
$ 150,235 $ 79,211

(M Current portion of long-term debt is net of debt origination costs of approximately $0.5 million as of both December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries as borrowers and the other guarantors from time to time party thereto (collectively, the “Loan
Parties”) entered into a financing agreement with a group of banking institutions, dated November 7, 2018 and further amended on December 7, 2018 (the
“Original Credit Agreement”). The Original Credit Agreement provided for a $35.0 million revolving credit facility, a $90.0 million term loan facility and
an up to $30.0 million incremental facility of which $12.0 million was utilized in 2019 for the term loan facility and $10.0 million was utilized in May of
2021 for the revolving credit facility (see below). The Original Credit Agreement also provided for the issuance of letters of credit, which would reduce
availability under the revolving credit facility. The maturity date of the Original Credit Agreement was November 7, 2023.

Effective as of May 12, 2021, the Company amended the Original Credit Agreement by entering into Increase Joinder No. 2 (the “Joinder No. 2”) to the
Original Credit Agreement, which was accounted for as a debt modification, under which the revolving line of credit commitment under the Original Credit
Agreement was increased by $10.0 million to an aggregate of $45.0 million. The Joinder No. 2 did not have any impact on any of the terms of the term loan
facility under the Original Credit Agreement. The Company incurred debt origination costs of $76.8 thousand in the second quarter of 2021, which were
capitalized and will be amortized over the remaining life of the revolving line of credit facility, as described below, using the straight-line method, as it is
not significantly different than the effective interest method.

On June 24, 2021, the Loan Parties entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “A&R Credit Agreement”) with a group of banking
institutions. The A&R Credit Agreement amended and restated in its entirety the Original Credit Agreement. The A&R Credit Agreement provides for a
$150.0 million revolving credit facility, an $87.5 million term loan facility and an uncommitted incremental facility, which may be utilized for additional
revolving or term loans, of up to $70.0 million. The A&R Credit Agreement also provides for the issuance of letters of credit, which would reduce
availability under the revolving credit facility. The proceeds of the term loan were used to refinance the existing term loan facility under the Original Credit
Agreement, and the revolving credit facility is available for working capital, general corporate purposes and to pay fees and expenses in connection with
this transaction. The maturity date of the A&R Credit Agreement is June 24, 2026.

This refinancing was accounted for as a debt modification. The balance of the unamortized debt origination costs of $1.8 million under the Original Credit
Agreement, the origination costs paid to the Loan Parties of $1.0 million in connection with the term loan facility of the A&R Credit Agreement and debt
origination costs paid to the Loan Parties and third-party costs of $1.8 million incurred in connection with the revolving credit facility of the A&R Credit
Agreement will be associated with the new arrangement, and therefore, they will be amortized over the remaining life of the A&R Credit Agreement using
the straight-line method, as it is not significantly different than the effective interest method. Debt origination costs paid to third parties related to a portion
of the term loan facility in connection with the A&R Credit Agreement were expensed as incurred during the second quarter of 2021.

On November 11, 2022, the Loan Parties entered into a First Amendment Agreement (the “First Amendment”) to the A&R Credit Agreement. The
Amendment replaces LIBOR as a benchmark interest rate for loans under the A&R Credit Agreement with the secured
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overnight financing rate as administered by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (“SOFR”), and amends all applicable provisions of the A&R Credit
Agreement with respect to such replacement of LIBOR as the benchmark interest rate. Except as amended by the First Amendment, the A&R Credit
Agreement remains in full force and effect.

The unamortized portion of debt origination costs totaled approximately $3.3 million and $4.5 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Amortization of debt origination costs is included as a component of interest expense in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income
and amounted to approximately $1.0 million, $0.9 million and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively.

Prior to the First Amendment, at the election of the Company, interest on the term loan facility and revolving credit facility under the A&R Credit
Agreement was determined by reference to either LIBOR (subject to replacement) or a “base rate”, in each case plus an applicable margin ranging between
2.50% and 3.00% per annum for LIBOR loans and between 1.50% and 2.00% per annum for base rate loans depending on the level of our consolidated
leverage ratio, as calculated pursuant to the terms of the A&R Credit Agreement. The Company is also required to pay a fee on the unused portion of the
revolving credit facility equal to 0.35% per annum.

At the election of the Company, interest on the term loan facility and revolving loans under the A&R Credit Agreement, as amended, may be determined by
reference to SOFR plus an index adjustment of 0.10% and an applicable margin ranging between 2.50% and 3.00% based upon the Company’s
consolidated leverage ratio, as calculated pursuant to the terms of the A&R Credit Agreement. Loans (other than Term Loans, as defined in the A&R Credit
Agreement), may also bear interest at the Base Rate, plus an applicable margin ranging between 1.50% and 2.00% based upon the Company’s consolidated
leverage ratio, as so calculated. The Company is also required to pay a fee on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility equal to 0.35% per annum.

The effective interest rates for the year ended December 31, 2022 for the term loan facility and revolving credit facility were 4.87% and 1.04%,
respectively. The effective interest rates for the year ended December 31, 2021 for the term loan facility and revolving credit facility were 4.23% and
0.78%, respectively.

Interest is payable (x)(i) generally on the last day of each interest period selected for SOFR loans, but in any event, not less frequently than every three
months, and (ii) on the last business day of each quarter for base rate loans and (y) at final maturity. The principal amount of the term loan facility under the
A&R Credit Agreement must be repaid in consecutive quarterly installments of 5.0% in years 1 and 2, 7.5% in year 3, and 10.0% in years 4 and 5, in each
case on the last day of each quarter, commencing in September 2021 with a final balloon payment at maturity. The term loans under the A&R Credit
Agreement may be prepaid at any time without premium or penalty. Revolving loans may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed from time to time in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the A&R Credit Agreement. The Company is also required to repay the loans upon receipt of net proceeds
from certain casualty events, upon the disposition of certain property and upon incurrence of indebtedness not permitted by the A&R Credit Agreement. In
addition, the Company is required to make mandatory prepayments annually from excess cash flow if the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio (as
calculated under the A&R Credit Agreement) is greater than or equal to 3.0, and the remainder of any such excess cash flow is contributed to the available
amount which may be used for a variety of purposes, including investments and distributions.

The A&R Credit Agreement contains financial covenants that require the Company to maintain a quarterly minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of
1.25:1.00 and a quarterly maximum consolidated leverage ratio of 3.25:1.00. The A&R Credit Agreement also contains covenants that limit the Company’s
and its subsidiaries’ ability to, among other things, grant liens, incur additional indebtedness, make acquisitions or investments, dispose of certain assets,
change the nature of their businesses, enter into certain transactions with affiliates or amend the terms of material indebtedness.

The A&R Credit Agreement, as amended, generally restricts the ability of the Company to make certain restricted payments, including the repurchase of
shares of its common stock, provided that the Company may make restricted payments, among others, (i) without limitation so long as the Consolidated
Leverage Ratio (as defined in the A&R Credit Agreement), as of the then most recently completed four fiscal quarters of the Company, after giving pro
forma effect to such restricted payments, is 2.25 to 1.00 or less, (ii) that do not exceed, in the aggregate during any fiscal year, the greater of (x)
$23.8 million and (y) 25.00% of Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the A&R Credit Agreement) for the then most recently completed four fiscal
quarters of the Company and (iii) to repurchase Company common stock from current or former employees in an aggregate amount of up to $10.0 million
per calendar year.

The obligations under the A&R Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company and certain domestic subsidiaries of the Company and secured by liens
on substantially all of the assets of the Loan Parties, subject to certain exclusions and limitations.
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The scheduled annual payments of the term loan at December 31, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

2023 $ 5,469
2024 7,656
2025 8,750
2026 59,063
$ 80938

NOTE 13 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company determines fair value in accordance with the provisions of FASB guidance, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair
value as an exit price, representing the amount that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, a three-level fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value was established. There are three levels of inputs used to measure fair value and for disclosure purposes.
Level 1 relates to quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Level 2 relates to observable inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1. Level 3 relates to unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities.

The Company’s non-financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include goodwill and intangible assets. The determination of our
intangible fair values includes several assumptions and inputs (Level 3) that are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Management believes it has made
reasonable estimates and judgments concerning these risks and uncertainties. All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents balances are representative of their fair values as these balances are comprised of deposits available on demand
or overnight. The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, prepaid wires, accounts payable and wire transfers and money orders payable are representative
of their fair values because of the short turnover of these instruments.

The Company’s financial liabilities include its revolving credit facility and term loan facility. The fair value of the term loan facility, which approximates
book value, is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using a current market interest rate. The estimated fair value of the revolving credit facility
would approximate face value given the payment schedule and interest rate structure, which approximates current market interest rates.

NOTE 14 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

International Money Express, Inc. Omnibus Equity Compensation Plans

The International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “2020 Plan”) provides for the granting of stock-based incentive
awards, including stock options, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), restricted stock awards (“RSAs”) and performance stock units (“PSUs”) to employees,
certain other service providers and independent directors of the Company. There are approximately 3.7 million shares of the Company’s common stock
approved for issuance under the 2020 Plan, which includes 0.4 million shares that were previously subject to awards granted under the International Money
Express, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “2018 Plan” and together with the 2020 Plan, the “Plans”). Although awards remain
outstanding under the 2018 Plan, which was terminated effective June 26, 2020, no additional awards may be granted under the 2018 Plan. As of
December 31, 2022, 2.6 million shares remained available for grant of future awards under the 2020 Plan.

Stock Options

The value of each option grant is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (“BSM”). The option pricing model requires the
input of certain assumptions, including the grant date fair value of our common stock, expected volatility, risk-free interest rates, expected term and
expected dividend yield. To determine the grant date fair value of the Company’s common stock, we use the closing market price of our common stock at
the grant date. We also use an expected volatility based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock and the “simplified” method for
calculating the expected life of our stock options as the options are “plain vanilla” and we do not have any significant historical post-vesting activity. We
have elected to account for forfeitures as they occur. The risk-free interest rates are obtained from publicly available U.S. Treasury yield curve rates.

Share-based compensation is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. The
stock options issued under the Plans have 10-year terms and generally vest in four equal annual installments beginning one year after the date of the grant.
The Company recognized compensation expense for stock options of approximately $1.4 million, $2.4 million and $2.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in salaries and benefits in

F-25



Index

the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2022, there were 0.7 million outstanding stock options awarded
under the Plans and unrecognized compensation expense of approximately $0.6 million is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.1
years.

A summary of the stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2022 is presented below:

Weighted-
Average Weighted-
Weighted- Remaining Average

Number of Average Contractual Grant Date

Options Exercise Price Term (Years) Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 1,898,687 $ 11.24 7.11 $ 4.17
Granted — 3 — $ _
ExercisedV) (1,043,137) § 10.54 $ 3.72
Forfeited (129,500) $ 14.80 $ 6.87
Expired (15,000) $ 15.15 $ 7.08
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 711,050 § 11.56 6.26 $ 4.28
Exercisable at December 31, 2022 554,175 § 11.03 599 $ 3.96

(™ The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 was $7.4 million, $4.7 million, and
$1.3 million respectively.
@ The aggregate fair value of all vested/exercisable options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 was $2.2 million.

Restricted Stock Units

The RSUs granted under the Plans to the Company’s employees generally vest in four equal annual installments beginning one year after the date of the
grant, while RSUs issued to the Company’s independent directors vest on the one-year anniversary from the grant date. The Company recognized
compensation expense for all RSUs of approximately $1.8 million, $1.2 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2022,
unrecognized compensation expense of approximately $4.0 million is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

A summary of the RSU grant activity during the year ended December 31, 2022 is presented below:

Weighted-
Number of RSU Average
awards Grant Price
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2021 231,934 §$ 14.99
Granted 218,078 §$ 17.54
Vested (and settled) (82,817) $ 15.19
Forfeited (50,293) $ 15.69
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2022 316,902 § 16.58
Share Awards

Under the 2020 Plan and effective October 1, 2020, the Lead Independent Director and Chairs of the Committees of the Board of Directors are granted, in
aggregate, $64.0 thousand in awards of fully vested shares of the Company’s common stock, payable on a quarterly basis at the end of each quarter in
payment of fees earned in such capacities. Effective in the third quarter of 2022, this amount was increased to $80.5 thousand. During the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, 3,444 and 4,133 fully vested shares, respectively, were granted to the Lead Independent Director and Chairs of the
Committees of the Board of Directors. Compensation expense related to the fully vested share awards of $72.3 thousand, $64.0 thousand and $16.0
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, was recognized and included in salaries and benefits in the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

Restricted Stock Awards

The RSAs issued under the 2020 Plan to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and other employees generally vest in four equal annual installments
beginning one year after the date of grant. The Company recognized compensation expense for RSAs granted of $0.6 million and $0.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is included in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. No compensation expense for RSAs was recognized for the year ended
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December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2022, there was $1.9 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to RSAs, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

A summary of the RSA activity during the year ended December 31, 2022 is presented below:

Weighted-
Average

Number of RSAs Grant Price
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2021 88,215 § 14.17
Granted 93,400 $ 16.06
Vested (and settled) (22,053) $ 14.17
Forfeited — $ —
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2022 159,562 § 15.28

Performance Stock Units

PSUs granted under the 2020 Plan to the Company’s executives generally vest subject to attainment of performance criteria during the service period
established by the Compensation Committee. Each PSU represents the right to receive one share of common stock, and the actual number of shares
issuable upon vesting is determined based upon performance compared to financial performance targets. The PSUs vest based on the achievement of
certain revenue and adjusted earnings per share targets for a period of two years combined with a service period of three years. Compensation cost is
recognized over the requisite service period when it is probable that the performance condition will be satisfied. During the third quarter of 2022, the
Company reassessed the probability of vesting for PSU awards and determined that it was probable that a higher performance target will be achieved;
therefore, the Company recognized a cumulative catch-up adjustment of approximately $1.1 million as additional compensation expense in the third quarter
of 2022. The Company recognized compensation expense for PSUs of $3.2 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which is included in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. There was no compensation
expense for PSUs recognized for the year ended December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2022, there was $3.7 million of unrecognized compensation
expense related to PSUs, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

A summary of the PSU activity during the year ended December 31, 2022 is presented below:

Weighted-Average Weighted-
Remaining Contractual Average

Number of PSUs Term (Years) Grant Price
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2021 171,500 9.17 $ 14.17
Granted 131,224 $ 21.45
Vested (and settled) — $ —
Forfeited (1,853) $ 21.45
Outstanding (nonvested) at December 31, 2022 300,871 8.63 $ 17.30

NOTE 15 - EQUITY

In August 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program™) that authorizes the Company to
purchase up to $40.0 million of its outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the Repurchase Program, the Company is authorized to
repurchase shares from time to time in accordance with applicable laws, both on the open market and in privately negotiated transactions and may include
the use of derivative contracts or structured share repurchase agreements. The timing and amount of repurchases depends on several factors, including
market and business conditions, the trading price of the Company’s common stock and the nature of other investment opportunities. The Repurchase
Program may be limited, suspended or discontinued at any time without prior notice. The Repurchase Program does not have an expiration date. The A&R
Credit Agreement, as amended, permits the Company to make restricted payments (including share repurchases, among others), (i) without limitation so
long as the Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the A&R Credit Agreement, as amended), as of the then most recently completed four fiscal
quarters of the Company, after giving pro forma effect to such restricted payments, is 2.25 to 1.00 or less, (ii) that do not exceed, in the aggregate during
any fiscal year, the greater of (x) $23.8 million and (y) 25.00% of Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the A&R Credit Agreement) for the then most
recently completed four fiscal quarters of the Company and (iii) to repurchase Company common stock from current or former employees in an aggregate
amount of up to $10.0 million per calendar year.

The Company accounts for purchases of treasury stock under the cost method. Any direct costs incurred to acquire treasury stock are considered stock issue
costs and added to the cost of the treasury stock. On August 9, 2022, the Company entered into an agreement with
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SPC Intermex, LP, a related party, for the purchase of 1,172,485 shares of the Company’s common stock for a total purchase price of $27.6 million, in a
privately-negotiated transaction. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, including the shares previously mentioned, the Company purchased
2,480,744 shares and 341,522 shares, respectively, for an aggregate purchase price of $53.7 million and $5.6 million, respectively. The share repurchases
under the Repurchase Program and the privately negotiated transaction totaled $59.3 million from inception through December 31, 2022.

As of December 31, 2022, there were $8.3 million available for future share repurchases under the Repurchase Program. During the first quarter of 2023 to

date, the Company repurchased 317 thousand shares for $7.6 million, resulting in $0.7 million available for future share repurchases under the Repurchase
Program.

On March 3, 2023 the Board of Directors approved an increase to the Repurchase Program that authorizes the Company to purchase an additional
$100.0 million of its outstanding shares.

NOTE 16 — EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. In
computing dilutive earnings per share, basic earnings per share is adjusted for the assumed issuance of all applicable potentially dilutive share-based

awards, including common stock options, RSUs, RSAs and PSUs.

Below are basic and diluted earnings per share for the periods indicated (in thousands, except for share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Net income for basic and diluted income per common share $ 57,331 $ 46,843 $ 33,784
Shares:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — basic 37,733,047 38,474,040 38,060,290
Effect of dilutive securities

RSUs 112,943 48,077 10,566

Stock options 539,415 532,972 287,315

RSAs 53,620 14,667 —

PSUs 186,365 33,694 —
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — diluted 38,625,390 39,103,450 38,358,171
Earnings per common share - basic $ 152 § 122§ 0.89
Earnings per common share - diluted $ 148 § 1.20 § 0.88

As of December 31, 2022, there were 6.5 thousand options and 10.4 thousand RSUs excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation because,
under the treasury stock method, the inclusion of these would be anti-dilutive.

As of December 31, 2021, there were 0.4 million options and 35.2 thousand RSUs excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation because, under
the treasury stock method, the inclusion of these would be anti-dilutive.

As of December 31, 2020, there were 0.7 million options and 10.9 thousand RSUs excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation because, under
the treasury stock method, the inclusion of these would be anti-dilutive.

As discussed in Note 15, during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company purchased 2,480,744 shares and 341,522 shares, respectively,
for an aggregate purchase price of $53.7 million and $5.6 million, respectively. The effect of these repurchases on the Company’s weighted average shares
outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was a reduction of 876,893 and 43,098 shares, respectively, due to the timing of the
repurchases.
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NOTE 17 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020
Current tax provision:
Foreign $ 148 § 212 § 224
Federal 14,542 11,702 8,080
State 5,761 3,824 2,780
Total Current 20,451 15,738 11,084
Deferred tax (benefit) provision:
Federal (423) 667 1,089
State (80) 67 344
Total deferred (503) 734 1,433
Total tax provision $ 19,948 $ 16472 $ 12,517

A reconciliation between the income tax provision at the U.S. statutory tax rate and the Company’s income tax provision on the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income is below (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Income before income taxes $ 77,279 $ 63,315 $ 46,301
U.S. statutory tax rate 21 % 21 % 21 %
Income tax expense at statutory rate 16,229 13,296 9,723
State tax expense, net of federal benefit 4,488 3,073 2,530
Foreign tax rates different from U.S. statutory rate 233 273 264
Non-deductible expenses 1,017 337 139
Stock Compensation (1,989) (499) (82)
Change in tax rate — - €)
Other (30) (3) (48)

Total tax provision $ 19,948 $ 16,472 $ 12,517

As presented in the income tax reconciliation above, the tax provision recognized on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income was
impacted by state taxes, non-deductible officer compensation and share-based compensation tax benefits, and foreign tax rates applicable to the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries that are higher or lower than the U.S. statutory rate. The Company is also subject to tax in various U.S. state jurisdictions. Changes in

the annual allocation and apportionment of the Company’s activity amongst these state jurisdictions results in changes to the blended state rate utilized to
measure the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the
Company’s assets and liabilities. The following table outlines the principal components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities (in thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Deferred tax assets:
U.S. federal and state net operating losses $ 3,591 § 4,181
Foreign net operating losses 387 248
Allowance for credit losses 802 537
Share-based compensation 1,628 1,854
Accrued compensation 995 762
Deferred revenue 1,179 895
Lease liabilities 6,496 —
Other 1,143 827
Total deferred tax assets 16,221 9,304
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (4,061) (3,176)
Right-of-use assets (6,499) —
Intangible amortization (8,844) (6,914)
Debt origination costs (322) (392)
Total deferred tax liabilities (19,726) (10,482)
Valuation allowance (387) (248)
Net deferred tax liability $ (3.892) § (1,426)

At December 31, 2022, the Company had pre-tax federal, state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $15.3 million, $10.4 million
and $1.5 million, respectively, which are available to reduce future taxable income. With few exceptions, these net operating loss carryforwards will expire
from 2030 through 2037 for federal losses, from 2029 through 2037 for state losses, and from 2039 through 2042 for foreign losses. Utilization of the
Company’s net operating loss carryforwards is now subject to an annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. The Company has recorded a
deferred tax asset for only the portion of its net operating loss carryforward that it expects to realize before expiration.

With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years prior to 2019.
However, the Company has certain net operating loss carryforwards from tax years 2010 through 2017 that are subject to examination. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021, the Company did not have any amounts accrued for interest and penalties or recorded for uncertain tax positions.

In accordance with criteria under FASB guidance, Income Taxes, a valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets
unless it is more likely than not that such assets will be realized. After consideration of all evidence, both positive and negative, management has
determined that no valuation allowance is required at December 31, 2022 or 2021 on the Company’s U.S. deferred tax assets. However, a valuation
allowance of $0.4 million and $0.2 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively has been recorded on deferred tax assets associated with
Canadian net operating loss carryforwards.

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into leases for office space, warechouses and certain Company-operated store locations. Refer to
Note 8 — Leases.

Contingencies and Legal Proceedings
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The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business and have not been finally adjudicated.
Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based upon the
information available at this time and the stage of the proceedings, that it is not possible to determine the probability of loss or estimate of damages, and
therefore, the Company has not established a reserve for any of these proceedings.

The Company operates in 50 U.S. states, two U.S. territories and three other countries. Money transmitters and their agents are under regulation by state
and federal laws. Violations may result in civil or criminal penalties or a prohibition from providing money transfer services in a particular jurisdiction. It is
the opinion of the Company’s management, based on information available at this time, that the expected outcome of regulatory examinations will not have
a material adverse effect on either the results of operations or financial condition of the Company.

Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to applicable licensing laws, certain domestic subsidiaries of the Company are required to maintain minimum tangible net worth and liquid assets
(eligible securities) to cover the amount outstanding of wire transfers and money orders payable. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s
subsidiaries were in compliance with these two requirements.

NOTE 19 — DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company has two defined contribution plans available to most of its employees, where the Company makes contributions to the plan based on

employee contributions. Total employer contribution expense included in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income was approximately $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules, regulations and related forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and President, and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Because of inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues, if
any, within an organization have been detected. Accordingly, our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of our disclosure control system are met.

As required by Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) under the Exchange Act, our Chief Executive Officer and President, and Chief Financial Officer, carried
out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2022. Based on their evaluation, the Company’s
principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective and operating to
provide reasonable assurance that material information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, including ensuring that such material information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and President, and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure as of December 31, 2022.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a 15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the issuer; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the issuer are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the issuer; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the issuer's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. All
internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework (2013).

The internal control over financial reporting, and, to the extent permitted by SEC guidance, the disclosure controls and procedures, of La Nacional
were excluded from the evaluation of effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures as of
December 31, 2022 because of the timing of the acquisition. La Nacional’s total assets constituted approximately 11.4% of the Company’s total assets as of
December 31, 2022 and represented approximately 2.4% and less than 0.3% of the Company’s revenue and net income, respectively, for the year then
ended.

Based on the results of its evaluation, the Company’s management has concluded that as of December 31, 2022, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective.

BDO USA, LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm which audits our financial statements, has audited our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 and has expressed an unqualified opinion thereon as stated in their report that is included on Item 9. “Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” on page 76 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
International Money Express, Inc.
Miami, Florida

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited International Money Express, Inc.’s (the “Company’s”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(the “COSO criteria”). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2022, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes and our report dated March
15, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying “Item 9A, Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As indicated in the accompanying “Item 9A, Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”, management’s assessment of and
conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Envios de Valores La Nacional Corp.
(“La Nacional”), which was acquired on November 1, 2022, and which is included in the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 31,
2022, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then
ended. La Nacional constituted approximately 11.4% of total assets as of December 31, 2022, and approximately 2.4% and less than 0.3% of revenues and
net income, respectively, for the year then ended. Management did not assess the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of La Nacional
because of the timing of its acquisition, which was completed on November 1, 2022. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company
also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of La Nacional.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Miami, Florida
March 15, 2023
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certain information required under this Item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “Proxy Statement”), which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Certain other information relating to the Executive Officers of the Company appears in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading
“Information about our Executive Officers”.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required under this Item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Certain information required under this Item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy, which information is incorporated by reference herein.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information about our common stock that may be issued under all of our equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2022, which included: the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (“2020 Plan”) and the International Money
Express, Inc. 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), each of which was approved by the Company’s stockholders.

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities available
to be issued upon exercise Weighted-average for future issuance
of exercise price of under equity
outstanding options, outstanding compensation plans (excluding
warrants options, warrants securities
Plan category and rights and rights reflected in column (a))
(a) (b) (©)

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 1,488,385(1) $ 12.32 3,354,990 (2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders

Total 1,488,385 $ 12.32 3,354,990

(1) This number includes the following: 559,800 shares subject to outstanding awards granted under the 2018 Plan, all of which were subject to
outstanding options awards. This number also includes 928,585 shares subject to outstanding awards granted under the 2020 Plan, of which 151,250
shares were subject to outstanding options awards, 316,902 shares were subject to outstanding RSU awards, 159,562 shares were subject to
outstanding RSA awards, and 300,871 shares were subject to outstanding PSU awards.

(2) Represents 2,604,990 shares available for issuance under the 2020 Plan and 750,000 shares available for issuance under the ESPP.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required under this Item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required under this Item will be contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated by reference herein.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements (See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K);

2. The exhibits listed in the "Exhibit Index" attached to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Document

BRI Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated July 26, 2018 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 28, 2018 (File No.
333-226948)).

2k Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, effective as of July 26, 2018 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 28, 2018 (File No. 333-226948)).
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Warrant Agreement, dated January 19, 2017, between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 28,
2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

Amendment No. 1 to Warrant Agreement, dated April 29, 2019, by and between International Money Express, Inc. and
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K Filed on April 30, 2019).

N
[\S}
*
*

4.3%* Description of Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K Filed
on March 11, 2020).

10.1(a)** Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2021, by and among International Money Express, Inc., as
Holdings, International Money Express Sub 2, LLC, as Intermediate Holdings, Intermex Holdings, Inc., as the Term
Borrower, Intermex Wire Transfer, LLC, as the Revolver Borrower, the other guarantors from time to time party thereto,
the lenders from time to time party thereto and KeyBank National Association, as the Administrative Agent and L/C
Issuer. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 28, 2021)

10.1(b)** First Amendment Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2022, by and among International Money Express, Inc., as
Holdings, International Money Express Sub 2, LLC, as Intermediate Holdings, Intermex Holdings, Inc., as the Term
Borrower, Intermex Wire Transfer, LLC, as the Revolver Borrower, the other guarantors from time to time party thereto,
the lenders from time to time party thereto and KeyBank National Association, and KeyBank National Association, as the
Administrative Agent. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 14, 2022).

10.2%* Settlement Agreement and Release, dated March 16, 2020, among Stuart Sawyer, on behalf of himself and all Settlement
Class Members, and Intermex Wire Transfer, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2020).

10.3(a)**t  International Money Express, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3(a) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 28, 2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

10.3(b)*t Amendment to 2020 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan.

10.4%*5 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4(b) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on September 28, 2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

—

10.5%*f Form of Incentive Stock Option Award pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2018 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4(a) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on September 28, 2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

10.6**f International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex A to
the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 15, 2020).

10.7**% International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex B to the
Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May
15, 2020).

10.8%*+ Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity

Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on
August 6, 2020).

\Oo

10.9%*+ Form of RSU Agreement (Non-Employee Directors) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on August 6, 2020).

10.10%*F Form of RSU Agreement (Employees) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
March 15, 2021).

10.11%%F Form of 2021 and 2022 PSU Agreement (Employees) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on March 15, 2021).

10.12**% Form of 2021 and 2022 PSU Agreement (Robert Lisy) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus

Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed an March 15 2071\
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Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Robert Lisy) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed on March 15, 2021).

Form of PSU Agreement (Employees) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan.

Form of PSU Agreement (Robert Lisy) pursuant to the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Robert Lisy and Intermex Holdings, Inc., dated as of
November 15, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 17, 2021).

Employment Agreement by and between Andras Bende and the Company, dated as of December 7, 2020 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 8, 2020).

Employment Agreement by and between Randy Nilsen and Intermex Holdings, Inc. dated as of February 1, 2017
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(e) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September
28,2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

Employment Agreement dated September 23, 2019, between Joseph Aguilar and the Company (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed On October 3, 2019).

Amendment to Employment Agreement effective as of January 16, 2023, between Joseph Aguilar and the Company.
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated May 20, 2022, between Ernesto Luciano and the Company.

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 filed on September 28, 2018 (File No. 333-226948)).

Subsidiaries of the registrant

Consent of BDO USA, LLP.

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002- Chief Executive Officer

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002- Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, are
formatted in iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Audited Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii)
the Audited Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (iii) the Audited Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) the Audited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The cover page from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, formatted in
iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Filed herewith.

Previously filed.
Furnished herewith.
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ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

International Money Express, Inc. (Registrant)
March 15, 2023 By: /s/Robert Lisy

Robert Lisy
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Robert Lisy Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the March 15, 2023
- Board of Directors (Principal Executive Officer)
Robert Lisy
/s/ Andras Bende Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and March 15, 2023
Principal Accounting Officer)
Andras Bende

/s/ Debra Bradford Director March 15, 2023

Debra Bradford
/s/ Bernardo Fernandez Director March 15, 2023

Bernardo Fernandez

/s/ Adam Godfrey Director March 15, 2023
Adam Godfrey

/s/ Laura Maydon Director March 15, 2023
Laura Maydén

/s/ Michael Purcell Lead Independent Director March 15, 2023
Michael Purcell
/s/ John Rincon Director March 15, 2023

John Rincon

/s/ Justin Wender Director March 15, 2023

Justin Wender
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Exhibit 10.3(b)

AMENDMENT TO
2020 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

WHEREAS, International Money Express, Inc. (the “Company”) adopted the International Money Express, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Equity

Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) on April 23, 2020 by board resolution, which was subsequently approved on June 26, 2020 by the stockholders; and

1L

I11.

Iv.

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to amend the Plan as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 20 of the Plan, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”’) may amend the Plan; and
WHEREAS, the Board approved this amendment on the date set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is hereby amended effective as of October 27, 2022, as follows:

Section 1 of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“The purpose of the Plan is to provide (i) employees of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, (ii) any Person who provides services to the
Company or an Affiliate of the Company, and (i1i) members of the Board, with the opportunity to receive grants of Options, SARs, Stock Units,
Performance Shares, Stock Awards, Dividend Equivalents and Other Stock-Based Awards. The Company believes that the Plan will encourage
the Participants to contribute materially to the growth of the Company, thereby benefiting the Company’s stockholders, and will align the
economic interests of the Participants with those of the stockholders”

Section 2(v) of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“(v) “Participant” means (x) an employee of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company or a member of the Board, or (y) an individual who, or
an entity which, performs bona fide services to the Company or an Affiliate of the Company and in either such case under this clause (y) may be
offered securities registerable pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and is, in all such
cases, selected by the Administrator to receive a Grant under the Plan.”

Section 3(c) of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“(c) The Administrator, in its discretion, may delegate to one or more officers of the Company all or part of the Administrator’s authority and
duties with respect to grants and awards to Persons who are not subject to the reporting and other provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
The Administrator may revoke or amend the terms of a delegation at any time but such action shall not invalidate any prior actions of the
Administrator’s delegate or delegates that were consistent with the terms of the Plan and the Administrator’s prior delegation. Any delegation by
the Administrator pursuant to this Section shall be subject to such conditions and limitations as may be determined by the Administrator and shall
be subject to and limited by applicable law or regulation, including without limitation the rules and regulations of Nasdaq or such other securities
exchange on which the Stock is then listed.”

Section 4 of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“Grants under the Plan may consist of Options, SARs, Stock Units, Performance Shares, Stock Awards, Dividend Equivalents and Other Stock-
Based Awards. All Grants shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and to such other terms and conditions consistent with the
Plan as the Administrator deems appropriate and as are specified in writing by the Administrator in separate guidelines or to the Participant in the
Grant Instrument or an amendment to the guidelines or Grant Instrument. The Administrator shall approve the form and provisions of each Grant
Instrument. All Grants shall be made conditional upon the Participant’s acknowledgment, in writing or by acceptance of the Grant, that all
decisions and determinations of the Administrator shall be final and binding on the Participant, his or her beneficiaries, and any other person
having or claiming an interest under such Grant. Grants under a particular Section of the Plan need not be uniform as among the Participants.”

Section 6 of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

[Amendment to 2020 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan)
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Any employee of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, any member of the Board and any Person who provides services to the
Company or an Affiliate of the Company is eligible to participate in this Plan if the Administrator, in its sole discretion, determines that such
person has contributed significantly or can be expected to contribute significantly to the profits or growth of the Company or an Affiliate of the
Company. Grants will be made only to Persons who are employees, directors, consultants or advisors of the Company for purposes of Form S-8
registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Options and SARs may be granted only to persons who perform direct services to the
Company on the Date of Grant, as determined under section 409A of the Code.

Section 21(e) of the Plan
“(e) Rights of Participants. Nothing in this Plan shall entitle any Participant or other Person to any claim or right to receive a Grant under this
Plan. Neither this Plan nor any action taken hereunder shall be construed as giving any Person any rights to be retained by or in the

employment or service of the Employer.”

All other provisions of the Plan not amended hereby shall remain in full force and effect.

[Amendment to 2020 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan]



Exhibit 10.14

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC. 2020
OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

PSU AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated (the “Date of Grant”), between International Money Express, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), and (“Grantee”), is made pursuant and subject to the provisions of the Company’s 2020 Omnibus Equity

Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), a copy of which has been made available to Grantee. All terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given
them in Exhibit I, or if such term is not defined in Exhibit I, the Plan.

1. Award. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and subject further to the terms and conditions herein set forth, the Company
hereby grants Grantee Performance Shares (the “Target Award”). Each Performance Share granted hereunder (“PSU”) represents the right to
receive (i) one share of Stock for each PSU that is vested as of the Vesting Date (as defined below), and (ii) notional dividend equivalents described in
Section 5, if any, each in accordance with the terms of and subject to adjustment as provided in this Agreement and the Plan.

2. Vesting.

a General. Subject to the achievement of the performance goals set forth in Exhibit I, and except as otherwise set forth in Sections
2(c), 2(d) and 2(e) herein, the PSUs granted hereby shall vest on the Vesting Date, provided that Grantee has remained in continuous Service (as defined
below) through the Vesting Date. The calculation of the number of PSUs, if any, that may vest on the Vesting Date is specified in Exhibit I and is based
upon performance goals achieved during the Performance Period. If the Company does not achieve the minimum threshold performance goals (as set forth
in Exhibit I) during the Performance Period, the PSUs granted or otherwise eligible to vest hereunder shall be forfeited as of the date of such determination.
The number of PSUs that vest on the Vesting Date shall be rounded up to the nearest whole PSU. Except as otherwise expressly provided in Sections 2(c),
2(d), and 2(e), or as otherwise determined by the Committee, if Grantee’s Service terminates for any reason at any time prior to the Vesting Date, all of the
PSUs shall be automatically forfeited upon such termination of Service and neither the Company nor any Affiliate shall have any further obligation to
Grantee under this Agreement.

(b) Committee Determinations Final. All determinations of whether performance goals have been achieved and the number of PSUs
earned by Grantee, including any adjustment to be made, shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion. Following completion of the Performance
Period (generally during the first fiscal quarter following the end of the Performance Period), the Committee will review and certify (i) whether, and to
what extent, the performance goals for the Performance Period have been achieved, and (ii) the number of PSUs that are eligible to vest upon the Vesting
Date, if any. Such certification shall be final, conclusive and binding on Grantee, and on all other persons, to the maximum extent permitted by law.

c Termination of Service Due to Death or Disability. If Grantee’s continued employment or provision of services to the Company
or its Affiliate (“Service”) terminates due to Grantee’s death or disability during the Performance Period and prior to a Change of Control, then PSUs equal
to 100% of the Target Award shall vest on the date of such Service termination.

(d) Termination of Service by the Company or its Affiliate Without Cause.

6] If Grantee’s Service terminates by action of the Company or its Affiliate without Cause (as defined below) during the
first twelve (12) months of the Performance Period, all PSUs granted hereunder shall be automatically forfeited upon such Service
termination.

(i1) If Grantee’s Service terminates by action of the Company or its Affiliate without Cause after the first twelve (12)
months of the Performance Period, then a pro rata portion of the PSUs, determined by multiplying the payout percentage certified by the
Committee for the full Performance Period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of whole months between the first day of
the Performance Period and the date of Grantee’s termination of Service, and the denominator of which is the number of months from the
first day of the Performance Period to the Vesting Date, shall be eligible to vest as of the date of such Service termination based on
attainment of performance goals during the portion of the Performance Period ending on the most recently completed fiscal year(s) as of
the date of such termination (based on the targets set forth in Exhibit I). Any PSUs that are not eligible to vest in accordance with the
preceding sentence shall be forfeited.



(1ii) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means, with respect to Grantee (x) if Grantee is a party to an employment
agreement with the Company or its Affiliates and such agreement provides for a definition of Cause, the definition contained therein; or
(y) if no such agreement exists, or if such agreement does not define Cause: (A) the commission of, or plea of guilty or no contest to, a
felony or a crime involving moral turpitude or the commission of any other act involving willful malfeasance or material fiduciary breach
with respect to the Company or an Affiliate; (B) conduct that results in or is reasonably likely to result in harm to the reputation or
business of the Company or any of its Affiliates; (C) gross negligence or willful misconduct with respect to the Company or an Affiliate;
(D) material violation of any of the Company’s written policies; or (E) material violation of state or federal securities laws. The
Administrator, in its absolute discretion, shall determine the effect of all matters and questions relating to whether Grantee has been
discharged for Cause.

(e) Change of Control.

1) If a Change of Control occurs during the first twelve (12) months of the Performance Period, 100% of the Target Award
PSUs shall convert to time-vested Stock Units (such converted PSUs, “RSUs”) and all such RSUs shall, subject to continued Service
through the Vesting Date, vest on the Vesting Date and be settled at the same time the original PSUs would have been settled in
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. Any PSUSs that are not eligible to vest as of the Change of Control shall be forfeited.

(i1) If a Change of Control occurs in the second or third year of the Performance Period, all PSUs eligible to vest based on
performance goals achieved in the most recently completed fiscal year(s) as of the date of such Change of Control (based on the targets
set forth in Exhibit I), as certified by the Committee, shall convert to time-vested RSUs and all such RSUs shall, subject to continued
Service through the Vesting Date, vest on the Vesting Date and be settled at the same time the original PSUs would have been settled in
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. Any PSUs that are not eligible to vest as of the Change of Control shall be forfeited.

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Change of Control occurs and, at any time prior to the Vesting Date, Grantee’s
Service terminates due to Grantee’s death or disability or by action of the Company or its Affiliate without Cause, all time-vested RSUs
shall become immediately vested upon such Service termination, and all such RSUs shall be settled at the same time the original PSUs
would have been settled in accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement.

@iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing clauses (i) through (iii), if a Change of Control occurs and the surviving entity does not
assume and continue the PSUs, then the PSUs shall become fully vested and settled immediately prior to the Change of Control based on
the performance assumptions described in clauses (i) and (ii) above.

W) All references to PSUs herein shall include the RSUs into which PSUs may be converted.
3. Payment of PSUs (Settlement).

(a) Payment in respect of the PSUs eligible to vest for the Performance Period (i.e., the settlement of such PSUs) shall be made in
shares of Stock that shall be issued to Grantee as soon as practicable following the Vesting Date (and in any event within two and one-half (2}2) months
following the Vesting Date). Any PSUs that vest upon termination of Grantee’s Service, including due to death or disability, shall be settled as soon as
practicable following the date of such termination of Service, and in any event within two and one-half (2'2) months following the end of the calendar year
in which such PSUs vest.

(b) Certificates or evidence of book-entry shares representing the Stock issued upon settlement of PSUs pursuant to this Section 3
will be delivered to or otherwise made available to Grantee (or, at the discretion of Grantee, jointly in the names of Grantee and Grantee’s spouse) or, in the
case of Grantee’s death, to Grantee’s beneficiary or, if none is identified in the records of the Company, Grantee’s spouse or, if none, Grantee’s estate. It is
intended that delivery of shares of Stock under this Agreement will comply with all applicable laws (including, the requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)), and the applicable requirements of any securities exchange or similar entity.



() Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (i) to the extent Grantee breaches any restrictive covenants under an agreement
Grantee entered into with the Company or any of its Affiliates, the PSUs may be immediately forfeited to the extent not yet settled and (ii) the PSUs are
subject to forfeiture and any Stock issued hereunder subject to clawback in accordance with Section 21(g) of the Plan.

4. Transferability. The PSUs subject to this Award or the rights relating thereto may not be assigned, alienated, pledged, attached, sold or
otherwise transferred or encumbered by Grantee, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and upon any such transfer by will or the laws of
descent and distribution, the transferee shall hold such PSUs subject to all of the terms and conditions that were applicable to Grantee immediately prior to
such transfer. After such PSUs vest and are settled in accordance with this Agreement, no sale or disposition of such shares of Stock shall be made in the
absence of an effective registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to such shares unless an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company
that such sale or disposition will not constitute a violation of the Securities Act or any other applicable securities laws is first obtained or an exemption
from such registration pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or otherwise is available.

5. Rights as Shareholder; Dividend Equivalents. Grantee shall have no rights as a stockholder with respect to the PSUs unless and until
the PSUs are settled by delivery of Stock in accordance with Section 3(b) of this Agreement. As of any date that the Company pays an ordinary cash
dividend on its shares of Stock, the Company will increase the number of PSUs hereunder (i.e., by increasing the Target Award) by the number of shares of
Stock that represent an amount equal to the per share value of dividend paid by the Company on its shares of Stock (if paid in cash or shares) multiplied by
the number of target PSUs held by Grantee as of the related dividend payment record date. Any such additional PSUs shall be subject to the same vesting,
forfeiture, payment, termination and other terms, conditions and restrictions as the original PSUs to which they relate. No additional PSUs shall be granted
with respect to any PSUs which, as of the record date, have either been paid or terminated.

6. Change in Capital Structure. In accordance with Section 5(d) of the Plan, the terms of this Agreement, including the number of shares
of Stock in respect of the PSUs shall be adjusted as the Administrator determines is equltably required in the event the Company effects one or more stock
dividends, stock splits, subdivisions or consolidations of shares or other similar changes in capitalization described in Section 5(d) of the Plan.

7. Tax Liability and Withholding.

(a) Grantee understands that when the PSUs are settled in accordance with Section 4, Grantee will be obligated to recognize
income, for Federal, state and local income tax purposes, as applicable, in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of the share of Stock as of such date,
and Grantee is responsible for all tax obligations that arise in connection with the PSUs. Notwithstanding any action the Company takes with respect to any
or all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, or other tax-related withholding (‘“Tax-Related Items”), the ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is and
remains Grantee’s responsibility and the Company (i) makes no representation or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items in
connection with the grant or vesting of the PSUs, the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs, or the subsequent sale of any shares of the Stock underlying
the PSUs; and (ii) does not commit to structure the PSUs or the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs to reduce or eliminate Grantee’s liability for Tax-
Related Items.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, unless Grantee has delivered an amount necessary to
satisfy the Tax-Related Items as of the settlement date for the PSUs, Grantee agrees to the following methods of satisfying the Tax-Related Items on behalf
of Grantee in connection with the PSUs and the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs, in the discretion of the Company: (i) through the automatic
withholding of a sufficient number of shares of Stock that would otherwise be delivered to Grantee, applying procedures approved by the Administrator,
such withheld shares having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of settlement that shall not exceed the minimum amount of the Tax-Related Items,
rounded up for any partial share of Stock that would be withheld to satisfy such obligation (or such other amount as the Administrator determines will not
result in additional compensation expense for financial accounting purposes under applicable financial accounting principles); (ii) through the deduction
from any other payment otherwise due to Grantee at the time of exercise; or (iii) a combination of any or all of the foregoing.

() Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, Grantee may satisfy the tax withholding obligation by delivery of cash or by
surrendering shares deliverable in settlement of the PSU or by delivering shares of Stock owned by Grantee (having in any case, an aggregate Fair Market
Value on the date of exercise equal to the amount of the Tax-Related Items).



8. Contflicts. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan as in effect on the Date of Grant and the provisions of this
Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All references herein to the Plan mean the Plan as in effect on the date hereof.

9. No Right to Continued Service. Neither the Plan nor this Agreement shall confer upon Grantee any right to be retained in any position,
as an employee, consultant or director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Further, nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall be construed to limit
the discretion of the Company to terminate Grantee’s employment at any time, with or without Cause.

10. Compliance with Law. The grant and settlement of the PSUs shall be subject to compliance by the Company and Grantee with all
applicable requirements of federal and state securities laws and with all applicable requirements of any stock exchange on which the Company’s shares of
Stock may be listed. No shares of Stock shall be issued in settlement of the PSUs unless and until any then applicable requirements of state or federal laws
and regulatory agencies have been fully complied with to the satisfaction of the Company and its counsel.

11. Notices. Any notice required to be delivered to the Company under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal corporate offices. Any notice required to be delivered to Grantee under this Agreement shall be in writing and
addressed to Grantee at Grantee’s address as shown in the records of the Company. Either party may designate another address in writing (or by such other
method approved by the Company) from time to time.

12. Interpretation. Any dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by Grantee or the Company to the
Administrator for review. The resolution of such dispute by the Administrator shall be final and binding on Grantee and the Company.

13. Successors and Assigns. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement. This Agreement will be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth herein, this Agreement will be binding
upon Grantee and Grantee’s beneficiaries, executors, administrators and the person(s) to whom this Agreement may be transferred by will or the laws of
descent or distribution.

14. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of the Plan or this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement, and each provision of the Plan and this Agreement shall be severable and enforceable to
the extent permitted by law.

15. Discretionary Nature of Plan. The Plan is discretionary and may be amended, cancelled or terminated by the Company at any time, in
its discretion. The grant of the PSUs in this Agreement does not create any contractual right or other right to receive any Grants in the future. Future
Grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company. Any amendment, modification, or termination of the Plan shall not constitute a change or
impairment of the terms and conditions of Grantee’s Service to the Company.

16. Amendment. The Administrator has the right to amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or cancel the PSUs, prospectively or retroactively;
provided, that, no such amendment shall adversely affect Grantee’s material rights under this Agreement without Grantee’s consent.

17. No Impact on Other Benefits. The value of Grantee’s PSUs or the Stock underlying the PSUs is not part of his or her normal or
expected compensation for purposes of calculating any severance, retirement, welfare, insurance or similar employee benefit.

18. Section 409A. This Agreement is intended to comply with section 409A of the Code (“Section 409A”) or an exemption thereunder in
accordance with Section 21(b) of the Plan and shall be construed and interpreted, including any ambiguities herein, in a manner that is consistent with the
requirements for avoiding additional taxes or penalties under Section 409A Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the
payments and benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any portion of any
taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by Grantee on account of non-compliance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding the
foregoing or anything herein to the contrary, if the PSUs constitute nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A and if Grantee
is deemed a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A, each as determined by the Administrator, at a time when Grantee becomes eligible
for settlement of the PSUs upon his or her “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A, then to the extent necessary to prevent any
accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, such settlement will be delayed until the earlier of: (a) the first day of the month following the date that is
six months following Grantee’s separation from service and (b) Grantee’s



death. If the PSUs constitute nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A, references in this Agreement to a termination of
employment or cessation of Service or the like shall mean a “separation from service” under Section 409A.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument. Counterpart signature pages to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile transmission, by electronic mail in portable
document format (.pdf), or by any other electronic means intended to preserve the original graphic and pictorial appearance of a document, will have the
same effect as physical delivery of the paper document bearing an original signature.

20. Grantee Bound by Plan. Grantee hereby acknowledges that a copy of the Plan has been made available to him or her and agrees to be
bound by all the terms and provisions thereof. The terms and conditions of the Plan are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to conflict of law principles.

22. Acceptance. Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement. Grantee has read and understands the terms
and provisions thereof, and accepts the PSUs subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. Grantee acknowledges that there
may be adverse tax consequences upon grant or vesting of or settlement of the PSUs and that Grantee should consult a tax advisor prior to such vesting or
settlement.

[Signatures appear on following page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this Agreement, and Grantee has placed his or her
signature hereon, effective as of the Date of Grant.

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

I hereby accept this Grant of PSUs and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. I further agree that all of the decisions
and interpretations of the Company with respect thereto shall be final and binding.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

By:

Date

[Signature Page to International Money Express Inc. PSU Agreement]
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Exhibit 10.15

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC. 2020
OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
PSU AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated (the “Date of Grant”), between International Money Express, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), and Robert Lisy (“Grantee”), is made pursuant and subject to the provisions of the Company’s 2020 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), a copy of which has been made available to Grantee. All terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given
them in Exhibit I, or if such term is not defined in Exhibit I, the Plan.

1. Award. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and subject further to the terms and conditions herein set forth, the Company
hereby grants Grantee Performance Shares (the “Target Award”). Each Performance Share granted hereunder (each, a “PSU”) represents the right
to receive (i) one share of Stock for each PSU that is vested as of the Vesting Date (as defined below), and (ii) notional dividend equivalents described in
Section 5, if any, each in accordance with the terms of and subject to adjustment as provided in this Agreement and the Plan. Grantee acknowledges and
agrees that the grant of the PSUs in this Agreement satisfy the obligations of the Company and its Affiliates under Sections 2.04 and 2.05 of the
employment agreement between Grantee and Intermex Holdings, Inc., an Affiliate of the Company, effective January 1, 2022 (the “Employment
Agreement”).

2. Vesting.

(a) General. Subject to the achievement of the performance goals set forth in Exhibit I, and except as otherwise set forth in Sections
2(c), 2(d), 2(e) and 2(f) herein, the PSUs granted hereby shall vest on the Vesting Date, provided that Grantee has remained in continuous Service (as
defined below) through the Vesting Date. The calculation of the number of PSUs, if any, that may vest on the Vesting Date is specified in Exhibit I and is
based upon performance goals achieved during the Performance Period. If the Company does not achieve the minimum threshold performance goals (as set
forth in Exhibit I) during the Performance Period, the PSUs granted or otherwise eligible to vest hereunder shall be forfeited as of the date of such
determination. The number of PSUs that vest on the Vesting Date shall be rounded up to the nearest whole PSU. Except as otherwise expressly provided in
Sections 2(c), 2(d), 2(e) and 2(f), or as otherwise determined by the Committee, if Grantee’s Service terminates for any reason at any time prior to the
Vesting Date, all of the PSUs shall be automatically forfeited upon such termination of Service and neither the Company nor any Affiliate shall have any
further obligation to Grantee under this Agreement.

Committee Determinations Final. All determinations of whether performance goals have been achieved and the number of PSUs
earned by Grantee, including any adjustment to be made, shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion. Following completion of the Performance
Period (generally during the first fiscal quarter following the end of the Performance Period), the Committee will review and certify (i) whether, and to
what extent, the performance goals for the Performance Period have been achieved, and (ii) the number of PSUs that are eligible to vest upon the Vesting
Date, if any. Such certification shall be final, conclusive and binding on Grantee, and on all other persons, to the maximum extent permitted by law.

() Grantee’s Death or Disability. If Grantee dies or becomes “disabled” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(C)(i) or (ii) of
the Code (“Disabled” or a “Disability”) prior to the cessation of Grantee’s employment or provision of services to the Company or its Affiliate (“Service”)
and during the Performance Period and prior to a Change of Control, then PSUs equal to 100% of the Target Award shall vest on the date of such death or
Disability (as applicable).

(d) Termination of Service by the Company or its Affiliate Without Cause. If Grantee’s Service terminates by action of the
Company or its Affiliate without Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement) during the first twelve (12) months of the Performance Period, all PSUs
granted hereunder shall be automatically forfeited upon such Service termination. If Grantee’s Service terminates by action of the Company or its Affiliate
without Cause after the first twelve (12) months of the Performance Period, then a pro rata portion of the PSUs, determined by multiplying the payout
percentage certified by the Committee for the full Performance Period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of whole months between the
first day of the Performance Period and the date of Grantee’s termination of Service, and the denominator of which is the number of months from the first
day of the Performance Period to the Vesting Date, shall be eligible to vest as of the date of such Service termination based on attainment of performance
goals during the portion of the Performance Period ending on the most recently completed fiscal year(s) as of the date of such termination (based on the
targets set forth in Exhibit I). Any PSUs that are not eligible to vest in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be forfeited.



(e) Termination of Service by Grantee for Retirement. If Grantee’s Service terminates due to Grantee’s resignation for Retirement
(as defined in the Employment Agreement), then Grantee shall be eligible to vest in PSUs as determined under this Agreement as though his Service
continued through the Vesting Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, without limiting any party’s rights or obligations, all theretofore unsettled PSUs shall
be forfeited immediately upon Grantee’s breach of his obligations under Section 5 of the Employment Agreement.

® Change of Control.

>i) If a Change of Control occurs during the first twelve (12) months of the Performance Period, 100% of the Target Award
PSUs shall convert to time-vested Stock Units (such converted PSUs, “RSUs”) and all such RSUs shall, subject to continued Service
through the Vesting Date, vest on the Vesting Date and be settled at the same time the original PSUs would have been settled in
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. Any PSUs that are not eligible to vest as of the Change of Control shall be forfeited.

(i1) If a Change of Control occurs in the second or third year of the Performance Period, all PSUs eligible to vest based on
performance goals achieved in the most recently completed fiscal year(s) as of the date of such Change of Control (based on the targets
set forth in Exhibit I), as certified by the Committee, shall convert to time-vested RSUs and all such RSUs shall, subject to continued
Service through the Vesting Date, vest on the Vesting Date and be settled at the same time the original PSUs would have been settled in
accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. Any PSUSs that are not eligible to vest as of the Change of Control shall be forfeited.

(1ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything in Section 2(e) to the contrary, if a Change of Control that qualifies as a
“change in control event” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(5) (a “409A Change of Control”) occurs and,
at any time prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of the 409A Change of Control, Grantee’s Service terminates by action of the Company
or its Affiliate without Cause or due to Grantee’s Retirement, all time-vested RSUs (determined as described in Section 2(e)(i) or (ii), as
applicable) shall become immediately vested upon such Service termination. [If Grantee dies or becomes Disabled prior to the cessation
of Grantee’s Service and during the Performance Period and following a Change of Control, then all time-vested RSUs shall become
immediately vested on the date of such death or Disability (as applicable).]

@iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing clauses (i) through (iii), if a Change of Control occurs and the surviving entity does not
assume and continue the PSUs, then the PSUs shall become fully vested immediately prior to the Change of Control based on the
performance assumptions described in clauses (i) and (ii) above, as applicable.

W) All references to PSUs herein shall include the RSUs into which PSUs may be converted.
3. Payment of PSUs (Settlement).

(a) Payment in respect of the PSUs eligible to vest for the Performance Period (i.e., the settlement of such PSUs) shall be made in
shares of Stock that shall be issued to Grantee as soon as practicable (and in any event within two and one-half (2)2) months following) following the
Vesting Date, or, if earlier, (a) the date of Grantee’s death or Disability, as applicable, while in continuous Service or (b) if a 409A Change of Control
occurs and Grantee’s Service terminates prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of the 409A Change of Control, the date of such termination of Service.

(b) Certificates or evidence of book-entry shares representing the Stock issued upon settlement of PSUs pursuant to this Section 3
will be delivered to or otherwise made available to Grantee (or, at the discretion of Grantee, jointly in the names of Grantee and Grantee’s spouse) or, in the
case of Grantee’s death, to Grantee’s beneficiary or, if none is identified in the records of the Company, Grantee’s spouse or, if none, Grantee’s estate. It is
intended that delivery of shares of Stock under this Agreement will comply with all applicable laws (including, the requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)), and the applicable requirements of any securities exchange or similar entity.



() Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (i) to the extent Grantee breaches any restrictive covenants under an agreement
Grantee entered into with the Company or any of its Affiliates, including without limitation those set forth in Section 5 of the Employment Agreement, the
PSUs may be immediately forfeited to the extent not yet settled and (ii) the PSUs are subject to forfeiture and any Stock issued hereunder subject to
clawback in accordance with Section 21(g) of the Plan.

4. Transferability. The PSUs subject to this Award or the rights relating thereto may not be assigned, alienated, pledged, attached, sold or
otherwise transferred or encumbered by Grantee, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and upon any such transfer by will or the laws of
descent and distribution, the transferee shall hold such PSUs subject to all of the terms and conditions that were applicable to Grantee immediately prior to
such transfer. After such PSUs vest and are settled in accordance with this Agreement, no sale or disposition of such shares of Stock shall be made in the
absence of an effective registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to such shares unless an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company
that such sale or disposition will not constitute a violation of the Securities Act or any other applicable securities laws is first obtained or an exemption
from such registration pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or otherwise is available.

5. Rights as Shareholder; Dividend Equivalents. Grantee shall have no rights as a stockholder with respect to the PSUs unless and until
the PSUs are settled by delivery of Stock in accordance with Section 3(b) of this Agreement. As of any date that the Company pays an ordinary cash
dividend on its shares of Stock, the Company will increase the number of PSUs hereunder (i.e., by increasing the Target Award) by the number of shares of
Stock that represent an amount equal to the per share value of dividend paid by the Company on its shares of Stock (if paid in cash or shares) multiplied by
the number of target PSUs held by Grantee as of the related dividend payment record date. Any such additional PSUs shall be subject to the same vesting,
forfeiture, payment, termination and other terms, conditions and restrictions as the original PSUs to which they relate. No additional PSUs shall be granted
with respect to any PSUs which, as of the record date, have either been paid or terminated.

6. Change in Capital Structure. In accordance with Section 5(d) of the Plan, the terms of this Agreement, including the number of shares
of Stock in respect of the PSUs shall be adjusted as the Administrator determines is equltably required in the event the Company effects one or more stock
dividends, stock splits, subdivisions or consolidations of shares or other similar changes in capitalization described in Section 5(d) of the Plan.

7. Tax Liability and Withholding.

(a) Grantee understands that when the PSUs are settled in accordance with Section 4, Grantee will be obligated to recognize
income, for Federal, state and local income tax purposes, as applicable, in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of the share of Stock as of such date,
and Grantee is responsible for all tax obligations that arise in connection with the PSUs. Notwithstanding any action the Company takes with respect to any
or all income tax, social insurance, payroll tax, or other tax-related withholding (“Tax-Related Items”), the ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is and
remains Grantee’s responsibility and the Company (i) makes no representation or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Items in
connection with the grant or vesting of the PSUs, the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs, or the subsequent sale of any shares of the Stock underlying
the PSUs; and (ii) does not commit to structure the PSUs or the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs to reduce or eliminate Grantee’s liability for Tax-
Related Items.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, unless Grantee has delivered an amount necessary to
satisfy the Tax-Related Items as of the settlement date for the PSUs, Grantee agrees to the following methods of satisfying the Tax-Related Items on behalf
of Grantee in connection with the PSUs and the delivery of Stock underlying the PSUs, in the discretion of the Company: (i) through the automatic
withholding of a sufficient number of shares of Stock that would otherwise be delivered to Grantee, applying procedures approved by the Administrator,
such withheld shares having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of settlement that shall not exceed the minimum amount of the Tax-Related Items,
rounded up for any partial share of Stock that would be withheld to satisfy such obligation (or such other amount as the Administrator determines will not
result in additional compensation expense for financial accounting purposes under applicable financial accounting principles); (ii) through the deduction
from any other payment otherwise due to Grantee at the time of exercise; or (iii) a combination of any or all of the foregoing.

() Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, Grantee may satisfy the tax withholding obligation by delivery of cash or by
surrendering shares deliverable in settlement of the PSU or by delivering shares of Stock owned by Grantee (having in any case, an aggregate Fair Market
Value on the date of exercise equal to the amount of the Tax-Related Items).



8. Contflicts. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan as in effect on the Date of Grant and the provisions of this
Agreement, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All references herein to the Plan mean the Plan as in effect on the date hereof.

9. No Right to Continued Service. Neither the Plan nor this Agreement shall confer upon Grantee any right to be retained in any position,
as an employee, consultant or director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Further, nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall be construed to limit
the discretion of the Company to terminate Grantee’s employment at any time, with or without Cause.

10. Compliance with Law. The grant and settlement of the PSUs shall be subject to compliance by the Company and Grantee with all
applicable requirements of federal and state securities laws and with all applicable requirements of any stock exchange on which the Company’s shares of
Stock may be listed. No shares of Stock shall be issued in settlement of the PSUs unless and until any then applicable requirements of state or federal laws
and regulatory agencies have been fully complied with to the satisfaction of the Company and its counsel.

11. Notices. Any notice required to be delivered to the Company under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal corporate offices. Any notice required to be delivered to Grantee under this Agreement shall be in writing and
addressed to Grantee at Grantee’s address as shown in the records of the Company. Either party may designate another address in writing (or by such other
method approved by the Company) from time to time.

12. Interpretation. Any dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by Grantee or the Company to the
Administrator for review. The resolution of such dispute by the Administrator shall be final and binding on Grantee and the Company.

13. Successors and Assigns. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement. This Agreement will be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth herein, this Agreement will be binding
upon Grantee and Grantee’s beneficiaries, executors, administrators and the person(s) to whom this Agreement may be transferred by will or the laws of
descent or distribution.

14. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of the Plan or this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of the Plan or this Agreement, and each provision of the Plan and this Agreement shall be severable and enforceable to
the extent permitted by law.

15. Discretionary Nature of Plan. The Plan is discretionary and may be amended, cancelled or terminated by the Company at any time, in
its discretion. The grant of the PSUs in this Agreement does not create any contractual right or other right to receive any Grants in the future. Future
Grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company. Any amendment, modification, or termination of the Plan shall not constitute a change or
impairment of the terms and conditions of Grantee’s Service to the Company.

16. Amendment. The Administrator has the right to amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or cancel the PSUs, prospectively or retroactively;
provided, that, no such amendment shall adversely affect Grantee’s material rights under this Agreement without Grantee’s consent.

17. No Impact on Other Benefits. The value of Grantee’s PSUs or the Stock underlying the PSUs is not part of his or her normal or
expected compensation for purposes of calculating any severance, retirement, welfare, insurance or similar employee benefit.

18. Section 409A. This Agreement is intended to comply with section 409A of the Code (“Section 409A”) or an exemption thereunder in
accordance with Section 21(b) of the Plan and shall be construed and interpreted, including any ambiguities herein, in a manner that is consistent with the
requirements for avoiding additional taxes or penalties under Section 409A Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the
payments and benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any portion of any
taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by Grantee on account of non-compliance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding the
foregoing or anything herein to the contrary, if the PSUs constitute nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A and if Grantee
is deemed a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A, each as determined by the Administrator, at a time when Grantee becomes eligible
for settlement of the PSUs upon his or her “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A, then to the extent necessary to prevent any
accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, such settlement will be delayed until the earlier of: (a) the first day of the month following the date that is
six months following Grantee’s separation from service and (b) Grantee’s



death. If the PSUs constitute nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A, references in this Agreement to a termination of
employment or cessation of Service or the like shall mean a “separation from service” under Section 409A.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument. Counterpart signature pages to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile transmission, by electronic mail in portable
document format (.pdf), or by any other electronic means intended to preserve the original graphic and pictorial appearance of a document, will have the
same effect as physical delivery of the paper document bearing an original signature.

20. Grantee Bound by Plan. Grantee hereby acknowledges that a copy of the Plan has been made available to him or her and agrees to be
bound by all the terms and provisions thereof. The terms and conditions of the Plan are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to conflict of law principles.

22. Acceptance. Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and this Agreement. Grantee has read and understands the terms
and provisions thereof, and accepts the PSUs subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. Grantee acknowledges that there
may be adverse tax consequences upon grant or vesting of or settlement of the PSUs and that Grantee should consult a tax advisor prior to such vesting or
settlement.

[Signatures appear on following page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this Agreement, and Grantee has placed his or her signature
hereon, effective as of the Date of Grant.

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.

By:
Name: Ernesto Luciano
Title: General Counsel | Chief Legal Officer

I hereby accept this Grant of PSUs and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. I further agree that all of the decisions and
interpretations of the Company with respect thereto shall be final and binding.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

By:

Robert W. Lisy

Date

[Signature Page to International Money Express Inc. PSU Agreement]
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Exhibit 10.19(b)

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Employment Agreement dated as of September 23, 2019, between INTERNATIONAL MONEY
EXPRESS, INC., a Delaware corporation and Joseph Aguilar (the “Agreement”) is effective January 16, 2023 (the “Amendment Effective Date”).
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning set forth in the Employment Agreement.

The Employer and Executive desire to enter into this Amendment to the Agreement and hereby agree to the following as of the Amendment
Effective Date:

1. Section 1.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing the phrase “Chief Operating Officer” with the phrase “President and General
Manager, Latin America.”

2. Section 2.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing the Base Salary referenced therein from “$315,000” to “$440,000”, which change
to Base Salary was effective January 1, 2023.

3. The Executive acknowledges and agrees to the change in title described in Section 1.02 and that such change, and any related changes in duties
and other actions of the Company, does not and shall not constitute “Good Reason” as defined in the Agreement.

4. All other provisions of the Agreement not amended hereby shall remain in full force and effect.

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.

By /s/ Robert Lisy
Name: Robert Lisy

Title: Chief Executive Officer &
Chairman

Date: January 16, 2023
Accepted and Agreed to:
/s/ Joseph Aguilar

Joseph Aguilar
Date: January 16, 2023

[Amendment to Aguilar Employment Agreement]



Exhibit 10.20
EXECUTION VERSION

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) dated as of May 20%, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), between
INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Employer”), and ERNESTO LUCIANO (“Executive”) and shall replace and
supersede in its entirety, as of the Effective Date, Executive’s prior employment agreement dated as November 30™, 2020 (the “Prior Employment
Agreement”).

WHEREAS, Executive was originally hired to serve in the position of General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer of Employer; and

WHEREAS, as of January 2022, the Executive has since been appointed and assumed the position of General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of
Employer; and

WHEREAS, the Executive and the Employer desire that Executive’s employment with Employer continue pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, which replaces and supersedes the Prior Employment Agreement primarily to reflect the current terms of employment as agreed upon by the
Executive and the Employer.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, Employer and Executive have agreed and do hereby agree
as follows:

Article 1
Employment

SECTION 1.01 Term. The term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless
Employer and Executive otherwise agree in writing, shall continue until it terminates pursuant to Article IV. Executive’s employment with Employer will
be “at will” and, subject to the provisions of Article IV, Executive’s employment under this Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time and
for any reason. Executive’s employment under this Agreement shall terminate automatically upon Executive’s death.

SECTION 1.02 Position and Duties. Executive shall, during the term of employment under this Agreement, perform the services and
duties as General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of Employer plus such other services and duties as determined from time to time by the Board of
Directors of Employer (the “Board”) or such other person or persons as may be designated from time to time by the Board. Executive shall perform such
services and duties in accordance with the policies, practices and bylaws of Employer. Executive shall also serve as the Corporate Secretary of Employer
without any additional compensation or other benefits being payable therefore. If requested, Executive shall also serve as a member of the Board and its
committees, and the board of directors or other managing body of Employer’s affiliates and their committees, without additional compensation.

SECTION 1.03 Time and Effort. Executive shall serve Employer faithfully, loyally, honestly and to the best of Executive’s ability.
Executive shall devote all Executive’s business time and best efforts to the performance of Executive’s duties on behalf of Employer. During Executive’s
term of employment, Executive shall not at any time or place or to any extent whatsoever, either directly or indirectly, without the express written consent
of the Board, engage in any outside employment or in any activity that, in the judgment of Employer, is competitive with or adverse to the business,
practice or affairs of Employer or any of its affiliates, whether or not such activity 1s pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage.

Article I
Compensation

SECTION 1.01 Base Salary. During the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement, Employer shall, as compensation for
the obligations set forth herein and for all services rendered by Executive in any capacity during Executive’s employment under this Agreement, including
services as an officer, employee, director or member of any governing body, or committee thereof, of Employer or any of their affiliates, pay Executive a
base salary (herein “Base Salary”) at the annual rate of $275,000 per year in 2021 and $286,000 in 2022, payable in accordance with Employer’s standard
payroll practices as in effect from time to time. Beginning in 2022, Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed annually in January, and may be subject to an
increase, as determined in the reasonable discretion of the Board. In the event that sickness or disability payments under any insurance programs of
Employer or otherwise shall become payable to Executive in respect of any period of



Executive’s employment under this Agreement, the salary installment payable to Executive hereunder on the next succeeding salary installment payment
date shall be an amount computed by subtracting (a) the amount of such sickness or disability payments that shall have become payable during the period
between such date and the immediately preceding salary installment date from (b) the salary installment otherwise payable to Executive hereunder on such
date.

SECTION 1.02 Annual Bonus. During the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement, Executive shall be eligible to
participate in Employer’s annual incentive compensation plan, as may be continued or established by the Board, in its discretion, from time to time (the
“Bonus Plan”) and shall have the opportunity to earn a performance based bonus (“Annual Bonus™) with a target Annual Bonus opportunity of forty-five
percent (45%) of Base Salary, based 25% on achievement of personal objectives and 75% on achievement of certain EBITDA results or other objective
performance measures established by the Board. The amount of any Annual Bonus actually payable to Executive shall be determined by the Board in its
discretion and shall be payable in accordance with Employer’s practices as of the date hereof or pursuant to such other procedures as may be agreed to
between the Chief Executive Officer of Employer and the Board. Executive acknowledges that the Board may amend or modify from time to time the
Bonus Plan, including modifying the performance requirements, target levels and participation terms thereof, and the Board reserves the right to terminate
the Bonus Plan at any time and for any reason.

SECTION 2.03 Award of Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Company’s 2020 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), Executive shall receive 8,000 in 2021 and 9,340 in 2022 restricted stock units (“RSUs”), which shall vest with respect to
twenty-five percent (25%) of the RSUs on the first anniversary of the date of the grant and thereafter shall vest with respect to an additional twenty-five
percent on an annual basis through the fourth anniversary of the date of the grant until the RSUs are fully-vested. The RSUs shall be granted under the Plan
at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) in February, 2021 and 2022, respectively (and in no
event later than March 15, 2021 and 2022, respectively).

SECTION 2.04 Award of Performance Stock Units. Subject to terms and conditions of the Plan, Executive shall receive a grant of 11,000
performance stock units (“PSUs”) in 2021 and 6,993 PSUs in 2022, which shall be granted under the Plan at the regularly scheduled meeting of the
Committee in February 2021 and 2022, respectively (and in no event later than March 15, 2021 and 2022, respectively), and which shall vest in the
amounts and upon attainment of the performance goals as determined by the Committee at the time of such grant.

Atrticle III

Executive Benefits

SECTION 1.01 Benefit Plans. During the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement, Executive shall be entitled to
participate in any benefit plans (excluding severance, bonus, incentive or profit sharing plans) offered by Employer as in effect from time to time
(collectively, “Benefit Plans) on the same basis as that generally made available to other employees of Employer to the extent Executive may be eligible to
do so under the terms of any such Benefit Plan. Executive understands that any such Benefit Plans may be terminated or amended from time to time by
Employer in their discretion; provided, however, that, if such Benefit Plans cease to include medical and dental plans, Executive shall be eligible to receive
medical and dental benefits substantially comparable to such benefits provided by Employer to Executive under Employer’s medical and dental plans as of
the date hereof. Notwithstanding the first sentence of this Section 3.01, nothing shall preclude Executive from participating during the term of Executive’s
employment under this Agreement in any present or future bonus, incentive or profit sharing plan or other plan of Employer for the benefit of its
employees, in each case as and to the extent approved or determined by the Board in its discretion and subject to Section 2.02.

SECTION 1.02 Expenses. Employer will reimburse Executive for all reasonably incurred business expenses, subject to the travel and
expense policy established by Employer from time to time, incurred by Executive during the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement in the
performance of Executive’s duties hereunder, provided that Executive furnishes to Employer adequate records and other documentary evidence required to
substantiate such expenditures.

SECTION 1.03  Vacation. During the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement, Executive shall receive 20 paid vacation
days per year, which shall be accrued and taken in accordance with Employer’s vacation policy.

SECTION 3.04 Other Benefits. In addition to the foregoing, Executive received a one-time sign on bonus of $30,000 (“Signing Bonus™),
payable at the end of his initial pay period in 2020. Executive




acknowledged receiving payment of the Signing Bonus and understands that the Signing Bonus was a one-time non-reoccurring compensation payment.
Article IV

Termination

SECTION 1.01 Exclusive Rights. The amounts payable under this Article IV are intended to be, and are, exclusive and in lieu of any
other rights or remedies to which Executive may otherwise be entitled, including under common, tort or contract law, under policies of Employer and its
affiliates in effect from time to time, under this Agreement or otherwise, in the event of Executive’s termination of employment with Employer and its
affiliates.

SECTION 1.02 Termination by Employer for Cause. (a) If Employer terminates Executive for Cause (as defined below), Executive
shall be entitled to receive (i) Base Salary earned through the date of termination that remains unpaid as of the date of Executive’s termination, (ii) any
accrued and unpaid bonus for any previously completed bonus period that Executive is entitled to receive as of the date of termination that remains unpaid
as of the date of Executive’s termination, (iii) reimbursement for any unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by Executive prior to the date of
Executive’s termination to the extent such expenses are reimbursable under Section 3.02 and (iv) such benefits (excluding benefits under any severance
plan, program or policy then in effect), if any, to which Executive may be entitled under the Benefit Plans as of the date of Executive’s termination, which
benefits shall be payable in accordance with the terms of such Benefits Plans (the amounts described in clauses (i) through (iv) of this Section 4.02(a) being
referred to herein as the “Accrued Rights”).

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean Executive’s (i) willful failure to perform those duties that
Executive is required to perform as an employee under this Agreement, (ii) conviction of, or a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, a misdemeanor
involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, theft, unethical business conduct or conduct that significantly impairs the reputation of Employer or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates or a felony (or the equivalent thereof in a jurisdiction other than the United States), (iii) gross negligence, malfeasance or willful
misconduct in connection with Executive’s duties hereunder (either by an act of commission or omission) that is significantly injurious to the financial
condition or business reputation of Employer or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, (iv) breach of the provisions of Section 5.03 or 5.04 or (v) a breach of
the provisions of Article V (other than Section 5.03 or 5.04) that either (A) is materially damaging to the business or reputation of Employer or any of its
affiliates or (B) occurs after Employer has notified Executive of a prior breach of such Article V (other than Section 5.03 or 5.04).

(b) If Employer desires to terminate Executive’s employment for Cause in the case of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of Section 4.02(b) and
the basis for Cause, by its nature, is capable of being cured, Employer shall first provide Executive with written notice of the applicable event that
constitutes the basis for Cause (a “Cause Notice”) within ten days of the Board’s becoming aware of such event. Such notice shall specifically identify such
claimed breach. Executive shall have 15 days following receipt of such Cause Notice (the “Cause Cure Period”) to cure such basis for Cause, and Employer
shall be entitled at the end of such Cause Cure Period to terminate Executive’s employment under this Agreement for Cause, provided, however, that, if
such breach is cured within the Cause Cure Period or if Employer does not terminate Executive’s employment with Employer within ten days after the end
of the Cause Cure Period, Employer’s termination of Executive’s employment shall not be deemed to be a termination for Cause.

Employer elects to terminate Executive’s employment for any reason other than Cause, Disability (as defined below) or death or if Executive elects to
terminate Executive’s employment with Employer for Good Reason (as defined below), (i) Employer shall continue to pay Executive’s Base Salary through
the period of time ending nine (9) months after the date of Executive’s termination of employment, payable in installments at the same times at which and
in the same manner in which such Base Salary would have been payable to Executive had a termination of employment not occurred, (ii) Executive shall be
entitled to receive an amount equal to (A) the product of (1) Executive’s target bonus for the calendar year in which Executive’s termination of employment
hereunder occurs and (2) a fraction equal to (I) the number of days elapsed in such calendar year prior to Executive’s termination of employment hereunder,
divided by (II) 365, less (B) any bonus for such calendar year paid to Executive (1) prior to his termination of employment with Employer or (2) pursuant
to clause (ii) of the definition of Accrued Rights set forth above, payable in equal installments during the six (6) month period following such termination
of employment at the same times as Employer’s payroll applicable to the other employees of Employer is paid, and (iii) Executive shall be entitled to the
Accrued Rights; provided, however, that, in the case of clauses (i) and (ii), Employer shall not be obligated to (x) commence such payments



until such time as Executive has provided a general release in favor of Employer its subsidiaries and affiliates, and its respective directors, officers,
employees, agents and representatives in form and substance acceptable to Employer and such general release has become effective and irrevocable (such
date, the “Release Effective Date”), except that any payments that would have otherwise been paid to Executive following the date of the termination of
employment and prior to the Release Effective Date shall be accumulated and paid to Executive in a lump sum on the first payment date following the
Release Effective Date, and (y) continue such payments at any time following a breach of the provisions of Section 5.03 or 5.04 or a breach of the
provisions of Article V (other than Section 5.03 or 5.04) that either (A) is materially damaging to the business or reputation of Employer or any of its
affiliates or (B) occurs after Employer has notified Executive of a prior breach of such Article V (other than Section 5.03 or 5.04); provided, further, that if
the Release Effective Date does not occur within sixty (60) days of the date of termination of employment, Employer shall not be obligated to make
payments under clauses (i) and (ii) above.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Good Reason” shall mean: (i) (A) the assignment to Executive of any duties
inconsistent in any material adverse respect with the Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities as contemplated by Section 1.02 or (B) a reduction in
Executive’s title; (ii) any material breach by Employer of any material provisions of this Agreement; (iii) any reduction in Executive’s Base Salary; (iv) a
material reduction in employee benefits, other than a change which results from an amendment or alteration of Employer’s Benefit Plans that affects its
salaried employees generally; or (vi) in the event of a transfer (for consideration or otherwise) of substantially all of the business operations of Employer,
this Agreement is not assigned pursuant to Section 6.01.

(b) Executive shall provide Employer with written notice of the applicable event that constitutes the basis for Good Reason within
ten (10) days of such event. Such notice shall specifically identify such claimed breach and shall inform Employer what must be done to cure such breach.
If Employer fails to cure such basis for Good Reason within thirty (30) calendar days after the receipt of such notice (the “Good Reason Cure Period”),
Executive shall be entitled at the end of the Good Reason Cure Period to terminate his employment under this Agreement for Good Reason, whereupon
Executive shall provide written notice of such termination to Employer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such breach is cured within such thirty (30) day
period or if Executive does not terminate Executive’s employment with Employer within ten days after the end of the Good Reason Cure Period, any
termination of employment by Executive shall not be deemed to be a termination for Good Reason.

SECTION 1.04 Termination for Disability or Death. Executive’s employment shall terminate automatically upon Executive’s death.
Employer may terminate Executive’s employment upon the occurrence of Executive’s Disability. In the event of Executive’s termination due to death or
Disability, Executive, or Executive’s estate, as the case may be, shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Rights. For purposes of this Agreement, the term
“Disability” shall mean (a) the inability of Executive, due to illness, accident or any other physical or mental incapacity, to perform Executive’s duties in a
normal manner for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days (whether or not consecutive) in any twelve (12) month period during the term of Executive’s
employment under this Agreement or (b) the Executive’s being accepted for long-term disability benefits under any long-term disability plan in which he is
then participating. The Board shall determine, according to the facts then available, whether and when the Disability of Executive has occurred. Such
determination shall not be arbitrary or unreasonable and the Board will take into consideration the expert medical opinion of a physician chosen by
Employer, after such physician has completed an examination of Executive. Executive agrees to make himself available for such examination upon the
reasonable request of Employer.

SECTION 1.05 Termination of Employment by Executive Without Good Reason. If Executive terminates Executive’s employment
with Employer for any reason other than for Good Reason, Executive shall provide written notice to Employer at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective
date of Executive’s resignation from employment and Executive shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Rights.

SECTION 1.06 Board Resignation. Upon termination of Executive’s employment for any reason, Executive agrees to resign, as of the
date of such termination and to the extent applicable, as an officer of Employer and its affiliates and from the Board and its committees and the Board of
Directors or other managing body of Employer or Employer’s other affiliates and their committees.

Article V
Executive Covenants
SECTION 1.01 Employer Interests. (a) Executive acknowledges that Employer has expended substantial amounts of time, money and

effort to develop business strategies, customer relationships, employee relationships, trade secrets and goodwill and to build an effective organization and
that Employer has a legitimate business interest and right in protecting those assets as well as any similar assets that Employer may develop or



obtain. Executive acknowledges that Employer is entitled to protect and preserve the going concern value of Employer and its business and trade secrets to
the extent permitted by law. Executive acknowledges that Employer’s business is worldwide in nature and international in scope. Executive acknowledges
and agrees that the restrictions imposed upon Executive under this Agreement are reasonable and necessary for the protection of Employer’s goodwill,
confidential information, trade secrets and customer relationships and that the restrictions set forth in this Agreement will not prevent Executive from
earning a livelihood without violating any provision of this Agreement.

(a) As used in this Article V, the term “Employer” includes Employer’s subsidiaries and affiliates, and its and their predecessors,
successors and assigns.

SECTION 1.02 Consideration to Executive. In consideration of Employer’s entering into this Agreement and Employer’s obligations
hereunder and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and acknowledging hereby that Employer would not
have entered into this Agreement without the covenants contained in this Article V, Executive hereby agrees to be bound by the provisions and covenants
contained in this Article V.

SECTION 1.03 Non-Solicitation. Executive agrees that, for the period commencing on the date hereof and terminating two (2) years
after the date of Executive’s termination of employment with Employer, Executive shall not, and shall cause each of Executive’s affiliates (other than
Employer) not to, directly or indirectly: (a) solicit any person or entity that is or was a sending agent, paying agent or otherwise a customer (or prospective
customer) of Employer to (i) purchase any goods or services related to any Competitive Business from anyone other than Employer or (ii) reduce its
volume of goods or services purchased from Employer, (b) interfere with, or attempt to interfere with, business relationships (whether formed before, on or
after the date of this Agreement) between Employer and suppliers, partners, members or investors of Employer, (c) other than on behalf of Employer,
solicit, recruit or hire any employee or consultant of Employer or any person who has, at any time within two (2) years prior to such solicitation,
recruitment or hiring, worked for or provided services to Employer, provided, however, that this clause (c) shall not preclude Executive from making
solicitations of employment targeted to the general public or from hiring any employee who responds to such general solicitation, (d) solicit or encourage
any employee or consultant of Employer to leave the employment of, or to cease providing services to, Employer or (e) assist any person or entity in any
way to do, or attempt to do, anything prohibited by this Section 5.03.

SECTION 1.04 Non-Competition. (a) Executive agrees that, for the period commencing on the date hereof and terminating nine (9)
months after the date of Executive’s termination of employment with Employer, Executive shall not, and shall cause each of Executive’s affiliates (other
than Employer) not to, directly or indirectly: (i) engage in or establish any Competitive Business (as defined below), including selling goods or services
relating to any Competitive Business that are of the type sold by Employer, (ii) assist any person or entity in any way to engage in or establish, or attempt to
engage in or establish, any Competitive Business, (iii) except as provided in Section 5.04(c), be employed by, consult with, advise, permit his or her name
to be used by, or be connected in any manner with the ownership, management, operation or control of any person or entity that directly or indirectly
engages in any Competitive Business, (iv) engage in any course of conduct that involves any Competitive Business that is substantially detrimental to the
business reputation of Employer or (v) engage in or establish any Tier II Business (as defined below) using any sending agent of Employer if either (A)
prior to such use of such sending agent, Employer is using such sending agent in the conduct of Employer of the same Tier II Business, or (B) the conduct
of Executive or Executive’s affiliates of such Tier Il Business, directly or indirectly, restricts or materially impairs the ability of such sending agent to
participate with Employer in Employer’s conduct of a Tier II Business.

(a) The term “Competitive Business” shall mean the money order services industry, money transfer services industry and money
remittance services industry located anywhere in, or providing services to customers or payees in, the United States of America, or Latin
America/Caribbean and any other region in which Employer operates (now or in the future), all in any manner, including, but not limited to, by way of
wire, telephone, courier, ATM, prepaid or stored value card or otherwise). The term “Tier I Business” shall mean any business or industry located in, or
providing services to customers or payees in, the United States or Latin America/Caribbean and any other region in which Employer operates (now or in
the future) in the fields of check cashing services, pay-day loan services, prepaid or stored value card services or any form of foreign exchange or money
exchange services.

(b) This Section 5.04 shall be deemed not breached solely as a result of the ownership by Executive or any of Executive’s affiliates
of: (i) less than an aggregate of five percent (5%) of any class of stock of a public company engaged, directly or indirectly, in any Competitive Business;
(i1) less than five percent (5%) in value of any instrument of indebtedness of a public company engaged, directly or indirectly, in any Competitive Business;
or (iii) a public company that engages, directly or indirectly, in any Competitive Business if such Competitive Business account for less than five percent
(5%) of such person’s or entity’s consolidated annual



revenues. A “public company” for purposes of this Section 5.04(c) shall mean an entity whose common stock is traded on a nationally recognized securities
exchange.

SECTION 1.05 Confidential Information. Executive hereby acknowledges that (a) in the performance of Executive’s duties and
services prior to entering into, and pursuant to this Agreement, Executive has received, and may be given access to, Confidential Information and (b) all
Confidential Information is or will be the property of Employer. For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” shall mean information,
knowledge and data that is or will be used, developed, obtained or owned by Employer relating to the business, products and/or services of Employer or the
business, products and/or services of any customer, sales officer, sales associate or independent contractor thereof, including products, services, fees,
pricing, designs, marketing plans, strategies, analyses, forecasts, formulas, drawings, photographs, reports, records, computer software (whether or not
owned by, or designed for, Employer), other operating systems, applications, program listings, flow charts, manuals, documentation, data, databases,
specifications, technology, inventions, new developments and methods, improvements, techniques, trade secrets, devices, products, methods, know-how,
processes, financial data, customer lists, contact persons, cost information, executive information, regulatory matters, personnel matters, accounting and
business methods, copyrightable works and information with respect to any vendor, customer, sales officer, sales associate or independent contractor of
Employer, in each case whether patentable or unpatentable and whether or not reduced to practice, and all similar and related information in whatever form,
and all such items of any vendor, customer, sales officer, sales associate or independent contractor of Employer; provided, however, that Confidential
Information shall not include information that is generally known to the public other than as a result of disclosure by Executive in breach of this Agreement
or in breach of any similar covenant made by Executive prior to entering into this Agreement.

SECTION 1.06 Non-Disclosure. (a) Except as otherwise specifically provided in Section 5.07, Executive will not, directly or indirectly,
disclose or cause or permit to be disclosed, to any person or entity whatsoever, or utilize or cause or permit to be utilized, by any person or to any entity
whatsoever, any Confidential Information acquired pursuant to Executive’s employment with Employer (whether acquired prior to or subsequent to the
execution of this Agreement) under this Agreement or otherwise.

(a) Executive will not disclose to anyone, other than Executive’s immediate family and legal or financial advisors, the existence or
contents of this Agreement, except to the extent permitted in Section 5.07 or to comply with Section 5.14, and, to the extent such information is disclosed
to Executive’s immediate family or legal or financial advisors, will instruct those parties to comply with the non-disclosure requirements of this Section
5.06(b).

SECTION 1.07 Permitted Disclosure. Executive may (a) utilize and disclose the Confidential Information only to the extent reasonably
necessary and required in the discharge of Executive’s duties as an employee of Employer and (b) disclose Confidential Information only to the extent
Executive (i) is obligated to disclose such Confidential Information pursuant to any confidentiality agreement executed by or on behalf of Employer or
Executive prior to the date hereof, (ii) is compelled to disclose such Confidential Information or else stand liable for contempt or suffer other censure or
penalty, (ii1) is required to disclose such Confidential Information by law, (iv) discloses such information in the context of litigation between Employer and
Executive, or (v) is permitted to disclose such Confidential Information under any applicable “whistle blower” or similar law.

SECTION 1.08 Prior Inventions. Executive has attached hereto as Exhibit A a list describing all inventions, works of authorship
(including software, related items, databases, documentation, site content, text or graphics), developments, improvements and trade secrets (“Inventions”)
that were created or contributed to by Executive, either solely or jointly with others, prior to the date hereof (collectively referred to as “Prior Inventions™)
that relate to the current business, services, products or research and development of Employer or, if no such list is attached, Executive represents that there
are no such Prior Inventions. To the fullest extent permissible by law, Executive hereby grants Employer or its designee a non-exclusive royalty-free,
irrevocable, perpetual, worldwide license under all Executive’s Prior Inventions to make, have made, copy, modify, distribute, use and sell inventions,
works of authorship, developments, improvements, trade secrets, products, services, processes, machines and other property and to otherwise operate the
current and future business of Employer.

SECTION 1.09 Ownership of Inventions. Executive will promptly make full written disclosure to Employer of, and hereby assigns to
Employer or its designee all Executive’s rights, title and interest in and to, any and all Inventions, whether or not patentable, that Executive may solely or
jointly conceive or develop or reduce to practice, or cause to be conceived or developed or reduced to practice, during the term of Executive’s employment
with Employer that relate to the proposed or current business, services, products or research and development of Employer (whether before or after
execution of this Agreement)(collectively referred to as “Employer Inventions™). Executive further acknowledges that all original works of authorship that
are created or contributed to by Executive (solely or jointly with others) within the scope of, and during the period of, Executive’s employment (whether




before or after execution of this Agreement) with Employer are to be deemed “works made for hire”, as that term is defined in the United States Copyright
Act, and the copyright and all intellectual property rights therein shall be the sole property of Employer or its designee. To the extent any of such works are
deemed not to be “works for hire”, Executive hereby assigns the copyright and all other intellectual property rights in such works to Employer or its
designee.

SECTION 1.10 Further Assurances. Executive shall take all requested actions and execute all requested documents to assist Employer,
or its designee, at Employer’s expense, in every way to secure Employer’s or its designee’s above rights in the Prior Inventions and Employer Inventions
and any copyrights, patents, mask work rights or other intellectual property rights relating thereto in any and all countries, and to pursue any patents or
registrations with respect thereto. This covenant shall survive the termination of this Agreement. If Employer or its designee is unable for any other reason
to secure Executive’s signature on any document for this purpose, then Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints Employer or its designee and
their duly authorized officers and agents, as the case may be, as Executive’s agent and attorney in fact, to act for and in Executive’s behalf and stead to
execute any documents and to do all other lawfully permitted acts in connection with the foregoing.

SECTION 1.11 Records. All memoranda, books, records, documents, papers, plans, information, letters and other data relating to
Confidential Information or the business and customer accounts of Employer, whether prepared by Executive or otherwise, coming into Executive’s
possession shall be and remain the exclusive property of Employer and Executive shall not, during the term of Executive’s employment with Employer or
thereafter, directly or indirectly assert any interest or property rights therein. Upon termination of employment with Employer for any reason, Executive
will immediately return to Employer all such memoranda, books, records, documents, papers, plans, information, letters and other data, and all copies
thereof or therefrom, and Executive will not retain, or cause or permit to be retained, any copies or other embodiments of the materials so returned.
Executive further agrees that he will not retain or use for Executive’s account at any time any trade names, trademark or other proprietary business
designation used or owned in connection with the business of Employer.

SECTION 1.12 Non-Disparagement. Executive has not prior to the date hereof, whether in writing or orally, criticized or disparaged
Employer, nor shall Executive at any time following the date hereof, unless in the context of litigation between Employer and Executive or under penalty of
perjury, whether in writing or orally, criticize or disparage Employer or any of its affiliates or any of their respective current or former affiliates, directors,
officers, employees, members, partners, agents or representatives.

SECTION 1.13  Specific Performance. Executive agrees that any breach by Executive of any of the provisions of this Article V shall
cause irreparable harm to Employer that could not be made whole by monetary damages and that, in the event of such a breach, Executive shall waive the
defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate, and Employer shall be entitled to specifically enforce the terms and
provisions of this Article V without the necessity of proving actual damages or posting any bond or providing prior notice, in addition to any other remedy
to which Employer may be entitled at law or in equity.

SECTION 1.14 Notification of Subsequent Employer. Prior to accepting employment with any other person or entity during any period
during which Executive remains subject to any of the covenants set forth in Section 5.03 or Section 5.04, Executive shall provide such prospective
employer with written notice of the provisions of this Agreement, with a copy of such notice delivered simultaneously to Employer in accordance with
Section 6.05.

Article VI

Miscellaneous

SECTION 1.01 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assignable by Executive. The parties agree that any attempt by Executive to
delegate Executive’s duties hereunder shall be null and void. This Agreement may be assigned by Employer to a person or entity that is an affiliate or a
successor in interest to substantially all the business operations of Employer. Upon such assignment, the rights and obligations of Employer hereunder shall
become the rights and obligations of such affiliate or successor person or entity. As used in this Agreement, the term “Employer” shall mean Employer as
hereinbefore defined in the recital to this Agreement and any permitted assignee to which this Agreement is assigned.

SECTION 1.02  Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and permitted assigns
of Employer and the personal or legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, distributees, devisees and legatees of Executive. Executive
acknowledges and agrees that all Executive’s covenants and obligations to Employer, as well as the rights of Employer under this Agreement, shall run in
favor of and will be enforceable by Employer, its subsidiaries and its successors and permitted assigns.



SECTION 1.03 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the
transactions contemplated hereby and the subject matter hereof and supersedes and replaces any and all prior agreements, understandings, statements,
representations and warranties, written or oral, express or implied and/or whenever and howsoever made, directly or indirectly relating to the subject matter
hereof, including the offer letter between Employer and Executive dated as of February 20, 2018. Notwithstanding the above, the Executive’s covenants set
forth in Article V shall operate independently of, and shall be in addition to, any similar covenants to which Executive is subject pursuant to any other
agreement with Employer or any of Employer’s affiliates.

SECTION 1.04 Amendment. This Agreement may not be altered, modified, or amended except by written instrument signed by the
parties hereto.

SECTION 1.05 Notice. All documents, notices, requests, demands and other communications that are required or permitted to be
delivered or given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given when received.

If to Employer: International Money Express, Inc.
9480 S. Dixie Hwy.
Miami, FL 33156
Attention: Margaret Schlozen
Telephone: (305) 671-8000 x 1414
E-mail: mailto: pschlozen@intermexusa.com

with copies to: Brenner Kaprosy Mitchell, L.L.P.
30050 Chagrin Blvd., Suite 100
Pepper Pike, Ohio 44124-5704
Attention: T. David Mitchell
Telephone: (216) 292-5511
Facsimile: (216) 292-5555
E-mail: TDMitchell@brenner-law.com

and if to Executive, to the Executive’s last address on file with the Company.

The parties may change the address to which notices under this Agreement shall be sent by providing written notice to the other in the manner specified
above.

SECTION 1.06 Governing Law and Jurisdiction. (a) This Agreement and any disputes arising under or related hereto (whether for
breach of contract, tortious conduct or otherwise) shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without reference to
its conflicts of law principles. Each party irrevocably agrees that any legal action, suit or proceeding against them arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or disputes relating hereto (whether for breach of contract, tortuous conduct or otherwise)
shall be brought exclusively in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, or, if such court does not have subject matter
jurisdiction, the state courts of Florida located in Dade County and hereby irrevocably accepts and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the
aforesaid courts in personam, with respect to any such action, suit or proceeding.

(a) Each party hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect to
any litigation directly or indirectly arising out of, under or in connection with this Agreement. Each party (i) certifies that no representative, agent or
attorney of any other party has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other party would not, in the event of litigation, seek to enforce the foregoing
waiver and (ii) acknowledges that it and the other parties hereto have been induced to enter into this Agreement by, among other things, the mutual waivers
and certifications in this Section 6.06(b).

(b) The prevailing party in any dispute or legal action arising under this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable
expenses, attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.

SECTION 1.07 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, then such provision, covenant or condition shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
modified or restricted to the extent necessary to make such provision valid, binding and enforceable, or, if such provision cannot be modified or restricted,
then such



provision shall, as to such jurisdiction, be deemed to be excised from this Agreement and any such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability with respect to
such provision shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction, and the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain
in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated.

SECTION 1.08 Survival. The rights and obligations of Employer and Executive under the provisions of this Agreement, including
Articles V and VI, shall survive and remain binding and enforceable, notwithstanding any termination of Executive’s employment with Employer, to the
extent necessary to preserve the intended benefits of such provisions.

SECTION 1.09 Cooperation. Executive shall provide Executive’s reasonable cooperation to Employer in connection with any suit,
action or proceeding (or any appeal therefrom) that relates to events occurring during Executive’s employment with Employer or any of its affiliates other
than a suit between Executive, on the one hand, and Employer, on the other hand, provided that Employer shall reimburse Executive for expenses
reasonably incurred in connection with such cooperation.

SECTION 1.10 Executive Representation. Executive hereby represents to Employer that the execution and delivery of this Agreement
by Executive and Employer and the performance by Executive of Executive’s duties hereunder shall not constitute a breach of, or otherwise contravene, or
be prevented, interfered with or hindered by, the terms of any employment agreement or other agreement or policy to which Executive is a party or
otherwise bound.

SECTION 1.11 No Waiver. The provisions of this Agreement may be waived only in writing signed by the party or parties entitled to
the benefit thereof. A waiver or any breach or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not in any way affect, limit or waive a party’s rights
hereunder at any time to enforce strict compliance thereafter with every provision of this Agreement.

SECTION 1.12 Set Off. Employer’s obligation to pay Executive the amounts provided and to make the arrangements provided
hereunder shall be subject to set-off, counterclaim or recoupment of amounts owed by Executive to Employer or its affiliates.

SECTION 1.13  Withholding Taxes. Employer may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such Federal, state, local
and foreign taxes as may be required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.

SECTION 1.14  Section 409A. (a) It is intended that the provisions of this Agreement comply with Section 409A (“Section 409A”) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in a manner consistent with the
requirements for avoiding taxes or penalties under Section 409A.

(a) Neither Executive nor any of his creditors or beneficiaries shall have the right to subject any deferred compensation (within the
meaning of Section 409A) payable under this Agreement or under any other plan, policy, arrangement or agreement of or with Employer or any of its
affiliates (this Agreement and such other plans, policies, arrangements and agreements, the “Company Plans™) to any anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer,
assignment, pledge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishment. Except as permitted under Section 409A, any deferred compensation (within the meaning of
Section 409A) payable to Executive or for Executive’s benefit under any Company Plan may not be reduced by, or offset against, any amount owing by
Executive to Employer or any of its affiliates.

(b) If, at the time of Executive’s separation from service (within the meaning of Section 409A), (i) Executive shall be a specified
employee (within the meaning of Section 409A and using the identification methodology selected by Employer from time to time) and (ii) Employer shall
make a good faith determination that an amount payable under a Company Plan constitutes deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A)
the payment of which is required to be delayed pursuant to the six-month delay rule set forth in Section 409A in order to avoid taxes or penalties under
Section 409A, then the Employer (or its affiliate, as applicable) shall not pay such amount on the otherwise scheduled payment date but shall instead
accumulate such amount and pay it on the first business day after such six-month period.

() Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement or any Company Plan to the contrary, in light of the uncertainty with respect to
the proper application of Section 409A, Employer reserves the right to make amendments to any Company Plan as Employer deems necessary or desirable
to avoid the imposition of taxes or penalties under Section 409A. In any case, Executive is solely responsible and liable for the satisfaction of all



taxes and penalties that may be imposed on Executive or for Executive’s account in connection with any Company Plan (including any taxes and penalties
under Section 409A), and neither the Employer nor any affiliate shall have any obligation to indemnify or otherwise hold Executive harmless from any or
all of such taxes or penalties.

(d) For purposes of Section 409A, each payment hereunder will be deemed to be a separate payment as permitted under Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii).

(e) Except as specifically permitted by Section 409A, any benefits and reimbursements provided to Executive under this Agreement
during any calendar year shall not affect any benefits and reimbursements to be provided to Executive under this Agreement in any other calendar year, and
the right to such benefits and reimbursements cannot be liquidated or exchanged for any other benefit. Furthermore, reimbursement payments shall be
made to Executive as soon as practicable following the date that the applicable expense is incurred, but in no event later than the last day of the calendar
year following the calendar year in which the underlying expense is incurred.

SECTION 1.15 Release. In consideration of Employer’s entering into this Agreement and except with respect to Employer’s
obligations hereunder, Executive hereby irrevocably waives, releases and forever discharges Employer and its affiliates and their predecessors, successors,
current and former employees, shareholders, members, partners, directors, officers, representatives and agents from any and all actions, causes of action,
claims, demands for general or specific or punitive damages, attorney’s fees, or expenses, known or unknown, that in any way relate to or arise out of
Executive’s employment with Employer through and including the date of this Agreement which Executive may now or hereafter have, including claims
under any Federal, state or local statute, rule or regulation or principle of common, tort or contract law.

SECTION 1.16 Determinations. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, all determinations of Employer or the Board
shall be in the sole discretion of Employer or the Board, as applicable.

SECTION 1.17 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original instrument and all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

SECTION 1.18 Construction. (a) The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning
or construction of any provision of this Agreement.

® As used in this Agreement, words such as “herein,” “hereinafter,” “hereby” and “hereunder,” and words of like import refer to

99 e

this Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise. The words “include,” “includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase
“without limitation”.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

“Employer”

INTERNATIONAL MONEY EXPRESS, INC.

By /s/ Robert Lisy
Name: Robert Lisy

Title: Chief Executive Officer &
Chairman

“Employee”

/s/ Ernesto Luciano
Ernesto Luciano




EXHIBIT A

Prior Inventions:

[None.]



Entity

International Money Express Sub 2, LLC
Intermex Holdings, Inc.

Intermex Wire Transfer, LLC

Intermex Wire Transfer Corp.

Intermex Wire Transfer II, LLC

Intermex Transfers de Mexico S.A. de C.V.
Intermex Wire Transfer de Mexico S.A. de C.V.
Intermex Wire Transfers de Guatemala S.A.
Intermex Servicios Integrales S. de R.L. de C.V.
Intermex Central de Servicios S. de R.L. de C.V.
Canada International Transfers Corp.

Envios de Valores La Nacional Corp.

Subsidiaries of International Money Express, Inc.

State of Organization
Delaware

Delaware

Florida

California

Delaware

Mexico

Mexico

Guatemala

Mexico

Mexico

British Columbia, Canada
New York

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

International Money Express, Inc.
Miami, Florida

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-248902) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-233392 and

333-248563) of International Money Express, Inc. of our reports dated March 15, 2023 relating to the consolidated financial statements, and the
effectiveness of International Money Express, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting, which appear in this Form 10K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Miami, Florida
March 15, 2023



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1, Robert Lisy, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of International Money Express, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by

others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably

likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to

the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
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a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2023

By: /s/ Robert Lisy

Name: Robert Lisy

Title: Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Andras Bende, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of International Money Express, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-

15(%)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by

others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably

likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
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a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2023

By: /s/ Andras Bende

Name:  Andras Bende

Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert Lisy, Chief Executive Officer and President of International Money Express, Inc. (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

that, to my knowledge:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2023

By: /s/ Robert Lisy

Name Robert Lisy

Title:  Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Andras Bende, Chief Financial Officer of International Money Express, Inc. (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my

knowledge:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 15, 2023

By: /s/ Andras Bende

Name:  Andras Bende

Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




